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One. Letter to Shareholders

First of all, I would like thank you for your support and encouragement 
during the past year. The following is a report of our operating results for 2022 
and outlook for 2023.

I. 2022 operating results
(I) Business plan implementation results

The net consolidated operating income of the Company for 2022 
was NT$7,318,728 thousand, an increase of NT$1,520,980 thousand 
or 26.23% compared to the net consolidated operating income of 
NT$5,797,748 thousand in 2021. The consolidated net profit after tax 
for 2022 was NT$881,575 thousand, an increase of NT$261,537 
thousand or 42.18% compared to the consolidated net profit of 
NT$620,038 thousand in 2021.

In 2021, revenue declined due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
affecting the Vietnamese factory. In 2022, the production capacity 
returned to normal, resulting in a growth in revenue from the 
previous year.

The increase in net profit after tax was not only due to an 
increase in operating income, but also due to the depreciation of the 
New Taiwan dollar, resulting in an exchange gain of approximately 
NT$203,251 thousand, resulting in a significant increase in the net 
profit for 2022 from that in the previous year.

(II) Budget implementation
The consolidated budget implementation in 2022: 

Unit: NT$ thousand

Item
2022

Amount of 
budget

Amount 
audited

Achieveme
nt rate (%)

Net operating income 7,656,000 7,318,728 95.59
Operating costs 5,890,649 5,793,008 98.34
Net gross profit 1,765,351 1,525,720 86.43
Operating expenses 525,000 584,201 111.28
Operating profit 1,240,351 941,519 75.91
Non-operating income 
(expenditure) 18,000 235,818 1,310.10

Profit before tax for the 
period 1,258,351 1,177,337 93.56

Profit after tax for the period 931,180 881,575 94.67
EPS before tax 15.33 14.38 93.78
EPS after tax 11.35 10.77 94.89
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(III) Analysis of income, expenditures, and profitability
Unit: NT$ thousand

Item 2022 2021
Increase/
Decrease 

(%)
Income 
and 
expendi
ture

Consolidated net operating 
income 7,318,728 5,797,748 26.23

Consolidated net gross 
profit 1,525,720 1,220,582 25.00

Consolidated profit after tax 881,575 620,038 42.18

(IV)Research and development
In 2022, our research and development focused on projects of 

“development of ultra-high power long-life batteries”, “research on 
long cycle life lead carbon electrode batteries”, “technology 
development for mass production of long-life stop start batteries”, 
“development of backup batteries for cloud data center base 
stations”, and “development of high-temperature batteries for 
outdoor stations”.

“Development of ultra-high power long-life batteries” - in 
response to the rise of home office and delivery markets driven by 
COVID-19, the demand for IDC (Internet Data Center) backups has 
increase drastically. Therefore, the development for this year’s 
battery technology focused on “ultra-high power” and “long float
life”. The development of the WXL series products was completed 
this year for customers.

Alongside the development trend of energy issues around the 
world, there are more and more applications for renewable energy 
and energy stations. Based on this, the research and development this 
year focused on the “development of lead-carbon batteries for deep 
recycling green energy applications” and “research on long cycle life 
lead-carbon electrode batteries”. The initial research results show 
that the lead-carbon composite electrode has significantly improved 
the cycle life, which will be gradually applied in 2023 in green 
energy stations and energy storage stations.

With the introduction of 5G systems around the world coupled 
with the fact that cold room operations in SMR systems for carbon 
reduction applications are to be eliminated, the “development of 
backup batteries for cloud data centers” and the “development of 
high-temperature batteries for outdoor base stations” have become 
paramount. The development focused on the optimization of the 
material and process formula for high-temperature batteries.
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II. Summary of the 2023 Business Plan
(I) Business Policy

1. To improve gross margin and own brand market share, we will
focus on 3 cores: new product development, net market expansion
and own brand management. We will continue to make an effort to
introduce automation and continuous production equipment while
optimizing CAD/CAM and anti-dulling design and site proposal
improvement. With advanced quality control, we will increase
production efficiency, quality control and customer satisfaction.
To save manpower, we will review and improve production line
flow and line rationalization and introduce automated production
lines. Meanwhile, we will improve high energy-consuming
equipment and related energy saving and recycling and energy
management system in the process. By constantly maintaining our
manufacturing strengths with our excellent product quality, we
vow to enhance production efficiency and productivity, further
expanding production capacity.

2. We will make an effort to invest in industrial, telecommunication
base stations and cloud platforms, green energy storage batteries
(including high heat-resistant batteries, gel batteries, lead carbon
batteries), long life batteries, electric vehicle batteries (LEV,
mobility scooters, golf cars, forklifts, electric forklift), motorcycle
batteries (including stop start batteries), and automobile MF
market and yacht batteries. We will also proactively participate in
domestic and foreign large-scale public constructions, government
procurement, Internet communications, telecommunications, data
centers and other tenders, while focusing on new product
development.

3. We will expand the visibility of our own brand and global market
share and increase the development of new markets and
customers.

4. A team learning model will be built in Vietnam to accelerate the
development of local talent and cadres with high education. We
also provide highly efficient, stable and quality talent resources to
companies with our effective cross-unit communication platform
and complete career planning.

5. In response to the needs of customers and industry, we will carry
out product improvement and cost control while continuing to
vertically integrate the supply chain to achieve cost rationalization
of products from production and sales.

6. We will implement an environmental safety and health system and
commit to meeting and complying domestic and foreign
environmental safety and health as well as related law and
regulations. We are dedicated to maintaining sound corporate
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governance by rigorously abiding by business ethics, promoting 
shareholder rights and interests, and strengthening information 
transparency to expand social responsibilities with our core 
corporate value.

7. In response to COVID-19, we performed a risk assessment and
response so that our business and operations are able to continue
to function, minimizing the possible risks and impacts on our
business.

8. We promote the international carbon reduction process of ESG
“net zero”. We achieve the targets for emission reduction by
organizing the direct emissions and indirect energy emissions in
the location where we operate and manufacture, jointly facing
climate change.

(II)Expected Sales Volume and the Basis
Thanks to the growing economy and the expansion of the market 

for automobiles, motorcycles, and electric vehicles in Vietnam, the 
demand for the Company’s lead-acid batteries in the assembly plant 
and repair market channels continues to thrive. In response to 
motorcycle batteries developed by a large Japanese motorcycle 
manufacturer, we continue to increase the approved specifications 
with stable quality and will enter Japan’s procurement supply chain to 
increase our shipment volume. In addition, we have been engaging 
ourselves in the local telecommunications base stations in Vietnam 
and are gradually gaining market share in the light electric vehicle 
market. The local sales of our subsidiary, Le Long Vietnam, are 
expected to grow with a steady pace. The demand for renewable 
energy and green energy storage is constantly increasing, in particular 
large long-life batteries. By investing in domestic and foreign as well 
as local large tenders in Vietnam, the market penetration rate and 
share of the Company’s products will be largely increased. In addition 
to working closely with existing customers, we will also deploy and 
develop new markets and customers.

As the demand for large batteries has increased, the sales volume 
for 2023 is projected at approximately 21,916 thousand units.

(III) Important production and marketing policies
1. Production policy

(1) Process improvement will be continuously conducted and new
automated equipment introduced in De He Vietnam.

(2) According to the customer’s application needs, we are 
committed to developing yacht, forklift, and large sealed 
batteries, high-cost performance batteries, and green energy 
storage batteries to reduce production costs and increase gross 
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profit.
(3) We continue implementing energy saving measures, 

introducing solar power generation systems for self-power 
generating and self-use, and controlling high energy-
consuming equipment, while implementing control, 
monitoring, and management of the manufacturing process to 
conduct effective energy management, in order to reduce the 
energy consumption rate.

(4) We follow the Guidelines for Continuous Operations in 
Response to COVID-19 policies and measures to achieve 
maximum benefits for individuals and workplace hygiene 
management while reducing the risk of possible employee 
exposure in the workplace.

2. Sales policy
(1) We will proactively invest in tenders in large scale battery

applications such as telecommunication base stations and 
cloud platforms, and green energy storage batteries, promote 
and strengthen communication-purpose large-enclosed type, 
long life batteries, electric vehicle batteries (LEV, mobility 
scooters, golf cars, forklifts, and electric forklift), and sales of 
green energy storage batteries and yacht batteries.

(2) We will continue to increase the market share of our brands for 
motorcycles (including stop start batteries), automobiles and 
electric vehicles, while proactively developing the Vietnam 
and ASEAN markets.

(3) Capture the market for security surveillance, uninterruptible 
power supplies (UPS) and car rescue tarter batteries with cost 
rationalization and high performance batteries.

(4) By taking into account the risk of customer concentration, we 
work hard to expand new customers and markets to expand our 
global market share, with emphasis on the Middle East, 
Eastern Europe, Central and South America, Africa, Australia, 
and the ASEAN region.

(5) We adjust the selling price according to the fluctuation for lead 
prices and establish fair trade approaches. Our pricing strategy 
is adjusted in a timely manner according to different markets 
so as to maintain our international competitiveness.

(6) We will continue to promote our own brands to establish 
segmentation of our products, becoming a provider of quality 
products and services.
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III. The Company’s future development strategy
With our top-class process technology and pragmatic management 

approach, we continue to invest in the research and development of 
formulas for better performance and longer life of lead-acid batteries, as 
well as the research of new high-end materials for high heat-resistant 
batteries and lead-carbon batteries and new process technology for the 
continuous production of electrode plates.

Based on the Company’s “quality first, customer first” policy, we will 
work hard to achieve the goal of quality and quantity improvement in this 
global competitive environment in order to deliver results and reach steady 
growth.

IV. The impact of the external competitive environment, the
regulatory environment and the overall business environment

Looking ahead to the year 2023, the world is entering a post pandemic 
era; however, in the context of overall price increases and intensified 
inflation, major economic research institutions around the world expect a 
slight slowdown in the coming year. The overall economy remains difficult 
and challenging. In this economic environment, Kung Long will actively 
develop potential markets in South Asia, Southeast Asia, Africa, and the 
Middle East. In addition, we will expand the market for yacht batteries and 
forklift batteries, and expand the sales of high-density, long-life batteries, 
and high-power batteries that have been recognized by customers for their 
quality. As Vietnam's economic growth has gradually recovered and turned 
strong, under the policy of coexisting with the virus in the post pandemic 
era, it is expected that the local battery market will have a relatively high 
growth rate, and it is even expected to recover to the situation before the 
pandemic. As Vietnam's production capacity increases, the Company will 
strengthen cost and expense control; with its core competitiveness such as 
international division of labor, innovative research and development, and a 
stable business strategy, the Company will present excellent results to 
customers on time and accuracy, and continue its growing business 
performance.

Thank you
I wish you all

good health and the best of luck

Chairman: 
Lee Yao-Min

Company officer: 
Lee Jui-Chun

Chief Accounting Officer: 
Liu Huang-Wei
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Two. Company Profile

I. Date of establishment: January 25, 1990
II. Organization and operations:

Year Month Events

1990 January
Kung Long Industrial was approved to be established in Nangang 
Industrial Zone, with a capital of NT$8.16 million and 115 employees.

1991
June Attained UL Standards

December Developed “maintenance-free electronic sealed battery”.

1993
July

Joined hands with the ITRI for a 2 year project to develop deep discharge 
sealed lead-acid batteries.

December Developed “camera series batteries”.

1994

March Application for KLB Taiwan approved.

August Attained ISO 9002 international quality certificate.

December Developed “maintenance free motorcycle sealed batteries”.

1995

July
Joined hands with the ITRI for a 2 year project to develop battery 
technology for electric motorcycles.

September Application for KLB China approved.

December Developed “High capacity sealed batteries”.

1996

May
Applications for trademarks LONG, GLOBE, TARGET, LEVEL 
approved.

October
Application for trademark in English “LONG” in Taiwan approved.
Attained VdS certificate.
Registration for investment in Vietnam approved.

December Joined bonded factory.

1997 December Received Customer Satisfaction Golden Quality Award.

1998

May Application for trademark “LONG” in Vietnam approved.

July
Computer Center in Kung Long Plant built, fiber optic network 
connection of each unit completed.

September Developed “electric bicycle batteries”.

December

Received “Taiwan Excellence Award” by the Ministry of Economic 
Affairs.
Awarded “1st Rising Star Award” for SMEs.
Received “Excellent Foreign Labor Management Vendor” by Nantou
County Police Department.

1999

January Developed “electric bicycle batteries”.

July Public offering approved by the FSC.

September
Application for trademark “LONG” in China approved.
Merged Li Long Industrial, increasing capital to NT$360 million.

October
Application for trademark “LONG” in Vietnam approved.
Developed OME-SVCD by collaboration.

December
Certified by BVQI ISO 14001
Batteries for electric motorcycles passed the 10,000km test by the ITRI 
and went in mass production.
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Year Month Events

2000

March Application for trademark “LONG” in EU approved.

December

Passed ISO 9001 international standard quality management system 
certification.
Received “Excellent Foreign Labor Management Vendor” by Nantou 
County Government.

2001
May The Company was renamed as Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd.

July Li Long Vietnam passed ISO 9002 international certification.

2002

January
Passed OHSAS 18001 international certification.
Stock became officially listed.

October Selected as a “Strategic Alliance Vendor” by customs.

November Selected as an “Excellent Bonded Factory” by Customs Administration.

2002

January
Passed OHSAS 18001 international certification.
Stock became officially listed.

October Selected as a “Strategic Alliance Vendor” by customs.

November Selected as an “Excellent Bonded Factory” by Customs Administration.

2003

January Attained the CE certification

April
Developed and introduced “high-performance and long-life gel 
batteries”.

May Vietnam plants attained VdS certificate.

November
Once again elected as an “Excellent Bonded Factory” by Customs 
Administration.

December Subsidiary in the U.S. established

2004

October
Application for retailer trademark “LONG” registration for lead-acid 
batteries in Taiwan approved.

November
Application for trademark “LONG KL” registration for car batteries 
approved in the U.S.

December
Application for trademark “KL” registration for battery storage for cars 
approved in China.

2006 June
Completed product development for “high power lead-acid batteries”.
Presentation of leading project results.

2007
September Production began in De He Vietnam

November
1st domestic unsecured convertible corporate bond of NT$500 million 
issued.

2008
August

Vietnam plants passed “TL 9000 Telecommunications/Communications 
Electronics Industry Quality System” certification.

October 2nd phase of construction of De He Vietnam completed.

2009 July 3rd phase of construction of De He Vietnam completed.

2010

January ERP system officially launched in Taiwan plants.

September 4th phase of construction of De He Vietnam completed.

October ERP system officially launched in Vietnam plants.

December
Developed and launched the “MSK 2V and TPK 12V large sealed 
batteries for communications”.

2011
February BI system officially launched in Taiwan plants.

June BI system officially launched in Vietnam plants.

2012 September 5th phase of construction of De He Vietnam completed.

2013 Automated COS process fully introduced.
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Year Month Events

2014

June
Vietnam plants initiated consultation programs for “ISO 14001, OHSAS 
18001” systems.

October
“Motorcycle stop start lead-acid batteries” approved by the largest 
motorcycle center in Japan.

December De He Vietnam began its 6th phase of expansion

2015

May
MSCI listed Kung Long as a constituent in the MSCI World SMID Cap 
Index

July
Vietnam plants passed “ISO 14001:2004, OHSAS 18001:2008”.
Pulse container formation introduction.

November
Certified by the largest motorcycle center in Japan and began delivery of
“motorcycle stop start lead-acid batteries”.

December 6th phase of construction of De He Vietnam completed.

2016 December De He Vietnam began its 7th phase of expansion

2017

June
Certified by VNPT and began delivery of “lead-acid batteries for 3G and 
4G applications in telecommunications”.

September Labs in Vietnam plants passed “ISO 17025 2005” system certification.

December 7th phase of construction of De He Vietnam completed.

2019

January Began officially supplying to Mobifone and EVN.

July
Vietnam plants passed “ISO 45001: 2018 occupational safety and health 
management system” certification.

2020
March

Taiwan plants passed “ISO 45001: 2018 occupational safety and health 
management system” certification.

November
Valve regulated lead–acid (VRLA) battery won 29th Taiwan Excellence 
award.

2021 December
De He Vietnam began its 8th phase of expansion of the 15th plant 
building.
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Three. Corporate Governance Report
I. Organizational System

(I) Organizational Structure:

Board of 
Directors meeting

Chairman 

Audit Office

Vice President

President 

President’s Office

Overseas Business 
Department

Information 
Department

Domestic Sales 
Department

Export Sales 
Department

Finance D
ivision
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ccounting D

ivision

Environm
ental Safety O

ffice

Labor Safety Office
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eneral A
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ent D
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Management 
Department
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Production M
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ent 
D

ivision

Technology D
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ssem
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ivision

Quality 
Research 
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uality A

ssurance D
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Finance 
Department

Plant 
Affairs 

Audit Committee

Quality Management 
Committee

HR Appraisal Committee

Environmental Safety 
Management Committee

Information Security 
Committee

Shareholders’ 
meeting
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(II) Tasks of Principal Divisions

Department Key responsibilities

President’s Office

1. Coordinate decision-making and formulation, evaluation and promotion of

projects of the entire company.

2. Maintain management performance evaluation and information digitization.

Audit Office Establish, revise, promote and audit internal control systems.

Management 
Department

Responsible for HR, general affairs, and procurement of the Company.

Finance 
Department

1. Matters associated with accounting and taxes.

2. Bank transactions, funding arrangement, cash and securities asset management,

and cashier operations.

3. Audits of income and expenditure certificates, accounts handling, statement

preparation and analysis.

4. Budget creation of each department and performance evaluation.

5. Handling of the Company’s stock affairs.

Business 
Department

1. Responsible for product marketing and new customer development.

2. Collection of information for domestic and foreign market expansion.

Information 
Department

Integration, planning and execution of computer information.

Plant Affairs 
Department

1. Responsible for computer production and quality control.

2. Design, development and maintenance of production machinery and equipment.

Production 
Management 

Division

1. Responsible for company production plans and scheduling.

2. Raw material warehousing management, procurement, inspection and shipment.

Quality Research 
Department

1. Inspect the quality of company products.

2. Reduce quality variability and cost.

3. Responsible for the design and development of new products and development of

new processes.

4. Improvement of quality assurance of existing products and customer service.

Overseas 
Business 

Department

1. Responsible for overseas sales and production plans.

2.Business development of overseas offices.
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Major shareholders of corporate shareholders  April 15, 2023

Name of corporate 
shareholder Major shareholders of corporate shareholders

Mao Long Investments 
Limited

Lee Jui-Chun (50%), Lee Jui-Ting (33%), Tsai Hsiang-Pei (16%), Lee Kuan-
Ying (1%)

If the major shareholder of corporate shareholder is a juristic person, its 
major shareholder: None.

Information disclosure of professional qualification of directors as well as 
the independence of independent directors:

Criteria

Name

Professional qualifications and experience
(Note 1)

Independence

Number of other 
public companies in 
which the individual 

is concurrently 
serving as an 

independent director

Lee Yao-Min With management leadership experience to 
provide operational guidelines to the Company

First degree of kinship with 
Director Lee Jui-Chun

-

Lee Jui-Chun
With management leadership experience to 
implement operational objectives with more 
efficiency

First degree of kinship with 
Director Lee Yao-Min

-

Shi Hwei-Yow
Attorney at law with expertise in law and 
experience in government agencies to provide 
the Company advice.

An external professional 
individual that does not have a 
direct or indirect interest in the 
Company, except for receiving 
remuneration that is approved 
by the Board of Directors

2

Mao Long 
Investments 
Limited
(Representative: 
Chen, Shou-Shin)

With long years of service in government 
taxation agencies, this person is able to 
provide the Company tax-related consultation

An external professional 
individual that does not have a
direct or indirect interest in the 
Company, except for receiving 
remuneration that is approved 
by the Board of Directors

-

Mao Long 
Investments 
Limited
(Representative: 
Tsai, Chang-Shou)

CPA in practice who can provide the 
Company tax-related consultation

An external professional 
individual that does not have a 
direct or indirect interest in the 
Company, except for receiving 
remuneration that is approved 
by the Board of Directors

-

Mao Long 
Investments 
Limited
Certified Public 
Accountant (CPA),
able to provide 
corporate tax 
related consultation

Attorney at law with expertise in laws to 
provide the Company advice.

An external professional 
individual that does not have a 
direct or indirect interest in the 
Company, except for receiving 
remuneration that is approved 
by the Board of Directors

-
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Criteria

Name

Professional qualifications and experience
(Note 1)

Independence

Number of other 
public companies in 
which the individual 

is concurrently 
serving as an 

independent director

Independent 
director Wang Cho-
Chun

Serving as the head of police department, this 
person is an expert in system construction and 
personnel management. 

In line with the provisions in 
Article 3 of the “Regulations 
Governing Appointment of 
Independent Directors and 
Compliance Matters”

-

Independent 
director Yang Wen-
Goang

Currently serving as the Vice President at 
Chaoyang University of Technology, this 
person is an expert in patent value and 
technology management and can provide the 
Company advice on industrial deployment

In line with the provisions in 
Article 3 of the “Regulations 
Governing Appointment of 
Independent Directors and 
Compliance Matters”

1

Independent 
director Tsai Chi-
Neng

This person has been serving as a managing 
director at Pou Chen Corporation for many 
years and is able to provide views on 
management and is an expert in financial 
management

In line with the provisions in 
Article 3 of the “Regulations 
Governing Appointment of 
Independent Directors and 
Compliance Matters”

-

Note 1: None of the Board members are subject to any of the provision of Article 30 of the Company Act.
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Diversity and independence of the Board:
(I) Diversity of the Board:

1. The Company has formulated a diversity policy and specific management objectives for
Board members:
Article 20 of the Company’s “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles” (abilities
the Board of Directors shall possess) specifies that:
The composition of the board of directors shall be determined by taking diversity into
consideration. It is advisable that directors concurrently serving as company officers not
exceed one-third of the total number of the board members, and that an appropriate policy
on diversity based on the company’s business operations, operating dynamics, and
development needs be formulated and include, without being limited to, the following two
general standards:
(1) Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture.
(2) Professional knowledge and skills: A professional background (e.g., law, accounting,

industry, finance, marketing, technology), professional skills, and industry experience.
All members of the board shall have the knowledge, skills, and experience necessary to 
perform their duties. To achieve the ideal goal of corporate governance, the board of 
directors shall possess the following abilities:
(1) Ability to make operational judgments (2) Ability to perform accounting and financial 
analysis (3) Ability to conduct management administration (4) Ability to conduct crisis 
management (5) Knowledge of the industry (6) An international market perspective (7) 
Ability to lead (8) Ability to make policy decisions.

2. The achievement of the diversity of the Company’s Board members:
(1) Among the 9 members of the 12th Board - except for chairman Lee Yao-Min and

president Lee Jui-Chun who are involved in management - directors Shi Hwei-Yow 
and Chiang Yen-Hung, and independent director Wang Cho-Chiun are experts in legal 
affairs; independent director Yang Wen-Goang is an expert in patent value and 
technology management and research; directors Chen Shou-Shin and Tsai Chang-Shou 
are familiar with financial affairs; and independent director Tsai Chi-Neng is good at 
business management. All directors possess professional backgrounds, professional 
abilities and experience. All Board members possess expertise in business 
management, legal affairs and accounting areas.

(2) The Board is composed of all men who are Taiwanese with 33% of them being 
independent directors and 1 director serving as an employee, accounting for 11% of all 
directors. The average of the Board members is 68.33. Except for the fact that there 
are no woman members, all management objectives have been achieved.

(II) Independence of Board of Directors:
None of the Company’s Board members are subject to any of the provision of Article 30 of 
the Company Act. Except for the fact that the chairman and president are father and son, no 
directors, their spouses, or relatives within second degree of kinship serve as a director or 
employee in the Company or its affiliates, meeting the provisions stipulated in Article 26-3 of 
the Securities and Exchange Act. While the three independent directors meet the provisions in 
Article 3 of the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and 
Compliance Matters”, the Company also abides by the “independent director system“ in 
Section 2, Chapter 3 of the “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles” which states that 
“independent directors shall possess professional knowledge and there shall be restrictions on 
their shareholdings and the positions they may concurrently hold. They shall maintain 
independence within the scope of their directorial duties, and may not have any direct or 
indirect interest in the company” in order to maintain the detached independence of the 
independent directors.
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Nationality

N
am

e
G

en
de

r
D

at
e 

of
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t

Sh
ar

eh
ol

di
ng

Sh
ar

eh
ol

di
ng

 
of

 S
po

us
es

 
an

d 
M

in
or

 
C

hi
ld

re
n

Sh
ar

eh
ol

di
ng

 in
 

th
e

N
am

e 
of

 
O

th
er

s
Pr

in
ci

pa
l W

or
k 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
an

d 
A

ca
de

m
ic

 
Q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

Po
si

tio
n(

s)
 

H
el

d 
C

on
cu

rre
nt

ly
 

in
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
/in

 
A

ny
 O

th
er

 
C

om
pa

ny

C
om

pa
ny

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 W
ho

 A
re

 
Sp

ou
se

s o
r R

el
at

iv
es

 W
ith

in
 th

e 
Se

co
nd

 D
eg

re
e 

of
 K

in
sh

ip

R
em

ar
k

Number of 
shares

Shareholdin
g ratio

Number of 
shares

Shareholdin
g ratio

Number of 
shares

Shareholdin
g ratio

Ti
tle

N
am

e

Relationship

Pr
es

id
en

t

Republic of 
China

Le
e 

Ju
i-

C
hu

n
M

al
e

20
06

.0
6.

01
5,

85
8

7.
14

%
2,

06
1

2.
51

%
2,

99
8

3.
65

%

M
as

te
r's

 D
eg

re
e,

 
G

ra
du

at
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
B

us
in

es
s M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
, U

K

C
ha

irm
an

 
an

d 
Pr

es
id

en
t, 

Li
 

Lo
ng

 
V

ie
tn

am

V
ic

e 
pr

es
id

en
t, 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Le
e 

Ju
i-

Ti
ng

B
ro

th
er

(N
ot

e 
1)

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 
vi

ce
 p

re
si

de
nt

Republic of 
China

Y
an

g 
Ju

i-
H

si
an

g
M

al
e

20
09

.0
7.

01
42

0.
05

%
-

-
-

-

G
ra

du
at

ed
 fr

om
 

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l D

ep
ar

t.,
 

C
hi

n-
Y

i C
ol

le
ge

M
an

ag
er

, Y
ua

n 
Y

i 
En

te
rp

ris
e

N
on

e
-

-
-

V
ic

e 
pr

es
id

en
t, 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Republic of 
China

Le
e 

Ju
i-

Ti
ng

M
al

e
20

22
.1

1.
01

3,
49

8
4.

26
%

-
-

-
-

M
B

A
, U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f

G
re

en
w

ic
h,

 U
K

N
on

e
Pr

es
id

en
t

Le
e 

Ju
i-

C
hu

n
B

ro
th

er

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

G
en

er
al

 
M

an
ag

er
, 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Republic of 
China

Li
u 

H
ua

ng
-

W
ei

M
al

e
20

14
.0

2.
01

12
0.

01
%

20
0.

02
%

-
-

G
ra

du
at

ed
 fr

om
 D

ep
t. 

of
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g,
 T

un
gh

ai
 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
A

ud
it 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
er

,
Pw

C
 T

ai
w

an

N
on

e
-

-
-

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

G
en

er
al

 
M

an
ag

er
, 

Q
ua

lit
y 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

Republic of 
China

C
he

n 
C

hi
en

-
La

ng
M

al
e

20
13

.0
8.

08
60

0.
07

%
-

-
-

-

M
as

te
r’

s D
eg

re
e,

 
In

st
itu

te
 o

f M
at

er
ia

ls
 

Sc
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g,

 F
en

g 
C

hi
a 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity

N
on

e
-

-
-
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A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

G
en

er
al

 
M

an
ag

er
, 

Ex
po

rt 
Sa

le
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Republic of 
China

H
un

g
C

hi
eh

-Y
u

Fe
m

al
e

20
15

.0
2.

01
13

0.
02

%
-

-
-

-

A
pp

lie
d 

Fo
re

ig
n 

La
ng

ua
ge

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

N
at

io
na

l T
ai

ch
un

g 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f S

ci
en

ce
 

an
d 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy

N
on

e
-

-
-

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

G
en

er
al

 
M

an
ag

er
, 

D
om

es
tic

 S
al

es
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Republic of 
China

C
he

n 
C

hi
h-

H
si

un
g

M
al

e
20

19
.0

2.
12

19
0.

02
%

-
-

-
-

M
as

te
r’

s D
eg

re
e,

 
B

us
in

es
s M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
C

ha
oy

an
g 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

)

N
on

e
-

-
-

A
ud

it 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 
M

an
ag

er

Republic of China

Li
ao

 C
hi

-
N

en
g

M
al

e
20

15
.1

0.
30

3
0.

00
%

-
-

-
-

EM
B

A
 in

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
,

N
at

io
na

l C
hu

ng
 C

he
ng

 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

C
hi

ef
 o

f A
ud

it 
D

iv
is

io
n,

 T
ai

w
an

 H
on

 
C

hu
an

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

C
o.

, 
Lt

d.

N
on

e
-

-
-

N
ot

e 
1:

 W
he

re
 th

e 
ch

ai
rm

an
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

es
id

en
t o

r p
er

so
n 

of
 a

n 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 p
os

t (
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t l
ev

el
 c

om
pa

ny
 o

ffi
ce

r)
 o

f a
 c

om
pa

ny
 a

re
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rs

on
, s

po
us

es
, o

r r
el

at
iv

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fir
st 

de
gr

ee
 o

f k
in

sh
ip

, a
n 

ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

gi
ve

n 
of

 th
e 

re
as

on
, r

ea
so

na
bl

en
es

s, 
ne

ce
ss

ity
 th

er
eo

f, 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s a

do
pt

ed
 in

 re
sp

on
se

 th
er

et
o:

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

’s
 c

ha
irm

an
 a

nd
 p

re
si

de
nt

 a
re

 fa
th

er
 a

nd
 so

n.
 T

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y,

 w
hi

le
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s:
(1

) A
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f d
ire

ct
or

s a
re

 n
ot

 se
rv

in
g 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
s a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 o

r o
ffi

ce
r.

(2
) E

ac
h 

ye
ar

, p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
ire

ct
or

 c
ou

rs
es

 b
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

rr
an

ge
d 

fo
r d

ire
ct

or
s t

o 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
ei

r k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 c

or
po

ra
te

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 a

s d
ire

ct
or

s.
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II
I.

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
pa

id
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t f
is

ca
l y

ea
r t

o 
di

re
ct

or
s, 

pr
es

id
en

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
vi

ce
 p

re
sid

en
t

(I
) 

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 d
ire

ct
or

s:
U

ni
t: 

N
T$

 th
ou

sa
nd

Ti
tle

N
am

e

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 d
ire

ct
or

s
To

ta
l s

um
 o

f 
A

, B
, C

an
d 

D
 

an
d 

its
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
to

 
pr

of
it 

af
te

r t
ax

 
(%

)

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

s c
om

pa
ny

 p
ar

t-t
im

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
To

ta
l s

um
 o

f A
, B

, 
C

, D
, E

, F
 a

nd
 G

, 
an

d 
its

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 to

 
ne

t i
nc

om
e 

(%
)

R
em

un
er

at
i

on
 re

ce
iv

ed
 

fro
m

 
in

ve
st

ee
s 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
su

bs
id

ia
rie

s 
or

 p
ar

en
t 

co
m

pa
ny

R
em

un
er

at
io

n
(A

)
Pe

ns
io

n
(B

)

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 d
ire

ct
or

s
(C

)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 
re

nd
er

ed
 (D

)

Sa
la

rie
s, 

bo
nu

se
s a

nd
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s

(E
)

Pe
ns

io
n

(F
)

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s

(G
)

The Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company

All companies included in 
the financial report

The Company

All companies included in 
the financial report

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

A
ll 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

po
rt

The Company

A
ll 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
re

po
rt

A
m

ou
nt

 in
 

ca
sh

A
m

ou
nt

 in
 

st
oc

k
A

m
ou

nt
 in

 
ca

sh
A

m
ou

nt
 in

 
st

oc
k

C
ha

irm
an

Le
e 

Y
ao

-M
in

-
-

-
-

15
,4

80
15

,4
80

10
0

10
0

15
,5

80
15

,5
80

4,
88

3
6,

31
3

17
7

17
7

4,
59

2
-

4,
59

2
-

25
,2

32
26

,6
62

N
on

e

D
ire

ct
or

Le
e 

Ju
i-C

hu
n

D
ire

ct
or

Sh
i H

w
ei

-Y
ow

C
or

po
ra

te
 d

ire
ct

or
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e
M

ao
 L

on
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t -

C
he

n 
Sh

ou
-S

hi
n

C
or

po
ra

te
 d

ire
ct

or
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e
M

ao
 L

on
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t -

Ts
ai

 C
ha

ng
-S

ho
u

1.
77

%
1.

77
%

2.
86

%
3.

02
%

C
or

po
ra

te
 d

ire
ct

or
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e
M

ao
 L

on
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t -

C
hi

an
g 

Y
en

-H
un

g

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

di
re

ct
or

W
an

g 
C

ho
-C

hu
n

-
-

-
-

5,
24

5
5,

24
5

65
65

5,
31

0
5,

31
0

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

5,
31

0
5,

31
0

N
on

e
In

de
pe

nd
en

t 
di

re
ct

or
Y

an
g 

W
en

-G
oa

ng

0.
60

%
0.

60
%

0.
60

%
0.

60
%

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

di
re

ct
or

Ts
ai

 C
hi

-N
en

g

1.
Pl

ea
se

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
 d

et
ai

l t
he

 p
ol

ic
y,

 sy
st

em
, s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t d

ire
ct

or
s, 

an
d 

de
sc

rib
e 

th
e 

re
le

va
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

tie
s,

ris
ks

, t
im

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fa
ct

or
s:

(1
)

Th
e 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 f
or

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

’s
 d

ire
ct

or
s 

is 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 in

 A
rti

cl
e 

22
 o

f 
th

e 
A

rti
cl

es
 o

f 
In

co
rp

or
at

io
n 

-
no

 m
or

e 
th

an
 5

%
 o

f 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 p
ro

fit
, i

f 
an

y,
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

et
 a

sid
e 

fo
r 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 d
ire

ct
or

s. 
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

’s
 “

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 C
ha

rte
r”

, p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
of

 d
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
us

ua
l r

at
e 

of
 th

e 
in

du
st

ry
, w

hi
le

 ta
ki

ng
 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 li
nk

in
g 

of
 p

er
so

na
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, c

om
pa

ny
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 ri
sk

s. 
Th

e 
re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

of
 d

ire
ct

or
s i

s e
va

lu
at

ed
 a

nd
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

.
(2

)
Th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
is

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

 r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 a
nd

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

, t
ak

in
g 

in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f t
he

 in
du

st
ry

 b
ot

h 
do

m
es

tic
al

ly
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
lly

.
(3

)
A

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
’s

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t d

ire
ct

or
s a

re
 R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

rs
. R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

is
 p

ai
d 

in
 c

or
re

sp
on

de
nc

e 
w

i th
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
’s

 c
ur

re
nt

 sc
al

e 
of

 b
us

in
es

s a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

2.
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

ab
ov

e,
 in

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t f

is
ca

l y
ea

r, 
re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

di
re

ct
or

s (
e.

g.
, s

er
vi

ng
 a

s a
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 fo
r a

 n
on

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

en
t c

om
pa

ny
/c

om
pa

ni
es

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 st

at
em

en
ts

/in
ve

st
m

en
t b

us
in

es
se

s)
: N

on
e.
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R
an

ge
 o

f R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
Ta

bl
e

R
an

ge
 o

f r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
pa

id
 to

 e
ac

h 
di

re
ct

or

N
am

e 
of

 d
ire

ct
or

To
ta

l r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
(A

+B
+C

+D
)

To
ta

l r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
(A

+B
+C

+D
+E

+F
+G

)

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

A
ll 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

po
rt

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

A
ll 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

po
rt

B
el

ow
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(II) Remuneration to the president and vice president:
Unit: NT$ thousand

Title Name

Salary (A) Pension
(B)

Bonuses and 
special 

allowances
(C)

Remuneration to employees (D)

Total sum of A, B, 
C and D and its 
proportion to

profit after tax (%)
Remuneration 
received from 

investees 
other than 

subsidiaries 
or parent 
company

The Com
pany

A
ll com

panies 
included in the 
financial report

The Com
pany

A
ll com

panies 
included in the 
financial report

The Com
pany

A
ll com

panies 
included

in the 
financial report

The Company

All companies 
included in the 

financial 
report

The Com
pany

A
ll com

panies 
included in the 
financial reportAmount 

in cash
Amount 
in stock

Amount 
in cash

Amount 
in stock

President Lee Jui-
Chun

4,265 5,695 264 264 - - 4,989 - 4,989 -

9,518 10,948

NoneVice 
President

Yang 
Jui-
Hsiang

1.08% 1.24%Vice 
President

Lee Jui-
Ting

Policies, standards and combinations, procedures for determining remuneration to company officers, and their correlation with business performance and future risks:
The amount of remuneration to the Company’s officers is based on the duties, contributions, the Company’s operating performance and future risks to be reviewed by 
the Remuneration Committee and submitted to the Board of Directors for resolution.

Range of Remuneration Table
Remuneration Level for the President 
and Vice Presidents of the Company

Name of president and vice president

The Company All companies included 
in the financial report

Below NT$1,000,000 - -
NT$1,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) Lee Jui-Ting Lee Jui-Ting
NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) Yang Jui-Hsiang Yang Jui-Hsiang
NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) to NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) Lee Jui-Chun -
NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$10,000,000 
(exclusive) - Lee Jui-Chun

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$15,000,000 
(exclusive) - -

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$30,000,000 
(exclusive) - -

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$50,000,000 
(exclusive) - -

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$100,000,000 
(exclusive) - -

Over NT$100,000,000 - -
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(III) Names of company officers who receive employee remuneration and 
distribution status: 

 Unit: NT$ thousand

Title Name Amount in 
stock Amount in cash Total

Total and its 
proportion as a 

percentage of net 
income after tax (%)

M
anager

President Lee Jui-Chun

- 9,856 9,856 1.12

President’s Office
Vice President Yang Jui-Hsiang

Vice president, 
Management 
Department

Lee Jui-Ting

Assistant General 
Manager, Finance 

Department
Liu Huang-Wei

Assistant General 
Manager, Quality 

Research Department

Chen Chien-
Lang

Assistant General 
Manager, Export Sales 

Department
Hung Chieh-Yu

Assistant General 
Manager, Domestic 
Sales Department

Chen Chih-
Hsiung

(IV) Analysis of the total remuneration paid to the directors, president and vice 
president of the Company in the last two years by the Company and all 
companies in the consolidated financial statements as a percentage of the net 
profit after tax of individual financial reports; and explain the payment 
remuneration policies, standards and combinations, procedures for 
determining remuneration, and their correlation with business performance:

1. Analysis of the total remuneration paid to the directors, president and vice
president of the Company in the last two years by the Company and all
companies in the consolidated financial statements as a percentage of the
net profit after tax of individual financial reports:

Title
2022 2021

The Company Consolidation The Company Consolidation
Director 3.46% 3.62% 3.87% 4.10%

President/vice president 1.08% 1.24% 1.31% 1.54%

2. Policies, standards and combinations, procedures for determining
remuneration, and their correlation with business performance and future
risks:
For the last two years, regardless of profit or loss, the Company paid
transportation fees and salaries to the directors, president and vice
president. Remuneration to directors is based on the extent of their
participation in and contributions to the operations of the Company, taking
into consideration the general standards of the industry.
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IV. State of operation of corporate governance
(I) State of the Board of Directors:

In 2022, the Board of Directors had 5 meetings (A); the attendance of the directors 
is as follows:

Title Name
Number of 

actual 
attendance (B)

Attendance 
by proxy

Number of 
attendances

Number of actual
attendance (B/A) Remark

Chairman Lee Yao-Min 5 - 100 Re-elected: July 30, 
2021

Director Lee Jui-Chun 5 - 100 Re-elected: July 30, 
2021

Director Shi Hwei-Yow 5 - 100 Re-elected: July 30, 
2021

Director
Mao Long 

Investments Limited
 (Representative: 
Chen, Shou-Hsin)

5 - 100 Newly appointed:
July 30, 2021

Director
Mao Long 

Investments Limited
(Representative: 

Tsai, Chang-Shou)

5 - 100 Newly appointed: 
July 30, 2021

Director
Mao Long 

Investments Limited
(Representative: 

Chiang Yen-Hung)
5 - 100 Re-elected: July 30, 

2021

Independent 
director Wang Cho-Chun 5 - 100 Re-elected: July 30, 

2021
Independent 

director Yang Wen-Goang 5 - 100 Re-elected:July 30, 
2021

Independent 
director Tsai Chi-Neng 5 - 100 Newly appointed: 

July 30, 2021
Other information required:
I. For Board of Directors meetings that meet any of the following descriptions, state the date, session, the 

discussed agenda, independent directors’ opinions and how the company has responded to such opinions:
(I) Matters listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: None.
(II) Except for the preceding matters, any matter resolved by the Board of Directors with an independent 

director expressing an objection or reservation that has been included in records or stated in writing: 
None.

II. Recusal of the directors from motions involving their interest, specify the names of the directors, the content
of the motions, the reason for recusal, and the participation in voting:

Date of Board of Directors 
meeting Motion content Interest avoidance

Name of director Reason for recusal Participation in 
voting

4th meeting of the 12th 
Board
January 14, 2022

Discussed the motion for 
the amount of 2020 
employees’ 
remuneration, and 2021 
year-end bonus to the 
Company’s managers 
and chief auditor.

Director Lee Yao-
Min
Director Lee Jui-
Chun

These directors are 
company officers and 
recused themselves 
due to conflict of 
interest.

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with 
the remaining 
directors present 
at the meeting.

4th meeting of the 12th 
Board
January 14, 2022

Discussed the motion for 
the contents of the 
remuneration and 
payment for the 
Company’s directors.

Directors present The directors present 
at the meeting 
recused themselves 
during the discussion 
of their own 
transportation fees 
due to conflict of 
interest.

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with 
the remaining 
directors present 
at the meeting.
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7th meeting of the 12th 
Board
August 5, 2022

Motion to disuses the 
2021 director 
remuneration payment

Directors present The directors present 
at the meeting 
recused themselves 
due to a conflict of 
interest in the motion 
involving their own 
remuneration 
distribution.

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with 
the remaining 
directors present 
at the meeting.

III. Evaluation cycle, evaluation period, evaluation scope, evaluation method and evaluation content of the
Board’s self (or peer) evaluation:
Implementation of evaluation of the Board of Directors:
Evaluation cycle Evaluation 

period
Evaluation 

scope
Evaluation 

method Evaluation content

Performed at 
least once a year

2022.01.01-
2022.12.31

Performance 
evaluation of 
the Board of 
Directors and 
individual 
Board members 
as well as 
Remuneration 
Committee and 
Audit 
Committee

Performance 
evaluation 
questionnaires 
were internally 
conducted 
within the 
Board of 
Directors, 
Board 
members, 
Remuneration 
Committee and 
Audit 
Committee

1. The criteria for the self-evaluation of the
board of directors cover the following six 
aspects:
(1) Participation in the operation of the 

Company
(2) Quality of the Board of Directors’ decision 

making
(3) Composition and structure of the Board of 

Directors
(4) Election and continuing education of the 

directors
(5) Internal control

2. The criteria for the self-evaluation of the
board members cover the following six
aspects:
(1) Alignment of the goals and missions of

the company
(2) Awareness of the duties of a director
(3) Participation in the operation of the

Company
(4) Management of internal relationship and

communication
(5) The director’s professionalism and

continuing education
(6) Internal control

3. The criteria for the self-evaluation of the
functional committees cover the following six 
aspects:
(1) Participation in the operation of the

Company
(2) Awareness of the duties of the functional

committee
(3) Improvement of quality of decisions

made by the functional committee
(4) Composition and structure of the

functional committee
(5) Internal control

IV. Objectives to enhance Board functions during the most recent fiscal year and evaluation of the
implementation:
1. Strengthening of corporate governance: In 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors passed the “Rules for

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Functional Committees” and conducted performance
evaluation of the Board of Directors. On May 3, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the establishment
of the head of corporate governance to oversee corporate governance affairs and assist the directors in
carrying out their duties to exert their supervision function.

2. Enhancement of Information Transparency: There is an “Investor Area” on the Company’s website to 
provide timely information of the Company’s financial, business, and corporate governance-related 
information. In addition, we value the communication with investors. There is a “Stakeholders” area on 
the Company’s website. We also hold an investors conference on a regular basis to address investor-
related issues at any time, ensuring that investors have the right to fully inquire and understand the
Company’s financial and business information.
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(II) State of the Audit Committee: 
In 2022, the Board of Directors had 5 meetings (A); the attendance of the independent 
directors is as follows:

Title Name Number of actual 
attendance (B)

Attendance by 
proxy

Number of actual 
attendance (B/A)

Remark

Convener Wang Cho-
Chun 5

-
100 Newly appointed: 

July 30,2021

Member Yang Wen-
Goang 5

-
100 Newly appointed:

July 30,2021

Member Tsai Chi-
Neng 5

-
100 Newly appointed: 

July 30,2021

Other information required:
I. For Audit Committee meetings that meet any of the following descriptions, state the date and session of the 

Audit Committee meeting held, the discussed topics, the content of the objections, reservations or material 
recommendations of independent directors, the Audit Committee’s resolution, and how the company has 
responded to Audit Committee’s opinions:
(I) Matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act: None.
(II) Except for the preceding matters, any matter that has not been passed by the Audit Committee, but has 

been adopted with the approval of two-thirds or more of all board directors without having been passed 
by the audit committee: None.

II. Recusal of the independent directors from motions involving their interest, specify the names of the
independent directors, the content of the motions, the reason for recusal, and the participation in voting:
Please refer to “State of the Board of Directors”.

III. State of communication between independent directors, Chief Internal Auditors and CPAs (material matters,
methods and results of communication on the Company’s financial and business status).

Date of meeting Motion content Resolution result

Matters 
listed in 

Article 14-
5 of the 

Securities 
and 

Exchange 
Act

Matter that has 
not been 

passed by the 
Audit 

Committee, 
but has been 
adopted with 

the approval of 
two-thirds or 
more of all 

board directors 
without having 
been passed by 

the audit 
committee: 

None.

How the Board of 
Directors has 
responded to the 
opinions of the 
Audit Committee

3rd meeting of the 
1st term

January 14, 2022 1. Motion for the
independence
evaluation of the
Company’s CPAs.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
without objection and 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

After the chair 
consulted with all 
directors present at 
the meeting, the 
motion was passed 
without objection.

2. Motion for the fees of 
the Company’s CPAs

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
without objection and 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

After the chair 
consulted with all 
directors present at 
the meeting, the 
motion was passed 
without objection.

4th meeting of the 
1st term

March 22, 2022

1. Motion for the
Company’s 2021
report on the self-
evaluation of the
internal control and
the Statement on
Internal Control.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
without objection and 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 

V -

After the chair 
consulted with all
directors present at 
the meeting, the 
motion was passed 
without objection.
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resolution.

2. Motion for the
Company’s 2021
business report,
parent company only
financial report and
consolidated financial
report.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
without objection and 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 
resolution.

- -

After the chair 
consulted with all 
directors present at 
the meeting, the 
motion was passed 
without objection.

3. Motion for the
Company’s 2021
earnings distribution
scheme.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
without objection and 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 
resolution.

- -

After the chair 
consulted with all 
directors present at 
the meeting, the 
motion was passed 
without objection.

5th meeting of the 
1st term

May 3, 2022 1. Motion for the
Company’s
consolidated financial
report for 2022Q1.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

- -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

2. Motion for
amendment to the
Company’s “Articles
of Incorporation”.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

3. Motion for
amendment to the
Company’s “Rules of
Procedure for
Shareholders’
Meetings”.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

4. Motion for
amendment to the
Company’s
“Procedures for the
Acquisition and
Disposal of Assets”.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

6th meeting of the 
1st term

August 5, 2022 1. Motion for the
Company’s
consolidated financial
report for 2022Q2.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

- -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

2. Motion for the
Company’s
“Management Rules
for the Internal
Control System”.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

3. Motion for subsidiary
Le Long Vietnam
Co., Ltd. to increase
capital by surplus.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 

- -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.
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resolution.

7th meeting of the 
1st term

November 4, 2022 1. Motion for the
Company’s
consolidated financial
report for 2022Q3.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

- -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

2. Motion for the
formulation of the
2023 audit plan for
the Company’s
internal control
system.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

3. Motion for
amendment to the
Company’s
Management Rules
for the Internal
Control System.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

4. Motion for
amendment to the
Company’s
“Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles”
and “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice
Principles”.

After the chair consulted 
with all members
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

5. Motion for liability
insurance coverage of
directors.

After the chair consulted 
with all members 
present at the meeting, 
the motion was passed 
and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution.

V -

Approved by the 
chairman after 
consulting with all 
directors present at 
the meeting.

27



(III) Status of corporate governance operations, and any difference from the Ethical 
Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies and the reasons for such difference:

Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

I. Has the company established and 
disclosed its Corporate 
Governance Best-Practice 
Principles in accordance with the 
Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies?

The Company has formulated its 
own “Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles”, pursuant to the 
“Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies”. The Corporate 
Governance Best-Practice 
Principles were approved by the 
Board of Directors on October 30, 
2015 and are disclosed on the 
Company’s website and Market 
Observation Post System (MOPS).

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

II. Equity structure and
shareholders’ equity

(I) Has the company formulated
internal procedures regulated
to handle shareholders’
proposals, doubts, disputes,
and litigation matters and have
the procedures been
implemented accordingly?

(II) Does the company possess a 
list of the company’s major 
shareholders and a list of the 
ultimate controllers of its 
major shareholders?

(III) Has the company established 
and implemented the risk 
control and firewall 
mechanisms between the 
affiliates?

(I) The Company has designated 
special personnel responsible 
for stock affairs and
established a spokesperson and 
deputy spokesperson system to 
handle shareholder proposals. 
There are also legal advisors 
for consultation on legal 
issues.

(II) The Stock Agency Department 
of KGI Securities is 
responsible for handling the 
major shareholders and the list 
of the ultimate controllers of 
the major shareholders, as well 
as preparing related statements 
each month to be disclosed on 
the MOPS.

(III) The assets, financial 
operations and accounting of 
the affiliates are operated 
separately, and controlled and 
audited under the Company’s 
“Subsidiary Supervision 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

(IV) Has the company set up 
internal regulations to prohibit 
internal personnel from 
utilizing the undisclosed 
information to trade securities?

Operations”.
(IV) The Company has formulated 

its “Prevention of Insider 
Trading Management” to 
prevent insider trading. On 
September 9 and November 4, 
2022, training courses on 
“insider training” were offered 
to the Company’s managers, 
staff, and directors. The 
courses focused on insider 
training regulations, the 
objects and the elements of 
regulations, as well as other 
regulatory requirements. The 
courses lasted approximately 
30 minutes to an hour, and 59 
employees participated.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

III. Composition and duties of the
Board of Directors

(I) Has the board formulated a
diversity policy and specific
management objectives, and
have they been implemented?

(I) The Company’s “Corporate 
Governance Best-Practice 
Principles” specify that 
composition of the Board shall 
be based on the diversity 
policy. At present, there are 9 
directors in the Board, 
including 3 independent 
directors. Among the 9 
members of the 12th Board -
except for chairman Lee Yao-
Min and president Lee Jui-
Chun who are involved in 
management - directors Shi 
Hwei-Yow and Chiang Yen-
Hung, and independent 
director Wang Cho-Chiun are 
experts in legal affairs; 
independent director Yang 
Wen-Goang is an expert in 
patent value and technology 
management and research; 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

(II) Apart from the remuneration 
committee and audit 
committee, has the company 
voluntarily established other 
functional committees?

(III) Has the company established 
Regulations Governing the 
Board Performance Evaluation 
and its evaluation methods, 
and does the company conduct 
a performance evaluation each 
year, submit the performance 
evaluation results to the board 
of directors and use them as 
reference in determining 
remuneration for individual 
directors, and nomination for 
reappointment?

directors Chen Shou-Shin and 
Tsai Chang-Shou are familiar 
with financial affairs; and 
independent director Tsai Chi-
Neng is good at business 
management and finance. All 
directors possess professional 
backgrounds, professional 
abilities and experience. All 
Board members possess 
expertise in business 
management, legal affairs and 
accounting areas.

(II) We have formed an Audit 
Committee and Remuneration 
Committee as required by law, 
and corporate governance 
operations are overseen by 
each department according to 
their duties and 
responsibilities. We have not 
yet set up other functional 
committees, which may be set 
up according to the needs in 
the future.

(III) On January 17, 2020, the 
Company’s Board of Directors 
passed the “Rules for 
Performance Evaluation of 
Board of Directors and 
Functional Committees” and 
conducted performance 
evaluation of the Board of 
Directors. By doing so, we 
implement corporate 
governance while 
strengthening the functions of 
the Company’s Board of 
Directors. The results of the 
self-evaluation of the Board of 
Directors for 2022 were 
reported at the Board meeting 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

(IV) Does the company regularly 
assess the independence of its 
CPAs?

held on March 24, 2023. The 
score for the self-evaluation of 
the Board performance for 
2022 was 96; the score for the 
self-evaluation of the 
performance of the Board 
members for 2022 was 99; and 
the scores for the self-
evaluation of the performance 
of the Audit Committee and 
Remuneration Committee for 
2022 was 98 and 94, 
respectively. These evaluation 
results show that the operation 
of the Board of Directors as a 
whole is robust, meeting the 
spirit of corporate governance.

(IV) The Company evaluates the 
independence of the CPAs 
each year. By evaluation of the 
Company’s Finance
Department, both CPAs Hsu 
Chien-Yeh and Wu Sung-
Yuan of PwC Taiwan meet the 
Company’s independence 
evaluation criteria. The results 
were approved by the Board 
meeting held on January 14,
2022 and are adequate to serve 
as the Company’s CPAs. The 
evaluation items are as 
follows:
1. The accounting firm did

not issue any assurance
service report on the
effective operation of the
financial information
system designed or
assisted by it.

2. The CPAs were not
employed by the client or
audited entity to perform

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

routine work for which 
they received a fixed 
salary, or currently serve 
as directors.

3. Except for those subject to
special approval by law,
the CPAs or audit service
team did not represent the
Company in defending
legal cases or other
disputes with third parties.

4. The CPAs or the audit
service team members did
not advertise or brokered
shares or other securities
issued by the Company.

5. The CPAs did not provide
audit services to the
Company for 7
consecutive years.

6. The CPAs recused
themselves and did not
engage themselves in
matters in which they had
a direct or material indirect
interest that affected their
impartiality or
independence.

7. The accounting firm had
clear quality control
procedures, covering the
level and key points of the
audit process, the handling
of audit issues and
judgement method, quality
control review of
independence, and
management of risks.

8. The accounting firm
timely notified the Board
of Directors of any
significant issues and

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

development in terms of 
risk management, 
corporate governance, 
financial accounting and 
related risk controls.

IV. Has the company designated an
appropriate number of personnel
that specialize in corporate
governance affairs (including but
not limited to providing directors
with the information needed and
assist directors in complying
with the laws and regulations to
perform their duties, convention
of board meetings and
shareholders’ meetings,
preparation of board meeting and
shareholders’ meeting minutes,
etc.)?

The Company set up a head of 
corporate governance on May 3, 
2022, served by assistant general 
manager Liu Huang-Wei, 
responsible for the planning and 
implementing corporate 
governance-related affairs, 
providing information needed by 
directors to perform their duties, 
matters associated with meetings of 
the Board of Directors and 
shareholders, evaluating the 
performance of the Board of 
Directors, company registration and 
change in registration, and 
preparing the minutes of the Board 
of Directors meeting and 
shareholders’ meeting. From time to 
time, the head of corporate 
governance provides information 
needed by directors and heads of 
departments to perform their duties
as well as the latest regulatory 
development in relation to 
managing the Company and 
assisting directors and heads of 
departments in complying with the 
law. The head of corporate 
governance also plans internal 
education and training, including 
the promotion of the prevention of 
insider trading, human rights policy 
promotion and ethical management.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

V. Has the company established 
channels for communication with 
the stakeholders (including but 
not limited to shareholders, 
employees, customers, and 
suppliers), and set up a section 
for stakeholders on the official 
website of the company with a 
proper response to the concerns 
of the stakeholders on issues 
related to corporate social 
responsibility?

(I) We have a spokesperson and 
deputy spokesperson in place. 
The contract information of the 
Company is disclosed on the 
MOPS as required. To build 
sound communication channels 
with investors, we disclose 
financial and stock related 
information on the MOPS and 
its website.

(II) We have set up a 
“Stakeholders” area on the 
website to fully explain 
various stakeholder 
relationships. We have 
established different contact 
numbers and emails 
depending on the nature of 
each the stakeholder, handled 
by the responsible unit.

(III) According to the nature of the 
business, we have listed the 
important CSR issues of 
concern to our stakeholders 
and the frequency of 
immediate response to these 
issues:

Subject Issue of concern Issue response/
communication 
frequency

Employees Employee welfare
and wage
Talent cultivation
Workplace safety

Various employee
welfare policies
Periodic
employee training
Regular 
participation in 
occupational 
safety training 
and seminar

Customers Customer services
Supply chain 
management
In line with 
regulatory 
requirements

Occasional 
communication 
and discussion 
meetings with 
customers
Quality 
management 
certification

Suppliers Sustainable
development 
strategies
Supply chain 
management
Innovative
management

Procurement 
contract
Regular 
performance of 
supplier 
appraisals
Promotion of 

In line; no
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

environmental 
safety and health 
related 
management and 
promotion

Investors Sustainable
development 
strategies
Management 
performance
Corporate 
governance

Annual general 
meeting held
Investors
conference held
Continue to 
promote 
corporate 
governance
Regularly publish 
quarterly and 
annual financial 
reports

Government 
agency

Occupational safety 
and health
Environmental 
management

Regularly 
participate in 
environmental 
safety training to 
obtain related 
licenses
Formulate various
control 
procedures
including 
wastewater and 
hazard controls in 
accordance with 
the law

Contact persons are set up 
according to different 
identities and issues. For the 
contact information, please 
visit the Company’s website -
“Stakeholders”.

VI. Does the company engage a
professional stock transfer
agency to handle affairs related
to shareholders’ meetings?

The Company engages a 
professional stock affairs agency -
Stock Agency Department of KGI 
Securities, to handle the Company’s 
stock affairs. We have also
formulated the “Stock 
Management Rules” to regulate the 
related matters.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

VII. Information Disclosure
(I) Does the company have a

website set up where its
financial business, and
corporate governance
information is disclosed?

(II) Has the company adopted 
other information disclosure 
methods (e.g., establishing an 
English website, designating a 
responsible person for 
collecting and disclosing 
information of the company, 
substantiating the spokesman 
system, and upload the 
procedure of investors 
conference on its website, 
etc.)?

(III) Has the company published 
and reported its annual 
financial report within two 
months after the end of a fiscal 
year, and published and 
reported its financial reports 
for the first, second, and third 
quarters, as well as its 
operating status for each 
month before the specified 
deadline?

(I) The Company’s website is as 
follows:
http://www.KLB.com.twhttp://
www.KLB.com.tw, disclosing 
financial and business 
information.

(II) In addition to disclosing 
financial and business 
information on a regular basis 
and from time to time on the 
official website, information 
on corporate governance and 
investors conference can also 
be found on the website. We 
also have a spokesperson and 
deputy spokesperson to release 
information to the public.

(III) Although the Company did not 
publish or report its annual 
financial report within two 
months after the end of a fiscal 
year, this was done within the 
prescribed deadline. Moreover, 
the financial reports for the 
first, second, and third 
quarters, as well as the 
operating status for each month 
were published and reported 
before the specified deadline.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

VIII.Is there any important
information (including but not
limited to employee rights and
benefits, employee care, investor
relations, supplier relations,
stakeholder rights, the continuing
education of the directors,
implementation of risk
management policy and risk
measurement criteria, the pursuit

(I) Employee:
The Company treats its 
employees with integrity and 
protects their legal rights and 
interests in accordance with the 
Labor Standards Act.

(II) Employee care:
At Kung Long, we provide a 
stable welfare and sound 
education and training systems 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

of customer policy, and the 
purchase of liability insurance 
for the company’s directors) that 
is helpful in understanding the 
corporate governance operation 
of the company?

for employees, while also 
establishing a good 
relationship based on mutual 
trust and reliance. We provide 
subsidies for club activities, 
recreational activities, health 
examinations and medical 
consultations.

(III) Investor relations:
Our stock agent and 
spokesperson are responsible 
for shareholder inquiries and 
suggestions.

(IV) Supplier relations:
We establish partnerships with 
suppliers based on the 
principle of equality and 
mutual benefit to build a robust 
supply chain. Furthermore, we 
conduct audits on a regular 
basis and from time to time to
ensure the quality of supply.

(V) Stakeholder rights
Stakeholders may 
communicate with and give 
advice to the Company, 
ensuring their legal rights and 
interests.

(VI) Further education of directors:
All directors of the Company 
have professional backgrounds
in the industry and practical 
experience in business 
management. For information 
associated with further 
education of directors, please 
visit the MOPS.

(VII) Implementation of risk 
management policy and risk 
measurement criteria:
The Company has established 
various internal regulations in 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

37



Evaluation Item

The State Difference from the 
Ethical Corporate 

Management Best-
Practice Principles 
for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

risk management and 
evaluation.

(VIII) Customer policy 
implementation:
1. There are special personnel

designated in the Sales
Department to handle
customer problems. To
protect customer rights,
problems will be addressed
within a prescribed time
after being reported by the
customer.

2. We have taken out USD2
million product liability
insurance.

(IX) Liability insurance for 
directors:
The Board of Directors 
approved on November 4, 
2022 to take out USD15
million director liability 
insurance in 2023 for directors 
and officers.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

IX. Please explain the improvements made, based on the latest Corporate Governance Evaluation results
published by TWSE Corporate Governance Center, and propose enhancement items and measures for
any issues that are yet to be improved.
Improvement already made: We have formed an Audit Committee and established a head of corporate

governance to implement the spirt of corporate governance.
Matters to be enhanced first: Implement sustainable development and planning of greenhouse gas 

(GHG) inventory and verification.
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*Note: Further education of directors:

Title Name Date Organizer Name of course

Number of 
hours of 
further 

education

Director

Lee Yao-
Min

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Lee Yao-
Min

August 
11, 2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Lee Jui-
Chun

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Lee Jui-
Chun

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Shi Hwei-
Yow

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Shi Hwei-
Yow

May 9, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Enterprise Management Mindset 
From CSR to ESG 3 hours

Shi Hwei-
Yow

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Shi Hwei-
Yow

November 
7, 2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Net Zero Emissions, Carbon 
Neutrality, and Corporate Legal 
Compliance

3 hours

Chen, Shou-
Hsin

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Chen, Shou-
Hsin

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Tsai, 
Chang-Shou

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Tsai, 
Chang-Shou

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Chiang, 
Yen-Hung

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Chiang, 
Yen-Hung

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Independent 
director

Wang Cho-
Chun

April 22, 
2022

Taiwan Institute for 
Sustainable Energy

Taiwan New 30 Sustainable Net Zero 
Summit Forum - Serious Net Zero 
Sustainable Achievements for 2030

3 hours

Wang Cho-
Chun

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Yang Wen-
Goang

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Yang Wen-
Goang

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours

Tsai Chi-
Neng

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of Directors 3 hours

Tsai Chi-
Neng

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological Trends 3 hours
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(IV) Composition, duties and operation of the Remuneration Committee:
1. Composition: Pursuant to the provisions stipulated in the “Remuneration Committee

Charter”, the Company’s Board of Directors appointed independent directors MR.
Wang Cho-Chiun, Mr. Yang Wen-Goang, and Mr. Chen Chin-Chuan, on July 30,
2021, to serve as the members of the 5th Remuneration Committee.

Criteria

Identity

Name

Professional qualifications 
and experience

Independence

Number of other 
public 

companies in 
which the 

individual is 
concurrently 
serving as a 

Remuneration 
Committee 

member

Convener
Independent 

director
Wang Cho-Chun

Please refer to information 
disclosure of professional 
qualification of directors 
as well as the 
independence of 
independent directors on 
page 13.

In line with the 
provisions in Article 3 of 
the “Regulations 
Governing Appointment 
of Independent Directors 
and Compliance Matters”

-

Member
Independent 

director
Yang Wen-Goang

Please refer to information 
disclosure of professional 
qualification of directors 
as well as the 
independence of 
independent directors on 
page 13.

In line with the 
provisions in Article 3 of 
the “Regulations 
Governing Appointment 
of Independent Directors 
and Compliance Matters”

1

Member
Other

Chen Chin-Chuan

Department, Mechanical 
Engineering, Feng Chia 
University
Deputy Director, Central 
District Labor Inspection 
Office, Council of Labor 
Affairs, Executive Yuan

An external professional 
individual that does not 
have a direct or indirect 
interest in the Company, 
except for receiving 
remuneration that is 
approved by the Board of 
Directors

1

2. Duties: Pursuant to the “Remuneration Committee Charter”, the Remuneration
Committee shall exercise duty of care of a good manager and truthfully exercise 
the following duties. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the Board 
of Directors and submits the recommendations proposed to the Board for 
discussion:
(1) Establish and regularly review policy, system, standards and structures for the 

performance evaluation of the directors and company officers.
(2) Regularly evaluate and establish the remuneration to directors and company 

officers.

3. The status of the Remuneration Committee:
(1) The Remuneration Committee is run in accordance with the “Regulations Governing

the Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee of a 
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Company Whose Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei 
Exchange”, the Company’s Articles of Incorporation and the “Remuneration 
Committee Charter”.

(2) There are 3 members in the Remuneration Committee.
(3) Term of Office for Members: July 30, 2021 to July 29, 2024. In the most recent year, 

the 2022 Remuneration Committee held 
3 meetings (A); the qualifications and attendance of the members are as follows:

Title Name

Number of 
actual 

attendance 
(B)

Attendan
ce by 
proxy

Actual attendance rate 
(%)

(B/A)
Remark

Convener Wang Cho-
Chun 3 - 100 Re-elected on July 30, 2021

Member Yang Wen-
Goang 3 - 100 Re-elected on July 30, 2021

Member Chen Chin-
Chuan 3 - 100 Re-elected on July 30, 2021

Other information required:
I. The date, session, topic discussed and the resolution of the board meeting and handling of the resolution of 

the remuneration committee shall be specified:

Date of meeting Motion content Resolution result

Handling of the resolution 
of the remuneration 

committee by the Board of 
Directors

2nd meeting of the 
5th term

January 14, 2022

1. Reviewed the motion 
for the amount of
2020 employee
remuneration and
2021 year-end bonus
to the Company’s
officers and chief
auditor.

After the chair consulted with members 
present at the meeting, the motion was 
passed without objection and submitted 
to the Board of Directors for resolution.

Directors Lee Jui-Chun 
and Lee Jui-Chun 
recused themselves due 
to their conflict of 
interest in the motion. 
This motion was 
approved by the 
chairman after consulting 
with the remaining 
directors present at the 
meeting.

2. Reviewed the motion 
for the distribution of 
director
remuneration and
employee
remuneration for
2021 as well as the
estimated
distribution rates for
director
remuneration and
employee
remuneration for
2022 in accordance
with the Articles of
Incorporation.

After the chair consulted with members 
present at the meeting, the motion was 
passed without objection and submitted 
to the Board of Directors for resolution.

Directors Lee Jui-Chun 
and Lee Jui-Chun 
recused themselves due 
to their conflict of 
interest in the motion. 
This motion was 
approved by the 
chairman after consulting 
with the remaining 
directors present at the 
meeting.

3. Discussed the
motion for the
contents of the
remuneration and
payment for the
Company’s

This motion involved discussion of 
transportation fees for the Board of 
Directors and each special committee. 
Among the directors present at the 
meeting, members Wang Cho-Chiun 
and Yang Wen-Goang are independent 

Directors present at the 
meeting recused 
themselves due to 
conflict of interest in the 
motion that involved 
their own transportation 
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directors. directors and members of the Audit 
Committee and Remuneration 
Committee. These directors recused 
themselves due to conflict of interest as 
the motion involved their own 
transportation fees. After the chair 
consulted with members present at the 
meeting, the motion was passed 
without objection and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for resolution.

fees. The motion was 
approved by the 
chairman after consulting 
with the remaining 
directors present at the 
meeting.

4. Discussed the
motion for the
contents and
payments of the
remuneration to the
Company’s officers
and chief auditor.

After the chair consulted with members 
present at the meeting, the motion was 
passed without objection and submitted 
to the Board of Directors for resolution. 
Incident resolution: According to the 
Company’s HR Rules for promotion 
appraisals, if the change in salary for 
company officers after a promotion 
appraisal is within NT$3,000, it shall 
be adjusted subject to the Company’s
regulations, without being sent to the 
Remuneration Committee for review.

After the chair consulted 
with all directors present 
at the meeting, the 
motion was passed 
without objection. 
Incident resolution: 
According to the 
Company’s HR Rules for 
promotion appraisals, if 
the change in salary for 
company officers after a 
promotion appraisal is 
within NT$3,000, it shall 
be adjusted subject to the 
Company’s regulations, 
without being sent to the 
Remuneration 
Committee for review.

3rd meeting of the 
5th term

August 5, 2022

1. Discussed the motion 
for the Company’s
director and
supervisor
remuneration
distribution for 2021.

Members Wang Cho-Chiun and Yang 
Wen-Goang recused themselves due to 
conflict of interest in the motion that 
involved their own remuneration. After 
the chair consulted with members 
present at the meeting, the motion was 
passed without objection and submitted 
to the Board of Directors for resolution.

Some directors present at 
the meeting recused 
themselves due to a 
conflict of interest in the 
motion involving their 
own remuneration 
distribution. The motion 
was approved after the 
Chairman consulted with 
the remaining directors 
present at the meeting.

4th meeting of the 
5th term

November 4, 2022

1. Discussed the
motion for the
contents of the
remuneration and
payment for the
Company’s officers.

After the chair consulted with members 
present at the meeting, the motion was 
passed without objection and submitted 
to the Board of Directors for resolution.

Approved by the 
chairman after consulting 
with all directors present 
at the meeting.

II. If the board of directors declines to adopt or modify a recommendation from the remuneration committee,
the date, session, topic discussed and the resolution of the board meeting and handling of the resolution of
the remuneration committee shall be specified (if the remuneration package approved by the Board is better 
than the recommendation made by the committee, please specify the discrepancy and its reason): None.

III. For the resolutions of the Remuneration Committee, if any member expresses an objection or has a 
reservation which is recorded in writing, the date, session, content of the proposal, all members’ opinions,
and handling of members’ opinions shall be described: None.
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(V) State of the promotion of sustainable development operations and any difference from the Sustainable Development 
Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies, and the reasons for such difference:

Promotion item

Implementation Status Difference from 
the Sustainable 
Development 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

I. Has the company established a 
governance structure to promote 
sustainable development and set up a 
special (part-time) unit to promote 
sustainable development which is 
authorized by the board of directors to 
be handled by senior management and 
supervised by the board of directors?

The Sustainable Development Best-
Practice Principles were approved 
by resolution adopted by the Board 
of Directors on October 30, 2015. 
These Principles are used as the 
guidelines to promote sustainable 
development governance. The part-
time unit with primary 
responsibility for sustainable 
development is the President’s 
Office, responsible for planning and 
implementing related operations 
and reporting regularly to the Board 
of Directors.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

II. Has the company conducted risk
assessments of environmental, social
and corporate governance issues
pertaining to company operation in
accordance with the materiality
principle and established the relevant
risk management policy or strategy?

The boundary of the Company’s ris
k assessment includes the parent co
mpany in Taiwan and the subsidiari
es in Vietnam. We have yet to form
ulate a risk management policy for 
material environmental, social and 
corporate governance-related issue
s, which shall be formulated as nece
ssary in the future.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

III. Environmental issues
(I) Does the company have an 

appropriate environmental 
management system established in 
accordance with its industrial 
characteristics?

(II) Is the company committed to 
enhancing the utilization efficiency 
of resources and using renewable 

(I) The Company has passed ISO 
14001:2015 environmental 
management system 
verification. Through pollution 
prevention, process waste 
reduction and continuous 
improvement measures, we 
enhance the environmental 
protection performance and 
management efficiency. We 
also have dedicated 
management personnel to 
promote related systems.

(II) The Company abides by the 
relevant laws and regulations 
and there are dedicated 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Promotion item

Implementation Status Difference from 
the Sustainable 
Development 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

materials that have low impact on 
the environment?

(III) Does the company evaluate the 
potential risks and opportunities of 
climate change for businesses now 
and in the future, and take measures 
to address climate related issues?

(IV) Has the company has prepared 
statistics on greenhouse gas 
emissions, water consumption and 
total volume of waste for the past 
two years, and formulated policies 
for to save energy saving and reduce 
carbon, greenhouse gas, water use, 
or other waste management?

personnel and qualified 
vendors to handle wastewater, 
waste gas and waste 
management. We are 
committed to the utilization 
efficiency of various resources 
by continuing with the 
measures to recycle garbage, 
waste paper and waste 
recovery, dedicating to the 
environment.

(III) The Company has yet to 
formulate business continuity 
management (BCM) or 
climate-related risk 
countermeasures for the 
current and future potential 
risks and opportunities. These 
will be established as 
necessary in the future.

(IV) We have formulated the 
“Organizational GHG 
Inventory Management 
Procedures” served as the 
guidelines for collecting GHG-
related data. For carbon 
reduction policies, data of 
GHG emissions for the past 
two years, controlled waste 
recycling, domestic waste 
removal and water 
consumption, please refer to: 
Disbursements for 
environmental protection.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

IV. Social issues
(I) Does the company have the relevant 

management policies and procedures 
stipulated in accordance with the 
applicable laws and regulations and 
international conventions on human 
rights?

(I) The Company has formulated 
human rights policies in 
accordance with the 
“Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights” and the “ILO 
Declaration on Fundamental 
Principles and Rights at Work” 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Promotion item

Implementation Status Difference from 
the Sustainable 
Development 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

(II) Has the company established and 
implemented reasonable measures 
for employee benefits (including: 
remuneration, holidays and other 
benefits) that appropriately reflects 
the business performance or 
achievements in the employee 
remuneration?

(III) Has the company provided 
employees with a safe and healthy 
work environment and regularly 
provided safety and health education 
to employees?

to serve guidelines for human 
rights-related actions and 
behaviors. We also comply 
with applicable labor 
regulations and organize 
employee education and 
training to promote regulatory 
systems. To protect the basic 
rights and interests of 
employees, the appointment, 
dismissal and remuneration of 
personnel are handled in 
accordance with the 
Company’s Internal Control 
System Management Rules.

(II) In addition to employee 
welfare, further education and 
training that has been 
mentioned above, we also 
specify in the dividend policy 
that no less than 2% of the 
profits, if any, are distributed 
as remuneration to employees 
and annual leave is given to 
employees in accordance with 
the Labor Standards Act.

(III) Given the importance of the 
working environment and 
employee safety protection 
measures, we have passed ISO 
45001 environmental and 
occupational safety and health 
management system 
verification. With this system, 
we carry out major 
environmental considerations 
and occupational safety and 
health risk control. We also 
conduct education, training 
and promotion on workplace 
safety and health management 
on a regular basis, ensuring the 
safety and health of employees 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Promotion item

Implementation Status Difference from 
the Sustainable 
Development 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

(IV) Has the company established an 
effective career development 
training program for its employees?

(V) Does the company comply with the 
law and international standards with 
respect to customer health, safety 
and privacy, marketing and labeling 
in all products and services offered, 
and have the company implemented 
consumer or customer protection 
policies and complaint procedures?

(VI) Has the company implemented a 
supplier management policy that 
regulates suppliers’ conduct with 
respect to environmental protection, 
occupational safety and health or 
work rights/human rights issues, and 
does the company track suppliers’ 
performance on a regular basis?

in the workplace.
(IV) We establish training plans 

and rotation training for 
employees of all departments, 
so that employees will perform 
their duties in their current 
positions.

(V) The Company’s products have 
been certified by UL and VdS. 
At the same time, to ensure the 
quality of products and 
customer satisfaction, in 
addition to regular visit 
customers to gain their views, 
we also set up a section on the 
website dedicated to 
stakeholders, providing a 
channel for customers to ask 
questions, file complaints or 
give suggestions, which are 
responded by the related 
business supervisors. We 
uphold the ethical 
management principle and 
provide feedback to protect the 
rights and interests of 
customers.

(VI) We have formulated a 
“Sustainable Procurement 
Policy”. We conduct a regular 
supplier appraisal in 
accordance with the “Supplier 
Appraisal Management 
Procedures”. We stop working 
with suppliers with poor 
appraisal results and do not 
show improvements for 3 
consecutive months. With the 
“Sustainable Procurement 
Policy”, we hope to lead by 
example in order to give back 
to society, facilitating the 
development of a harmonious 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Promotion item

Implementation Status Difference from 
the Sustainable 
Development 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 
and the reasons for 

such difference

Yes No Summary

society.
V. Has the company prepared a 

sustainability report or a report on non-
financial information with reference to 
internationally accepted standards or 
guidelines? Are these reports supported 
by the assurance or opinion of a third-
party verification entity?

The Company does not prepare a 
sustainability report. Sustainable 
development-related contents are 
disclosed on the Company’s 
website and our environmental 
safety personnel periodically report 
environmental protection-related 
information. Information associated 
with sustainable development is 
disclosed in the annual report for 
shareholders.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

VI. If the company has formulated its own Sustainable Development Best-Practice Principles in
accordance with the “Sustainable Development Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies”, please describe the differences between its operation and the Principles:
The Company follows its own Sustainable Development Best-Practice Principles; there are no
significant differences.

VII. Other important information to help understand the promotion of sustainable development
implementation:
Upholding the concept of creating profits and benefitting employees, we work hard to reflect company
management on the employees and society, while at the same time advocating and promoting energy
conservation and green corporate environmental social responsibilities. In terms of social engagement,
social contribution and welfare and other social responsibility activities, we continue to invest in
resources and participate in activities and local activities held for the social disadvantaged, arts and
cultural groups. We take part in social welfare with practical actions, exerting the spirit of giving back
to society.
(I) We take part in the activities held by the “Kung Long Cultural Foundation” in promoting the

development of local culture. We are also involved in the promotion and sponsorship of arts 
and cultural activities. The main activities we took part in 2022 were:
Nantou County Government’s “2022 Lantern Activity”, Nantou County’s “Government and 
Private Book Donation” activity, Cao Xie Dun Ai Yue Choir “Double Tenth! Thanksgiving 
Concert”, Sponsorship in construction of a reading hall for the “Taiwan Reading Culture 
Foundation”, and other various cultural welfare-related activities held by the Foundation, with 
total participants of 11,700.

(II) In addition to investing in resources in the Foundation, we have also cared for the 
disadvantaged for a long period of time. Not only do we provide supplies to various public 
welfare organizations each year, we also make periodic donations to such as Nantou TFCF, 
Nantou 1995, Nantou Junior High School, and Nantou County Chiao-Jen Elementary School 
and other organizations and public welfare groups.

(III) In terms of community engagement, we have been long sponsoring neighboring activities as 
well as adopting plants within Nantou county. By utilizing the joint efforts of the Company 
and its employees as well as the community, we are able to create a better community 
environment.
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(VI) Performance of ethical corporate management and any differences from the 
Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies and reasons thereof:

Evaluation Item

The State Difference from 
the Ethical 
Corporate 

Management 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 
Companies and 
reasons thereof

Yes No Summary

I. Establishment of the ethical 
corporate management policy and 
action plans

(I) Has the company established an 
ethical corporate management policy 
approved by the board of directors? 
Does the policy clearly specify in its 
rules and external documents the 
ethical corporate management 
policies, and the commitment of the 
board of directors and the senior 
management to proactively 
implement the management policy?

(II) Has the company established a risk 
assessment mechanism against 
unethical acts, analyzed and assessed 
business activities within their 
business scope regularly that are at a 
higher risk of being involved in 
unethical acts, and established 
prevention programs covering at 
least the preventive measures 
specified in Paragraph 2, Article 7 
“Ethical Corporate Management 
Best-Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”?

(III) Has the company clearly provided 
the operating procedures, conduct 
guidelines, disciplines for violations 
and a grievance system in its 
program to prevent unethical acts 
and have these been implemented, 
and has the formally disclosed 

(I) The Company’s Ethical 
Corporate Management Policy 
was approved by the Board of 
Directors on October 30, 2015 
and is disclosed on the 
Company’s website and the 
MOPS.

(II) The Company’s “Ethical 
Corporate Management Policy” 
regulates 7 business practices, 
such as bribery, accepting bribes 
and making illegal political 
contributions. Aside from 
establishing comprehensive 
internal regulations to prevent 
unethical acts, we have set up 
employee mailboxes and contact 
means as grievance channels for 
stakeholders. Moreover, we 
provide employee education and 
training on a regular basis in 
order to promote an ethical 
corporate management culture.

(III) In terms of high risk areas of 
unethical acts, we emphasize the 
promotion on directors, officers 
and employees so that they fully 
understand the Company’s 
ethical corporate management 
policy. At the same time, we 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from 
the Ethical 
Corporate 

Management 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 
Companies and 
reasons thereof

Yes No Summary

program been regularly reviewed 
and amended?

encourage employees to report 
unethical acts and by 
conducting audits and 
inspections, we are able to 
prevent unethical acts.

II. Implementation of ethical corporate
management

(I) Has the company evaluated the 
integrity of all counterparties it has 
business relationships with? Are 
there any integrity clauses in the 
agreements entered into with 
business partners?

(II) Has the company set up a dedicated 
unit to promote ethical corporate 
management under the board of 
directors, and has such unit reported 
to the Board of Directors its 
execution in terms of ethical 
management policy and preventive 
programs against unethical conducts 
and the supervision status on a 
regular basis (at least once a year)?

(III) Has the company formulated a 
policy that prevents conflicts of 
interest and a channel that facilitates 
the reporting of conflicts of 
interests?

(I) The Company regulates that the 
employees shall treat customers 
and competitors fairly and shall 
not solicit gifts, rebates, 
hospitality or other improper 
benefits from customers with 
whom the Company does 
business.

(II) The part-time unit of the 
Company that promotes ethical 
corporate management is the 
President’s Office, responsible 
for planning and promoting the 
concepts of ethical corporate 
management and reporting 
regularly to the Board of 
Directors.

(III) The Company has not only 
established a recusal system for 
directors in the “Rules of 
Procedure for Board Meetings”, 
it has also established the 
“Prevention of Insider Trading 
Management” to prevent insider 
trading and other conflicts of 
interest. We also provide regular 
training on the applicable 
regulations to directors and 
employees.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from 
the Ethical 
Corporate 

Management 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 
Companies and 
reasons thereof

Yes No Summary

(IV) Has the company established an 
effective accounting system and 
internal control system in order to 
implement ethical management, and 
proposed relevant audit plans 
according to the assessment results 
of the risks of unethical conducts, 
and reviewed the compliance of the 
prevention of unethical conducts, or 
entrusted an accountant to carry out 
the review?

(V) Does the company organize internal 
or external training on a regular basis 
to maintain ethical management?

(IV) The Company’s internal control 
system keeps up with the times, 
and the auditors regularly audit 
the compliance situation of 
various systems. The CPAs also 
audit the implementation status 
of the Company’s internal 
control system.

(V) We continue to facilitate an 
ethical corporate management 
culture through various 
meetings. In 2022, we provided 
internal and external education 
and training on ethical corporate 
management issues (ethical 
corporate management 
regulatory compliance, 
accounting system and internal 
system, human rights 
declaration promotion courses). 
A total of 50 employees 
participated in these courses, 
totaling 50 hours.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

III. State of operations of the company’s
reporting system

(I) Has the company set up a specific 
reporting and incentive system, and 
established a channel to facilitate 
reporting and assigned dedicated 
personnel to receive reports?

(I) On November 4, 2016, the 
Company’s Board of Directors 
approved the “Handling of 
Unlawful and Unethical or 
Dishonest Conduct”. 
Additionally, we have set up a 
whistleblowing hotline and 
mailbox for internal and 
external parties to report a 
concern. We also keep full 
confidential the identity of the 

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from 
the Ethical 
Corporate 

Management 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 
Companies and 
reasons thereof

Yes No Summary

(II) Has the company implemented any 
standard operating procedures and/or 
subsequent measures after carrying
out an investigation or 
confidentiality measures for 
handling grievances filed?

(III) Has the company taken appropriate 
measures to protect the 
whistleblower from improper 
treatment as a result of 
whistleblowing?

whistleblower so that the Ethical 
Corporate Management Policy 
formulated by the Company is 
properly implemented, ensuring 
the legal rights of the 
whistleblower and the related 
parties.

(II) The Company receives reports 
in accordance with applicable 
regulations, with procedures for 
communication and response 
clearly defined. The relevant 
supervisors have the 
responsibility to keep the 
information of the parties 
involved confidential.

(III) During the Company’s 
whistleblowing process, the 
identification of the 
whistleblower will be kept 
confidential and will not be 
disciplined for whistleblowing.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.

IV. Information Disclosure Strengthening
Has the company disclosed the content
of its Ethical Corporate Management
Best-Practice Principles and the results
of implementation on its official
website and MOPS?

We have set up a website and 
promote the concept of 
“sustainability, honesty and practical 
value” in the Company’s profile and 
corporate vision. The Company has 
assigned special personnel to be 
responsible for company information 
collection and disclosure, which is 
available on the Company’s website. 
The Company also emphasizes the 
concept of ethical management on 
the annual report and external 
documents.

In line; no 
significant 
difference.
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Evaluation Item

The State Difference from 
the Ethical 
Corporate 

Management 
Best-Practice 
Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 
Companies and 
reasons thereof

Yes No Summary

V. If the company has formulated its own Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles in 
accordance with the “Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies”, please describe the differences between its operation and the Principles:
The Company follows its own Ethical Corporate Management Policy; there are no significant 
differences.

VI. Any other important information that may help understanding the performance of ethical corporate
management better: (e.g., review of an amendment to its Ethical Corporate Management Best-
Practice Principles):
The Company’s operations are in compliance with the Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act,
Business Entity Accounting Act, regulations promulgated for TPEx and TWSE listed companies and
other laws and regulations related to business practices as the basis for the implementation of ethical
management. Aside from the Audit Office that performs audits for each department according to the
audit plan, we also engage external auditors to regularly audit the implementation status of the
Company’s systems.
Matters of major decision-making, investment proposals and bank financing are implemented subject
to an evaluation made by the relevant responsible departments followed by approval of the Board of
Directors.

(VII) If the company has adopted corporate governance best-practice principles 
or related bylaws, disclose how these are to be searched:
The Company’s Board of Directors approved the “Corporate Governance 
Best-Practice Principles”, the “Ethical Corporate Management Policy” and 
the Sustainable Development Best-Practice Principles on October 30, 2015. 
Other regulations are disclosed on the Company’s website 
(www.KLB.com.tw).
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(VIII)Other significant information that will provide a better understanding of 
the state of the company’s implementation of corporate governance:

1. The Company’s officers regularly participate in training on corporate governance-
related courses. The further study and training provided in 2022 are as follows:

Title Name Date Organizer Name of course
Number 
of hours 

of further 
education

Chairman Lee Yao-
Min

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance 
Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of 
Directors

3 hours

August 11, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance 
Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological 
Trends

3 hours

President Lee Jui-
Chun

May 3, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance 
Association

Corporate Legal Compliance and 
Supervisory Obligations of 
Directors

3 hours

August 5, 
2022

Taiwan Corporate 
Governance 
Association

Mastering the Global Economic 
Situation and Technological 
Trends

3 hours

Assistant 
General 

Manager, 
Finance 

Department

Liu 
Huang-

Wei

November 
24, 2022 to 
November 
25, 2022

Accounting Research 
and Development 
Foundation

Continuous Training Class for 
Accounting Supervisors of Issuers' 
Securities Firms and Stock 
Exchanges

12 hours

Deputy of 
Accounting 
Supervisor

Hung, 
Hsiang-
Cheng

July 22, 
2022

Accounting Research 
and Development 
Foundation

ESG Information Disclosure 
Trends and Related Regulations 3 hours

July 25, 
2022

Accounting Research 
and Development 
Foundation

Prevention and Resolution of 
Withholding Tax Disputes Arising 
From Cross-border Transactions

3 hours

November 
23, 2022

Accounting Research 
and Development 
Foundation

Common Deficiencies in Financial 
Report Review and Practical 
Analysis of Important Internal 
Control Regulations

3 hours

Chief Auditor
Liao 
Chi-
Neng

September 
28, 2022

Computer Audit 
Association of the 
Republic of China

Practice Class for Collecting Fraud 
Data in the Database 7 hours

November 
21, 2022

Internal Audit 
Association of the 
Republic of China

How to Adjust the Internal Control 
System to Respond to the New 
ESG Standards

6 hours

Audit
Representative

Shih 
Mei-Yu

September 
20, 2022

Accounting Research 
and Development 
Foundation

Internal Auditors' Audit and 
Control Practices for "Information 
Security”

6 hours

November 
16, 2022

Internal Audit 
Association of the 
Republic of China

Notes and Practical Analysis on 
“Shareholders’ Meeting” and 
“Company Act”

6 hours
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2. The environmental safety training of the Company’s personnel and related licenses
obtained in 2022 are as follows:

Date Organizer Name of course or licenses obtained

Number of 
hours of 
further 

education

Department

July 9, 
2020 SAHTECH On-the-job education and training for 

supervisors of occupational safety and health
Within two 

years President’s Office

July 17, 
2020 Taiwan Changchun Group Training for fire prevention management staff Within three

years
Plant Affairs 
Department

July 26, 
2020

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

Education and training on safety and health 
for supervisors of organic solvent operations

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

July 28, 
2020

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

Education and training on safety and health 
for supervisors of organic solvent operations

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

September 
21, 2020 Taiwan Boiler Association Training for fire prevention management staff Within three

years
Plant Affairs 
Department

November 
26, 2020

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

Health and Safety of Specific Chemical 
Substance Operation Supervisors
On-the-job training

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

March 16, 
2021

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

On-the-job education and training on labor 
safety and health for first responders

Within two 
years

Quality Research 
Department

August 19, 
2021

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

On-the-job education and training on safety 
and health for supervisors of dust work

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

October 15, 
2021 Taiwan Boiler Association Education and training on safety and health

for supervisors of anoxic operations
Within three 

years
Plant Affairs 
Department

October 30, 
2021

Labor Safety & Health 
Management Association

On-the-job education and training on safety 
and health for supervisors of lead operations

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

November 
18, 2021 Taiwan Boiler Association

Education and training on safety and health 
for forklift operators with a load of one ton or 
more

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

January 10, 
2022

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

On-the-job education and training on labor 
safety and health for first responders

Within three 
years

Export Sales 
Department

March 11, 
2022 Taiwan Boiler Association

Education and training on safety and health 
for forklift operators with a load of one ton or 
more

Within three 
years

Production 
Management 
Department
Plant Affairs 
Department

April 8, 
2022

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

On-the-job education and training on labor 
safety and health for first responders

Within three 
years President’s Office

April 25, 
2022

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

On-the-job education and training on safety 
and health for supervisors of specific 
chemical operations

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

April 25, 
2022

Industrial Safety and Health 
Association of the R.O.C

Education and training on safety and health 
for supervisors of organic solvent operations

Within three 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department

August 4, 
2022 Taiwan Boiler Association

Education and training on safety and health 
for forklift operators with a load of one ton or 
more

Within three 
years

Production 
Management 
Department
Plant Affairs 
Department

September 
20, 2022

Nantou County 
Government

On-the-job education and training for 
supervisors of occupational safety and health

Within two 
years

Domestic Sales 
Department

October 12, 
2022

Nantou County 
Government

Supervisors of type A labor safety and health 
operations

Within two 
years President’s Office
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Date Organizer Name of course or licenses obtained

Number of 
hours of 
further 

education

Department

December 
14, 2022

Environmental Protection 
Personnel Training Institute 
of Environmental 
Protection Department, 
Executive Yuan

Class B air pollution prevention technician Within two 
years

Plant Affairs 
Department
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(IX) Implementation of an internal control system:
1. Statement of Internal Control System:

Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd.
Internal Control System Statement

Date: March 24, 2023
The Company declares the following concerning its internal control system during the fiscal year 2022, based 
on the findings of a self-assessment:
I. The Company acknowledges that the establishment, implementation and maintenance of the internal 

control system are the responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Company Officer of the Company. 
As such, the Company has established the aforementioned system. Its objectives are to provide reasonable 
assurance for the effectiveness and efficiency of its operations (including profitability, performance, and 
the guarantee of assets safety, etc.), reliable, timely and transparent reporting, and conformity to 
applicable rules, regulations, and laws.

II. The internal control system has its inherent limitations. Regardless of how exhaustive the design is, an
effective internal control system can only provide reasonable assurance for the achievement of the
aforementioned three objectives. Further, due to changes in the environment or circumstances, the
effectiveness of the internal control system may vary accordingly. Nevertheless, the Company’s internal
control system has set up a self-supervision mechanism. Once a deficiency has been identified, the
Company will take immediate remedial actions.

III. In accordance with the determining criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control system prescribed
in the “Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies”
(hereafter the “Regulations”), the Company evaluated the effectiveness of the design and execution for its
internal control system. The determining criteria of the internal control system prescribed in the
“Regulations” are based on the process of management control, dividing the internal control system into
five composite factors:
1. Control of the environment, 2. Risk evaluation, 3. Control of operations, 4. Information and
communication, and 5. Supervision.
The composition of each element includes several items. Please refer to the “Regulations” for the 
aforesaid items.

IV. The Company has adopted the aforementioned determining criteria of the internal control system to
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and execution for its own internal control system.

V. Based on the evaluation result of the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that its internal control 
system (including the supervision and management of its subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2021, 
including understanding the achievement for the objectives of effectiveness and efficiency of its 
operations, reliability, timeliness and transparency of its reporting and compliance with the applicable law
and regulations, was effective in design and execution, and can be reasonably assured of the achievement 
of the aforementioned objectives.

VI. This Statement will serve as the main content of the Company’s annual report and prospectus and will be
made available to the public. If the aforesaid public content has any illegal events including falseness or
concealment etc., it shall be liable to the legal liabilities stipulated in Article 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.

VII. This Statement was approved by the Board of Directors on March 24, 2023. Among the nine attending
directors, none expressed objections, and all agreed with the Statement.

Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd.

Chairman: Lee Yao-Min   Signature

President: Lee Jui-Chun   Signature
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2. CPA audit report, where a CPA was engaged to carry out a special audit of
the internal control system: None.

(X) If there has been any legal penalty against the company or its internal 
personnel, or any disciplinary penalty by the company against its internal 
personnel for violation of the internal control system in the most recent fiscal 
year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the 
annual report, where the result of such penalty could have a material effect 
on shareholder equity or securities prices, the annual report shall disclose the 
penalty, the main shortcomings, and condition of improvement:
None.

(XI) In the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date 
of publication of the annual report, important resolutions adopted at the 
shareholders’ meeting or board of directors meeting:
1. Important resolutions adopted at the 2022 shareholders’ meeting and
implementation:

Date of meeting Important resolutions and implementation

June 17, 2022

Important Resolution Implementation Status
1. Ratification of the motion for the 2021

statement of accounts.
Motion approved by the shareholders’ meeting 
and has been announced on the MOPS and the 
Company’s website.

2. Ratification of the motion for the 2021
earnings distribution.

Bonus to shareholders resolved-NT$7 per share 
in cash. The ex-dividend base date was set on 
August 23, 2022 and cash dividends were fully 
paid on September 12, 2022.

3. Motion to discuss the amendment to the
Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”,
“Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ 
Meetings”, and “Procedures for the
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”.

Motion approved by the shareholders’ meeting 
and has been announced on the MOPS and the 
Company’s website.

2. Important resolutions adopted at the Board meeting between 2022/01/01-
2023/05/03

Board of Directors
meeting Motion content and subsequent handling

Matters listed 
in Article 14-
3 of the 
Securities and 
Exchange Act

Independent 
directors 
who 
expressed 
any 
objection or 
reservation

4th meeting of the 
12th term

January 14, 2022

1. Passed the motion for the independence evaluation of the Company’s
CPAs. V -

2. Passed the motion for the fees of the Company’s CPAs. V -
3. Passed the motion for the Company to apply for a loan facility from a

bank for operational turnover. - -
4. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2022 operating plan and budget. - -
5. Passed the motion for the distribution of director remuneration and V -
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Board of Directors
meeting Motion content and subsequent handling

Matters listed 
in Article 14-
3 of the 
Securities and 
Exchange Act

Independent 
directors 
who 
expressed 
any 
objection or 
reservation

employee remuneration for 2021 as well as the estimated distribution rates 
for director remuneration and employee remuneration for 2022 in 
accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

6. Passed the motion for the amount of 2020 employee remuneration and
2021 year-end bonus to the Company’s officers and chief auditor. V -

7. Passed the motion for the contents of the remuneration and payment for
the Company’s directors. V -

8. Passed the motion for the contents of the remuneration and payment for
the Company’s officers and chief auditor. V -

Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

5th meeting of the 
12th term

March 22, 2022

1. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2021 report on the self-evaluation
of the internal control and the Statement on Internal Control. V -

2. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2021 business report, parent
company only financial report, and consolidated financial report. - -

3. Passed the motion for the distribution of 2021 employees’ remuneration 
and directors’ remuneration. V -

4. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2021 earnings distribution scheme. - -
5. Passed the motion for the time, venue, and motions for the Company’s

2022 general shareholders’ meeting. - -
Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

6th meeting of the 
12th term

May 3, 2022

1. Passed the motion for the appointment of the corporate governance
director. - -

2. Passed the motion for the Company’s consolidated financial report for the
first quarter of 2022. - -

3. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s “Articles of 
Incorporation”. V -

4. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s “Rules of Procedure
for Shareholders’ Meetings”. V -

5. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s “Procedures for the 
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”. V -

6. Passed the motion for the new motions for the 2022 general shareholders’ 
meeting. - -

Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

7th meeting of the 
12th term

August 5, 2022

1. Passed the motion for the Company’s consolidated financial report for
the second quarter of 2022. - -
2. Passed the motion for the Company’s “Management Rules for the

Internal Control System”. V -
3. Passed the motion for subsidiary Le Long Vietnam Co., Ltd. to increase

capital from earnings. - -
4. Passed the motion for the 2021 directors’ remuneration payment. V -
Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
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Board of Directors
meeting Motion content and subsequent handling

Matters listed 
in Article 14-
3 of the 
Securities and 
Exchange Act

Independent 
directors 
who 
expressed 
any 
objection or 
reservation

Resolution: Passed by all directors present
8th meeting of the 

12th term
November 4, 2022

1. Passed the motion for the Company’s consolidated financial report for
the third quarter of 2022. - -
2. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2023 audit plan for the internal

control system. V -
3. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s Management Rules

for the Internal Control System. V -
4. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s “Corporate

Governance Best-Practice Principles” and “Corporate Social
Responsibility Best-Practice Principles”.

V -

5. Passed the motion for directors’ liability insurance coverage. V -
Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

9th meeting of the 
12th term

January 13, 2023

1. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s “Corporate
Governance Best-Practice Principles”. V -
2. Passed the motion for the independence and suitabilityevaluation of the
Company’s certifying CPAs.

V -
3. Passed the motion for the Company’s application for loan facilities from

banks for operational turnover. - -
4. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2023 business plan and budget. - -
5. Passed the motion for the amounts of the Company’s directors'

remuneration and employees' remuneration for 2022 and the estimated
distribution ratios for 2023.

V -
6. Passed the motion for the amount of 2021 employees' remuneration and

2022 year-end bonus to the Company’s managers and chief auditor. V -
7. Passed the motion for the contents of the remuneration and payment for

the Company’s directors. V -
8. Passed the motion for the contents of the remuneration and payment for

the Company’s managers and chief auditor. V -
Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

10th meeting of the 
12th term

March 24, 2023

1. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2022 report on the self-evaluation
of the internal control and the Statement on Internal Control. V -

2. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2022 business report, parent 
company only financial report, and consolidated financial report. - -

3. Passed the motion for the distribution of 2022 employees’ remuneration
and directors’ remuneration. V -

4. Passed the motion for the Company’s 2022 earnings distribution scheme. - -
5. Passed the motion for the time, venue, and motions for the Company’s

2023 general shareholders’ meeting. - -
Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

11th meeting of the 
12th term

May 3, 2023

1. Passed the motion for the Company’s consolidated financial report for the
first quarter of 2023. - -

2. Passed the motion for amendment to the Company’s “Corporate V -
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Board of Directors
meeting Motion content and subsequent handling

Matters listed 
in Article 14-
3 of the 
Securities and 
Exchange Act

Independent 
directors 
who 
expressed 
any 
objection or 
reservation

Governance Best-Practice Principles” and “Sustainable Development 
Best-Practice Principles”.

3. Passed the motion for the Company’s the issuance rules of restricted stock 
awards, it is approved to cancel  the shares while employees granted of 
restricted stock awards  fail to meet vesting conditions and fix the record 
date of capital reduction.

- -

Opinions expressed by independent directors: None.
How the Company responded to such opinions: None.
Resolution: Passed by all directors present

(XII) In the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of 
publication of the Annual Report, if any director has expressed an objection to 
an important resolution passed by the Board meeting with the objection 
recorded in writing, disclose the principal content thereof:
None.

(XIII) A summary of resignations of the company’s chairman, president, head of 
accounting, head of finance, chief internal auditor, head of corporate 
governance, and chief R&D officer in the most recent year and up to the 
date of publication of the Annual Report:
None.

V. Information on the professional fees of the attesting CPAs:

Name of 
accounting 

firm
Name of CPA Audit period Audit fee Non-audit fee Total Remark

PwC Taiwan
Hsu Chien-Yeh

2022.01.01-2022.12.31
NT$2,160 
thousand

NT$560 
thousand

NT$2,720 
thousand

None
Wu Sung-Yuan

(I) Non-audit fees were for the provision of income tax audit and transfer-pricing 
consulting services for the profit-making business.

(II) Audit fee for the change of accounting firms paid in the year is less than the 
previous year, the decreased amount, percentage and reason of the audit fee shall 
be disclosed: None.

(III) Over 10% decrease in audit fees on a year-to-year basis, the decreased amount, 
percentage and reason of the audit fee shall be disclosed: None.
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VI. Information on Replacement of Certifying CPAs: None.

VII. Where the company’s chairman, president, or any company officer in
charge of finance or accounting matters has in the most recent year held a
position at the accounting firm of its certified public accountant or at an
affiliated enterprise: None.
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VIII.Any transfer of equity interests and/or pledge of or change in equity
interests by a director, company officer, or shareholder with a stake of
more than 10 percent in the most recent fiscal year or during the current
fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report:
(I) Any transfer of equity interests and/or pledge of or change in equity interests

by a director, company officer, or shareholder with a stake of more than 10 
percent:

Unit: thousand shares

Title Name
2022 2023 up to April 15

Increase 
(decrease) in 
shareholding

Increase 
(decrease) in 

pledged shares

Increase 
(decrease) in 
shareholding

Increase 
(decrease) in 

pledged shares
Chairman Lee Yao-Min - - - -
Director Lee Jui-Chun (2,774) - 47 -
Director Shi Hwei-Yow - - - -

Director
Mao Long 

Investments Limited 20 - - -

Representative: 
Chen Shou-Shin - - - -

Director
Mao Long 

Investments Limited 20 - - -

 Representative: 
Tsai, Chang-Shou - - - -

Director
Mao Long 

Investments Limited 20 - - -

 Representative: 
Chiang, Yen-Hung - - - -

Independent 
director Wang Cho-Chun - - - -

Independent 
director Yang Wen-Goang - - - -

Independent 
director Tsai Chi-Neng - - - -

Vice President Yang Jui-Hsiang 7 - 3 -
Vice president, 
Management 
Department

Lee Jui-Ting 2 - 2 -

Assistant General 
Manager, Finance 

Department
Liu Huang-Wei 3 - 3 -

Assistant General 
Manager, Quality 

Research 
Department

Chen Chien-Lang 3 - 3 -

Assistant General 
Manager, Export 
Sales Department

Hung Chieh-Yu 3 - 1 -
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Assistant General 
Manager, 

Domestic Sales 
Department

Chen Chih-
Hsiung 2 - 2 -

(II) Information on the transfer of the shares of counter-parties of the equity 
transfer or equity pledge are related parties who are directors, managers and 
shareholders with a stake of more than 10 percent: None.

(III) Information on the transfer of the shares of counter-parties of the equity 
pledge are related parties who are directors, managers and shareholders with a 
stake of more than 10 percent: None.
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IX. Relationship information, if the company’s top 10 shareholders are
related parties or relatives within the second degree of kinship:

April 15, 2023

Name

Number of shares 
held

Shareholding of 
Spouses and Minor 

Children

Total number of 
shares held in the 

name of others

Names and relationships 
between the top ten 
shareholders including 
spouses, second degree of 
kinship of another. Remark

Number of 
shares

Shareholding 
ratio (%)

Number of 
shares

Shareholding 
ratio (%)

Number 
of shares

Shareholdin
g ratio (%)

Title (or 
name) Relationship

Fubon Life 
Insurance Co., Ltd.

Person in charge: 
Tsai Ming-Hsing

6,500,000 7.92 - - - - None - -

0 0.00 - - - - None - -

Lee Jui-Chun 5,857,802 7.14 2,061,000 2.51 2,998,000 3.65

Lee Yao-
Min

Father

-

Tsai
Hsiang-Pei

Mother

Lee Jui-
Ting

Brother

Lee 
Chung-
Chen

Son

Tsai Hsiang-Pei 3,960,770 4.83 3,344,951 4.08 - -

Lee Yao-
Min

Husband

-

Lee Jui-
Chun

Son

Lee Jui-
Ting

Son

Lee 
Chung-
Chen

Grandchild

Lee Jui-Ting 3,498,089 4.26 - - - -

Lee Yao-
Min

Father

-
Tsai

Hsiang-Pei
Mother

Lee Jui-
Chun

Brother

Lee Yao-Min 3,344,951 4.08 3,960,770 4.83 - -

Tsai
Hsiang-Pei

Wife

-

Lee Jui-
Chun

Son

Lee Jui-
Ting

Son

Lee 
Chung-
Chen

Grandchild
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Name

Number of shares 
held

Shareholding of 
Spouses and Minor 

Children

Total number of 
shares held in the 

name of others

Names and relationships 
between the top ten 
shareholders including 
spouses, second degree of 
kinship of another. Remark

Number of 
shares

Shareholding 
ratio (%)

Number of 
shares

Shareholding 
ratio (%)

Number 
of shares

Shareholdin
g ratio (%)

Title (or 
name) Relationship

Min Chung 
Investments Co., 
Ltd.

Person in charge: 
Lee Jui-Chun

2,998,000 3.65 - - - - None - -

5,857,802 7.14 2,061,000 2.51 2,998,000 3.65

Lee Yao-Min Father

-

Tsai Hsiang-
Pei

Mother

Lee Jui-
Ting

Brother

Lee 
Chung-
Chen

Son

Standard Chartered 
as custodian of LGT 
Bank

2,034,210 2.48 - - - - None - -

Lee Chung-Chen 1,991,000 2.42 - - - -

Lee Yao-
Min Grandfather

-Tsai
Hsiang-Pei Grandmother

Lee Jui-
Chun Father

Citibank as custodian 
of Yuanta Securities 
(Hong Kong) 
Company Limited

1,971,864 2.40 - - - - None - -

Mao Long 
Investments Limited

Person in charge: 
Tsai Hsiang-Pei

1,884,469 2.30 - - - - None - -

3,960,770 4.83 3,344,951 4.08 - -

Lee Yao-
Min

Husband

-

Lee Jui-
Chun

Son

Lee Jui-
Ting

Son

Lee 
Chung-
Chen

Grandchild
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X. The total number of shares and total equity stake held in any single 
enterprise by the company, its directors, company officers, and any 
companies controlled either directly or indirectly by the company:

Unit: thousand shares

Investment business
(Long-term investment accounted for 

using the equity method)

The Company’s 
investment

Investment by 
directors, company 

officers and any 
companies controlled 

either directly or 
indirectly by the 

company

Comprehensive 
investment

Number of 
shares

Shareholding 
ratio

Number of 
shares

Shareholding 
ratio

Number of 
shares

Shareholding
ratio

Le Long Vietnam Co., Ltd. 32,000 100% - - 32,000 100%
Kung Long International Ltd. 2,170 100% - - 2,170 100%
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Four. Capital Raising

I. Company capital and shares
(I)Source of share capital:

Year/ 
month

Issue 
price

Authorized share capital Paid-up capital Remark

Number of 
shares Amount (NT$) Number of 

shares
Amount 
(NT$)

Source of share 
capital

Offset by 
any 

property 
other than 

cash

Other

January 
1990 1,000 8,160 8,160,000 8,160 8,160,000 Registration of 

establishment - -

October 
1990 1,000 29,880 29,880,000 29,880 29,880,000 Capital increase by 

cash - -

May 1994 1,000 60,000 60,000,000 60,000 60,000,000 Capital increase by 
cash - -

October 
1997 1,000 120,000 120,000,000 120,000 120,000,000 Capital increase by 

cash - -

May 1999 10 16,000,000 160,000,000 16,000,000 160,000,000
Capital increase 
from earnings
NT$40,000,000

- -

July 1999 10 36,000,000 360,000,000 36,000,000 360,000,000
Capital increase for 
merger
NT$200,000,000

-
(88) Tai-Cai-Zhen 
(I) Letter 
No.63141

September 
2000 10 54,700,000 547,000,000 40,680,000 406,800,000

Capital increase from 
earnings
NT$46,800,000

-
(89) Tai-Cai-Zhen 
(I) Letter 
No.70273

May 2001 10 54,700,000 547,000,000 46,300,000 463,000,000
Capital increase from 
earnings
NT$56,200,000

-
(90) Tai-Cai-Zhen 
(I) Letter 
No.121889

August 
2002 10 54,700,000 547,000,000 51,230,000 512,300,000

Capital increase from 
earnings
NT$49,300,000 
(including employee 
bonus NT$3,000,000)

-
(91) Tai-Cai-Zhen 
(I) Letter 
No.128147

August 
2002 10 62,000,000 620,000,000 58,230,000 582,300,000

Capital increase by 
cash
NT$70,000,000

-
Tai-Cai-Zhen (I) 
Letter 
No.0910128148

August 
2003 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 64,353,000 643,530,000

Capital increase from 
earnings
NT$61,230,000
(including employee 
bonus 
NT$3,000,000)

-
Tai-Cai-Zhen (I) 
Letter 
No.0920131075

October 
2005 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 66,000,000 660,000,000

Capital increase from 
earnings
NT$16,470,000

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09401198960

May 2008 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 66,663,877 666,638,770
Company bonds 
converted to shares 
for NT$6,638,770

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09701123260

September 
2008 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 67,138,874 671,388,740

Company bonds 
converted to shares 
for NT$4,749,970

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09701234940

May 2010 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 73,827,274 738,272,740
Company bonds 
converted to shares for 
NT$66,884,000

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09901091450
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Year/ 
month

Issue 
price

Authorized share capital Paid-up capital Remark

Number of 
shares Amount (NT$) Number of 

shares
Amount 
(NT$)

Source of share 
capital

Offset by 
any 

property 
other than 

cash

Other

June 2010 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 73,974,812 739,748,120
Company bonds 
converted to shares 
for NT$1,475,380

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09901122280

October 
2010 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 74,683,001 746,830,010

Company bonds 
converted to shares 
for NT$7,081,890

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09901226710

December 
2010 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 75,937,345 759,373,450

Company bonds 
converted to shares for 
NT$12,543,440

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.09901282230

May 2011 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 79,885,055 798,850,550
Company bonds 
converted to shares for 
NT$39,477,100

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.10001088080

June 2011 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 80,365,890 803,658,900
Company bonds 
converted to shares 
for NT$4,808,350

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.10001126230

October 
2011 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 81,501,771 815,017,710

Company bonds 
converted to shares for 
NT$11,358,810

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.10001228140

October 
2011 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 81,585,394 815,853,940

Company bonds 
converted to shares 
for NT$836,230

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.10001241580

December 
2015 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 81,785,394 817,853,940

Issuance of restricted 
stock awards by 
NT$2,000,000

-
Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.10401275750

December 
2020 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 82,068,394 820,683,940

Issuance of restricted 
stock awards by 
NT$2,830,000

Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.10901243570

March 2021 10 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 82,066,394 820,663,940
Issuance of restricted 
stock awards by 
NT$20,000

Jing-Shou-Shang-
Zi Letter 
No.11001057910

April 15, 2023

Type of shares
Authorized share capital

RemarkOutstanding shares 
(Note)

Unissued 
shares Total

Ordinary shares 82,066,394 17,933,606 100,000,000 -
Note: Current listed outstanding. The Company was listed on January 22, 2002.
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(II) Shareholder structure:
April 15, 2023

Shareholder 
structure
Amount

Govern
ment 

agency

Financial 
institution

Other legal 
entities Individual

Foreign 
institutions 

and 
foreigners

Total

Number of 
people

- 5 283 14,579 144 15,011

Number of 
shares held

- 8,766,000 11,130,884 47,835,305 14,334,205 82,066,394

Shareholding 
ratio

- 10.68% 13.56% 58.29% 17.47% 100%

Note: Shareholding ratio of the Company’s investment in China: 0%.

(III) Dispersion of equity ownership:
April 15, 2023

Shareholding classification Number of 
shareholders

Number of 
shares held

Shareholding 
ratio %

1 ~ 999 7,116 364,023 0.44
1,000 ~ 5,000 6,729 12,046,764 14.68
5,001 ~ 10,000 606 4,823,499 5.88

10,001 ~ 15,000 194 2,466,007 3.00
15,001 ~ 20,000 102 1,875,625 2.29
20,001 ~ 30,000 94 2,421,587 2.95
30,001 ~ 40,000 32 1,152,994 1.41
40,001 ~ 50,000 30 1,387,732 1.69
50,001 ~ 100,000 48 3,285,941 4.00

100,001 ~ 200,000 20 2,795,514 3.41
200,001 ~ 400,000 13 3,203,050 3.90
400,001 ~ 600,000 7 3,299,541 4.02
600,001 ~ 800,000 5 3,454,331 4.21
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 3 2,639,631 3.22

Over 1,000,001 shares 12 36,850,155 44.90
Total 15,011 82,066,394 100.00
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(IV) List of major shareholders:
April 15, 2023

Shares
Name of major shareholder

Number 
of shares 

held

Shareholdi
ng ratio 

(%)
Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 6,500,000 7.92
Lee Jui-Chun 5,857,802 7.14
Tsai Hsiang-Pei 3,960,770 4.83
Lee Jui-Ting 3,498,089 4.26
Lee Yao-Min 3,344,951 4.08
Min Chung Investments Co., Ltd. 2,998,000 3.65
Standard Chartered as custodian of LGT 
Bank 2,034,210 2.48

Lee Chung-Chen 1,991,000 2.42
Citibank as custodian of Yuanta Securities 
(Hong Kong) Company Limited 1,971,864 2.40

Mao Long Investments Limited 1,884,469 2.30
Total 34,041,155 41.48
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(V) Share prices for the last two years, together with the company’s net worth per 
share, earnings per share, dividends per share, and related information:

Unit: NT$
Year

Item 2021 2022 2023 March 31 
(Note 1)

Market 
price per 

share

Highest 160.50 147.00 144.00
Lowest 136.00 130.00 136.00
Average 143.64 137.84 139.79

Net value 
per share

Before distribution 46.14 52.94 54.31

After distribution 39.14 52.94
(Note 2)

Earnings 
per share

Weighted average number of 
shares (thousand shares) 81,829 81,879 81,908

Earnings 
per share

Before 
retrospective 
adjustment

7.58 10.77 1.48

After retroactive 
adjustment

Dividend 
per share

Cash dividends 7.00 10.00
(Note 2)

Stock 
grants

Stock dividends 
from retained 
earnings
Stock dividends 
from capital surplus

Accumulated unpaid 
dividends

Return on 
investment 

analysis

P/E ratio 18.95 12.80
P/D ratio 20.52 13.78
Cash dividend yield 4.87% 7.25%

Note 1: Net value per share and earnings per share are data reviewed by 
CPAs as of 2023Q1 and the remaining are data as of March 31, 
2023.

Note 2: The 2022 earnings distribution scheme was proposed by the Board 
of Directors on March 24, 2023, but has not yet been resolved by 
the shareholders’ meeting.
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(VI) The Company’s dividend policy and implementation status and an 
expected material change in dividend policy:
1. Dividend policy:

According to the provisions in Articles 22 and 22-1 of the Articles of
Incorporation:

Article 22:
To motivate the employees and management team, if the Company records 
a profit (defined as gains before tax after deducting remuneration to 
employees and directors), not less than 2% of the profit shall be distributed 
as employee remuneration and not less than 5% of the profit shall be 
distributed as director remuneration.
When employee remuneration is distributed in the form of stock or cash, a 
resolution shall be adopted by approval of two-thirds of the directors at a 
meeting attended by more than half of the directors, and reported to the 
shareholders’ meeting.
Employee remuneration in the form of stock or cash shall be distributed to 
employees who meet certain specific requirements. The requirements are 
set by the Board of Directors.

Article 22-1:
Where there are earnings for the year, in addition to paying taxes and 
making up for losses as required by law, 10% of the remaining earnings 
shall be set aside as legal reserve. In addition, after a special reserve is set 
aside or reserved in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the 
Board of Directors shall propose a motion for the distribution of the 
remaining earnings along the undistributed earnings at the beginning of the 
period for resolution at the shareholders’ meeting, to be submitted to the 
shareholders’ meeting for resolution.
As the Company is in the stage where growth is stable, the interests of 
shareholders, the financial structure and long-term development of the 
Company are taken into account, the total amount of bonus to shareholders 
shall be 20% to 80% of the accumulated distributable earnings and cash 
dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total dividends to shareholders.

2. Dividend distribution proposed at the shareholders’ meeting for 2023:
As resolved by the Board meeting on March 24, 2023, it will be
proposed to the shareholders’ meeting of the Company to distribute a
bonus in cash to shareholders of NT$819,365,940 at NT$10 per share.
If subsequently the number of the outstanding shares is affected by any
change in the Company’s share capital which results in a change in the
shareholder dividend payout ratio, it is proposed that the chairman be
authorized by the annual general meeting to handle the related matters.

3. Material change in dividend policy expected:
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The dividend policy is handled in accordance with the Articles of 
Incorporation and there is no need for material change for now.

(VII) The effect of the current bonus shares on the operating performance, 
EPS and return on shareholder’s investment proposed at the shareholders’ 
meeting:
Not applicable.

(VIII) Remuneration to employees and directors:
1. The percentages or ranges with respect to employee and director

remuneration, as set forth in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation:
Pursuant to provisions in Article 22 of the Articles of Incorporation:
To motivate the employees and management team, if the Company
records a profit (defined as gains before tax after deducting
remuneration to employees and directors), not less than 2% of the
profit shall be distributed as employee remuneration and not less than
5% of the profit shall be distributed as director remuneration.
When employee remuneration is distributed in the form of stock or
cash, a resolution shall be adopted by approval of two-thirds of the
directors at a meeting attended by more than half of the directors, and
reported to the shareholders’ meeting.
Employee remuneration in the form of stock or cash shall be distributed
to employees who meet certain specific requirements. The
requirements are set by the Board of Directors.

2. The basis for estimating the amount of employee and director
remuneration, for calculating the number of shares to be distributed as
employee remuneration, and the accounting treatment of the
discrepancy, if any, between the actual distributed amount and the
estimated figure, for the current period:
(1) The estimated remuneration to employees is proposed to be paid in

cash.
(2) The actual amount of distribution is different from the estimated 

amount, it is recorded as an adjustment to profit or loss in the year 
of distribution.

3. Remuneration passed by the Board meeting:
(1) Amount of employee remuneration and director remuneration

distributed by cash or stocks:
As resolved by the Board meeting on March 24, 2023, the 
remuneration to employees this year is proposed to be NT$39,724 
thousand and the remuneration to directors this year is proposed to 
be NT$20,725 thousand.
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There was no difference between the remuneration to employees 
and directors recognized in the 2022 financial report.

(2) The amount of any employee remuneration distributed in stocks, 
and that amount as a percentage of the sum of the after-tax net 
income stated in the parent company only financial report for the 
current period and total employee remuneration: Not applicable, as 
the Board of Directors did not distribute stocks to employees.

4. The actual distribution of employee and director remuneration for the
previous fiscal year (with an indication of the number of shares,
amount, and stock price, of the shares distributed), and, if there is any
discrepancy between the actual distribution and the recognized
employee or director remuneration, additionally the discrepancy, cause,
and how it is treated:
The bonus to shareholders - NT$573,200,558 (NT$7 per share) in cash
resolved by the shareholders’ meeting held on June 17, 2022. The
remuneration to employees was NT$28,227 thousand and remuneration
to directors for 2021 was NT$16,364 thousand. There was no
difference between the remuneration to employees and directors
recognized in the 2021 financial report.

(IX) Status of the company repurchasing its own shares: None.

II. Status of corporate bonds: None.

III. Preferred shares: None.

IV. Global depository receipts: None.

V. Employee share subscription warrants: None.
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VI. Custodian of new restricted employee shares:
(I) For all restricted stock awards for which the vesting conditions have not yet been

met for the full number of shares up to the date of publication of the annual 
report and the effect on shareholders’ equity:                            May 3, 2023

Type of restricted stock awards 1st restricted stock awards in 2020

Effective date of reporting November 30, 2020

Date of issuance December 15, 2020

Number of restricted stock awards 
issued 283,000 shares

Issue price Paid subscription at issuance price of NT$10

Ratio of the number of shares of 
restricted stock awards to the number of 

total issued shares
0.34% (Note 1)

Vesting conditions of restricted stock 
awards

The set number of shares of employees is settled annually. The 
vesting ratios for each year are as follows:
1. An employee still employed by the Company on February 20 

of the following year after the issuance date of restricted stock 
awards, provided the employee did not committee a breach of 
contract or work rules in the first year with an appraisal grade
of B+ or higher in the most recent year, the employee is 20% 
vested.

2. An employee still employed by the Company on February 20
of the second year after the issuance date of restricted stock
awards, provided the employee did not committee a breach of
contract or work rules in the second year with an appraisal
grade of B+ or higher in the most recent year, the employee is 
20% vested.

3. An employee still employed by the Company on February 20 
of the third year after the issuance date of restricted stock
awards, provided the employee did not committee a breach of 
contract or work rules in the third year with an appraisal grade 
of B+ or higher in the most recent year, the employee is 20% 
vested.

4. An employee still employed by the Company on February 20 
of the fourth year after the issuance date of restricted stock
awards, provided the employee did not committee a breach of
contract or work rules in the fourth year with an appraisal grade
of B+ or higher in the most recent year, the employee is 20% 
vested.

5. An employee still employed by the Company on February 20
of the fifth year after the issuance date of restricted stock
awards, provided the employee did not committee a breach of
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contract or work rules in the fifth year with an appraisal grade 
of B+ or higher in the most recent year, the employee is 20% 
vested.

Restricted rights of restricted stock 
awards

1. Before the vesting conditions are met after awarding restricted
stock awards, employees may not sell, pledge, transfer, donate,
or request the Company to buy back or dispose of said
restricted stock awards for other means, except for inheritance.

2. Attendance, proposals, speaking, and voting and election rights
at a shareholders’ meeting are subject to the Trust Custodian 
Agreement.

3. Pursuant to these Rules, employees who are granted with 
restricted stock awards before vesting conditions are met, in 
addition to participating in stock dividend allocation, other 
rights and benefits of such employees are the same as those 
with the Company’s issued common shares (including, but not 
limited to, any rights and benefits granted to employees as a 
result of share options for capital increase by cash, capital 
reductions, and/or mergers, demergers, or share conversions, 
collectively referred to as “allocated rights and benefits”).
Rights and benefits granted are not required to be held in 
custody by trust and are not restricted to the vesting period.

4. Other agreements:
(1) Restricted stock awards must be delivered to the trust for 

custody immediately after issuance. Before the vesting 
conditions are met, employees may not request the trustee 
to return the restricted stock awards for any reason or in 
any way.

(2) During the period where restricted stock awards are 
delivered to the trust, the Company shall have full authority 
to negotiate, sign, amend, extend, cancel, and terminate 
(included by not limited to) the trust agreement or the 
delivery, application and termination of the instructions of 
the trust property between the Company and the stock trust 
agency.

Custodian of restricted stock awards Delivered to the trust for custody

Handling method of employee who 
have not yet met the vesting conditions 
after being granted with or subscribed 

new shares

1. Voluntary departure or dismissal:
restricted stock awards without vested rights by an employee
are deemed fortified upon the date of departure. restricted stock 
awards granted to an employee who has not yet met the vesting 
conditions will be purchased and cancelled by the Company at 
the price originally issued in accordance with the law.

2. Retirement:
Vesting rights of shares not yet vested by an employee are 
deemed to have lapsed upon the date of retirement. restricted 
stock awards granted to an employee who has not yet met the 
vesting conditions will be purchased and cancelled by the
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Company at the price originally issued in accordance with the 
law.

3. General death:
restricted stock awards granted to an employee who has not yet 
met the vesting conditions will be purchased and cancelled by 
the Company at the price originally issued in accordance with 
the law.

4. Leave without pay:
Employees who are on leave without pay with special approval 
by the Company during the period when restricted stock awards 
are granted will be deemed to have not met the vesting 
conditions. Upon reinstatement of the employee, the chairman 
may approve the resumption of their restricted stock awards 
without vested rights and re-approve the number of shares, 
vesting rights conditions and period within the allocated 
number of shares in proportion to the actual period of 
employment. However, the period is subject to the vesting 
period of restricted stock awards (e.g., restricted period). After 
reinstatement, restricted stock awards granted to the employee 
on leave without pay who has not yet met the vesting 
conditions will be purchased and cancelled by the Company at 
the price originally issued in accordance with the law.

5. Lay off:
restricted stock awards without vested rights are deemed to
have lapsed on the date of being laid off, and any shares that
have not been vested during the year are purchased and
cancelled by the Company at the original issue price in 
accordance with the law.

6. Position transfer:
Due to the Company’s operation needs, if employees of the 
Company are required and approved by the Company to 
transfer to the Company’s affiliates, where the transfer meets 
the vesting conditions stated in Article 5-2 of these Rules in the 
year, the chairman or the supervisor authorized by the chairman 
may approve the percentage and time limit for fulfilling the 
vesting conditions within the scope of the time limit and rate 
stated in Article 5-2 of these Rules. However, if an employee 
voluntarily requests to be transferred to an affiliate, his/her 
restricted stock awards are handled in accordance with 
“voluntary discharge or dismissal” stipulated in Article 5, 
paragraph 4, subparagraph 1 of these Rules.

7. Occupational disasters:
(1) Employees who are unable to continue working due to a 

physical disability resulting from an occupational disaster, 
the vesting conditions of his/her restricted stock awards not 
yet met may be vested earlier than the effective date of 
his/her departure.

(2) For an employee who dies as a result of an occupational 
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disaster, the vesting conditions of his/her restricted stock 
awards not yet met may be vested earlier on the date of 
death to be received by his/her heir.

8. Employees that fail to score B+ for their appraisal during the 
vesting period are deemed to have not met the vesting 
conditions. Any shares that have not been vested during the
year are purchased and cancelled by the Company at the 
original issue price in accordance with the law.

Number of restricted stock awards 
redeemed or repurchased 2,000 shares (Note 2)

Number of shares in which the
restrictions on rights have been released 151,200 shares (Note 3)

Number of shares in which the 
restrictions on rights have not been 

released
129,800 shares

Ratio of the number of shares in which 
the restrictions on rights have not been 
released to the number of total issued 

shares (%)

0.16% (Note 4)

Effect on shareholders’ equity

The Company expects that revenue will grow in the next few 
years. Based on this, the dilution of the Company’s earnings per 
share in the next few years will not have material impact on the 
shareholders’ equity.

Note 1: The calculation was based on the 82,068 thousand shares of capital registered at the 
Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan on January 6, 2022.

Note 2: Based on the capital reduction date of March 22, 2021 and cancellation of registration was 
completed on April 7, 2021.

Note 3: The calculation was based on the number of shares in which the restrictions on rights were 
released on February 20, 2023.

Note 4: The calculation was based on the 82,066 thousand shares of capital registered at the Ministry 
of Economic Affairs of Taiwan on June 30, 2022.      
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(II) Names of the officers holding restricted stock awards and the top ten employees 
holding restricted stock awards and the status of acquisition as of the date of 
publication of the annual report:
1st restricted stock awards in 2020:

May 3, 2023

Title Name

Number of 
restricted 

stock 
awards 

acquired
(thousand 

shares)

Ratio of the 
number of 
shares of 
restricted 

stock 
awards to 

the number 
of total 
issued 
shares

(Note 1)

Restrictions on rights have been released Restrictions on rights not yet released

Number 
of shares 
in which 

restriction
s on 

rights 
have been 
released

(thousand 
shares)

Issue 
price

(NT$)

Issue 
amount
(NT$ 

thousand)

The 
number 

of shares 
released 

to the 
number 
of total 
issued 
shares

(Note 2)

Number of 
shares in 

which 
restrictions 
on rights 

have not yet 
been 

released
(thousand 

shares)

Issue 
price

(NT$)

Issue 
amount
(NT$ 

thousand)

The number 
of shares not 

yet been 
released to 
the number 

of total 
issued shares

(Note 2)

M
anager

Vice President Yang Jui-
Hsiang

81 0.10% 48 10 480 0.06% 33 10 330 0.04%

Vice president, 
Management 
Department

Lee Jui-
Ting

Assistant General 
Manager, Finance 

Department

Liu 
Huang-

Wei
Assistant General 
Manager, Quality 

Research 
Department

Chen 
Chien-
Lang

Assistant General 
Manager, Export 
Sales Department

Hung 
Chieh-Yu

Assistant General 
Manager, 

Domestic Sales 
Department

Chen 
Chih-

Hsiung

Em
ployees

Manager, Finance 
Department

Hung Ο-
Mien

136 0.17% 66 10 660 0.08% 70 10 700 0.09%

Manager, Finance 
Department

Hung Ο-
Cheng

Manager, Export 
Sales Department Lai Ο-Yi

Manager, Export 
Sales Department

Chang Ο-
Chen

Manager,
Domestic Sales 

Department

Liu Ο-
Chien

Vice President, 
subsidiary

Lai Ο-
Ren

Assistant General 
Manager, 
subsidiary

Huang Ο-
Chen

Assistant General 
Manager, 
subsidiary

Huang Ο-
Chiang

Assistant General 
Manager, 
subsidiary

Liu Ο-
Chieh

Plant Director, 
subsidiary

Huang Ο-
Chunng

Plant Director, 
subsidiary

Chang Ο-
Hsiung

Manager,
subsidiary

Tsai Ο-
Cheng

Manager, 
subsidiary He Ο-Pao
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Manager,
subsidiary

Chang Ο-
Yu

Manager, 
subsidiary

Huang O-
Liang

Manager,
subsidiary

Chien O-
Chin

Note 1: The calculation was based on the 82,066 thousand shares of capital registered at the Ministry of Economic Affairs 
of Taiwan on June 30, 2022.

Note 2: The calculation was based on the number of shares in which the restrictions on rights were released on February 
20, 2023.

VII. Issuance of new shares in connection with mergers or acquisitions or with
acquisitions of shares of other companies: None.

VIII. Issuance of new shares in connection with mergers or acquisitions or
with acquisitions of shares of other companies: Not applicable.
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Five. An Overview of Operations
I. Description of the business

(I) Scope of business:
1. Main contents of the Company’s business
(1) Manufacturing, trading and domestic and international sales of various 

types of battery plates.
(2) Manufacturing and assembly of batteries for vehicles and motorcycles 

and hermetically sealed batteries.
(3) Trading of raw materials in the preceding paragraph.
(4) General import and export trade business.
(5) Processing and trading of various computer and peripheral devices and 

parts.
(6) Agent of tenders for domestic and foreign manufacturers for product 

quotation and distribution business.
(7) Power generation, transmission and distribution
(8) Domestic appliances manufacturing.
(9) Lighting equipment manufacturing.
(10)Data storage media units manufacturing.
(11)Wired communication equipment and apparatus manufacturing.
(12)Electronics components manufacturing.
(13)Battery manufacturing.

2. Main products and their operating weight:
Unit: NT$ thousand

2022
Item Revenue amount Business weighting
Electronic sealed 
batteries 6,058,204 82.78%

Motorcycle batteries 1,012,093 13.82%
Car batteries 225,772 3.09%
Other 22,659 0.31%
Net operating income 7,318,728 100%

3. Current products and services:
We constantly drive the growth of business by creating more efficient,
energy-saving, safer and eco-friendly mobile resources in order to break
through the tradition of technology while meeting the demand of the
customers and market. Not only are our products used to serve as
secondary power for high-tech electronic products, they are also widely
applied in everyday life. Our product line includes batteries for renewable
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energy storage systems, communication switches and telecommunications 
rooms, UPS power supplies, batteries for electric vehicles, batteries for 
starting automobiles and motorcycles, and stop start batteries for 
motorcycles. 

In 2020, our research and development focused on “development of ultra-
high power long-life batteries”, “research on long cycle life lead-carbon 
electrode batteries”, “technology development for mass production of 
long-life stop start batteries”, “development of backup batteries for 4G 
and cloud data center base stations”, and “development of high-
temperature batteries”.
“Development of ultra-high power long-life batteries” - in response to the 
rise of home office and delivery markets driven by COVID-19, the 
demand for IDC (Internet Data Center) redundancy has increase 
drastically. Based on this, the development for this year’s battery 
technology focused on “ultra-high power”, “long float life”, and “new 
assembly process”. The first batch of samples have been installed VNPT 
IDC Center for use and sent to customers in Russia for validation. 
Alongside the development trend of energy issues around the world, there 
are more and more applications for renewable energy and energy stations. 
Based on this, the research and development this year focused on the 
“development of lead-carbon batteries for deep recycling green energy 
applications” and “research on long cycle life lead-carbon electrode 
batteries”. The initial research results show that the lead-carbon composite 
electrode has significantly improved the cycle life, which will be 
gradually applied in 2023 in green energy stations and energy storage 
stations. 
With the introduction of 5G systems around the world coupled with the 
fact that cold room operations in SMR systems for carbon reduction 
applications are to be eliminated, the “development of backup batteries for 
5G and cloud data center base stations” and the “development of high-
temperature batteries” have become paramount. This year, we have 
optimized the material and process formula for high-temperature batteries 
which has begun to be applied in outdoor stations. 
We have continued to develop the specifications for “motorcycle stop 
start batteries” by expanding the product specification line. In 2020, one 
more model of our products was approved by a large Japanese 
manufacturer and we expect to increase the mass production of said model 
for the Japanese motorcycle manufacturer in its Guangzhou plant in 2021. 
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In 2021, our research and development focused on projects of 
“development of ultra-high power long-life batteries”, “research on long 
cycle life lead carbon electrode batteries”, “technology development for 
mass production of long-life stop start batteries”, “development of backup 
batteries for cloud data center base stations”, and “development of high-
temperature batteries for outdoor stations”.
“Development of ultra-high power long-life batteries” - in response to the 
rise of home office and delivery markets driven by COVID-19, the 
demand for IDC (Internet Data Center) redundancy has increase 
drastically. Based on this, the development for this year’s battery 
technology focused on “ultra-high power”, “long float life”, and “new 
assembly process”. The development of WXL series products was 
completed this year for customers.
Alongside the development trend of energy issues around the world, there 
are more and more applications for renewable energy and energy stations. 
Based on this, the research and development this year focused on the 
“development of lead-carbon batteries for deep recycling green energy 
applications”, “research on long cycle life lead-carbon electrode 
batteries”. The initial research results show that the lead-carbon composite 
electrode has significantly improved the cycle life, which will be 
gradually applied in 2022 in green energy stations and energy storage 
stations.
With the introduction of 5G systems around the world coupled with the 
fact that cold room operations in SMR systems for carbon reduction 
applications are to be eliminated, the “development of backup batteries for 
cloud data centers” and the “development of high-temperature batteries 
for outdoor base stations” have become paramount. The development 
focused on the optimization of the material and process formula for high-
temperature batteries which has been applied to an outdoor base station in 
New Taipei City for 4 years, which is still properly operated.
We have continued to develop the specifications for “motorcycle stop 
start batteries” by expanding the product specification line. In 2021, one 
more model of our products was approved by a large Japanese 
manufacturer in Guangzhou. Validation work in other plants overseas is 
also underway. 

In 2022, our research and development focused on projects of 
“development of ultra-high power long-life batteries”, “research on long 
cycle life lead carbon electrode batteries”, “technology development for 
mass production of long-life stop start batteries”, “development of backup 
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batteries for cloud data center base stations”, and “development of high-
temperature batteries for outdoor stations”.
“Development of ultra-high power long-life batteries” - in response to the 
rise of home office and delivery markets driven by COVID-19, the demand 
for IDC (Internet Data Center) redundancy has increase drastically. Based 
on this, the development for this year’s battery technology focused on 
“ultra-high power”, “long float life”, and “new assembly process”. The 
development of WXL series products was completed this year for 
customers.
Alongside the development trend of energy issues around the world, there 
are more and more applications for renewable energy and energy stations. 
Based on this, the research and development this year focused on the 
“development of lead-carbon batteries for deep recycling green energy 
applications” and “research on long cycle life lead-carbon electrode 
batteries”. The initial research results show that the lead-carbon composite 
electrode has significantly improved the cycle life, which will be gradually 
applied in 2023 in green energy stations and energy storage stations.
With the introduction of 5G systems around the world coupled with the fact 
that cold room operations in SMR systems for carbon reduction 
applications are to be eliminated, the “development of backup batteries for 
cloud data centers” and the “development of high-temperature batteries for 
outdoor base stations” have become paramount. The development focused 
on the optimization of the material and process formula for high-
temperature batteries.

4. New products under development and services:
(1) “Long life ultra-high power batteries” - in response to the rise of home 

office and delivery markets driven by COVID-19, the demand for IDC 
(Internet Data Center) redundancy has increase drastically. Based on this, 
the development for this year’s battery technology focused on “ultra-high
power”, “long float life”, and “new assembly process”. The development 
of WXL series products was completed this year for customers.

(2) Continue with the development of the “long-life motorcycle stop start 
batteries” by expanding the product specification line. Validation work in 
other plants overseas is also underway.

(3) In response to the global demand, we will develop “full gel batteries” 
and “AGM gel batteries” to be used for “5G and cloud data center base 
stations” and “high-temperature batteries”, deepening the application of 
the communications industry and strengthening the Company’s 
competitiveness.
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(4) We will research on lead-carbon battery technology for “lead-carbon 
batteries for deep recycling green energy applications” and “long cycle 
life lead carbon electrode batteries”. In doing this, we will be able to 
improve product quality and battery cycle life, increasing our 
competitive niche.

(5) Develop highly reliable and high-performance " yacht batteries" for yacht 
applications in response to the new market demand.

(II)Industry Overview
1. Current status and development of the industry:

Lead-acid batteries have been around for over a decade and are a highly 
mature market. As lead-acid batteries have the advantages of low 
manufacturing cost, high quality and stability and wide range of applications. 
At present, lead-acid batteries are mostly used in uninterruptible power 
supplies (UPS), automobiles and motorcycles, and electric vehicles, medical 
equipment, and communications equipment. Lead-acid batteries are the most 
economical and safe secondary batteries as recognized internationally. The
large amount of lead-acid batteries exported by China has made the market 
very competitive. Since China reduced its export tax rebate for lead-acid 
batteries to 0% from 13% in 2006, the cost of manufacturers in China has 
significantly increased, helping the overall industry enter into healthy 
competition and stable growth. The “entry condition” was promulgated in the 
lead-acid battery industry by China in 2012 to regulate and rectify the 
industry. After environmental remediation, the number of lead-acid battery 
manufacturers has been reduced from over 2,000 to nearly 300. In terms of 
production, commissioned processing, and import - 4% excise tax was 
imposed on lead-acid batteries on January 1, 2016. This has caused a 
considerable cost burden to Chinese lead-acid manufacturers.
It is a common goal to pursue environment protection and energy 
conservation. Nowadays, 3C products are mostly developed toward the trend 
of light, thin, short and small design, small secondary batteries in these 3C 
products naturally become an important key to the competitive niche or 
market attraction. The insufficiency of secondary battery power, battery 
volume, and flexible design of batteries have been the bottlenecks in product 
development. Coupled with the fact that Japanese manufacturers dominate 
the global battery market, the purchase cost of downstream vendors has 
always remained high. Due to this, major international battery manufacturers 
and R&D departments began to focus on the development of secondary 
batteries with features of high battery energy density, lighter weight, fast 
charging that are safe, economically efficient and eco-friendly. At present, 
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although expensive, lithium polymer batteries have been developed more 
than others as their life can be prolonged to 500-1,000 cycles.
In 2019, the global secondary battery market was estimated to reach 
USD86.5 billion, with lead-acid batteries accounting for USD47 billion. It 
was also estimated that the global secondary battery market in 2020 would 
reach USD94.1 billion, with lead-acid batteries accounting for USD43 
billion. Although new nickel-metal hydride, lithium-ion, and lithium-iron 
batteries have entered the market, with considerations of high prices, size 
restrictions and security, they still yet to replace lead-acid batteries with high 
quality stability, safety, and wide range of applications. To reduce pollution 
in the environment, lead recovery and remanufacturing technology is used to 
overcome the environmental protection side of lead-acid batteries at present. 
We learn that lead-acid batteries are irreplaceable as they are not included 
among the hazardous substances banned by RoHS and WEEE.

Global secondary battery market size:

Global Secondary Battery Market Size (Unit: USD100 million)
Source: IEK of ITRI (April 2019)
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2. The links between the upstream, midstream, and downstream segments of the
industry supply chain:

3. Development trends and competition of products:
With industrial standards progressing, transportation traffic rapidly growing and
information products becoming more popular, the need to save spare energy has
become more important. In addition to lead-acid batteries, most hybrid vehicles
today use nickel metal hydride batteries, mainly due to safety and reliability.
Given that nickel metal hydride batteries have disadvantages of power capacity,
volume and memory effect, they have been largely replaced by nickel-metal
hydride batteries in the market for portable electronic products, such as
notebooks, mobiles phones, PDAs, camcorders, digital cameras, mini CD-
ROMs and Bluetooth headsets. As a result of this, nickel-metal hydride batteries
have become the mainstream of small secondary batteries.

According to different cathode materials, lithium batteries are classified into
lithium cobalt oxide (LiCoO2), lithium manganese dioxide (LiMnO2), lithium
nickel oxide (LiNiO2) and lithium iron phosphate (LiFePO4). Among these
batteries, LiCoO2 batteries are mainly used in electronic products such as
handheld devices, which have worrying safety problems. As the safety for
LiNiO2 batteries has not yet been tackled, there are only a few LiNiO2 battery
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O-ring
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Wires
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manufacturers and users. With high capacity and safety characteristics, LiMnO2 
batteries are mostly used in hand tools, although possessing poor high-
temperature characteristics with high product price. Considering that LiFePO4 
batteries developed in recent years are safe, which are perfect to be used in 
vehicles; however, their market share is low as there are bottlenecks including 
LiFePO4 batteries not being easy to sinter, product prices too low, immature 
patent and process technology, coupled with the fact that electric vehicles are 
not yet popular. With the exploration risk of lithium batteries not being ruled out 
as well as the immature development in terms of their safety and performance 
and their price and marketing, whether lead-acid batteries will be effected in the 
future solely depends on the future royalties and cost of lithium battery licenses. 

With float voltage, non-memory, safe and high-temperature advantages of lead-
acid batteries, alongside their cheap prices, lead-acid batteries will not be easily 
replaced by other battery technologies in the near future. The future trend of the 
development of lead-acid batteries is moving towards 3 goals: high capacity, 
light weight and low cost. High energizing batteries mainly include higher 
battery energy density and volumetric energy density. Not only do lighter 
batteries require to be lightweight, small sized batteries in some applications are 
also emphasized. Low cost of batteries is mainly due to the large quantities of 
batteries being used, applying to new generation of batteries with low cost and 
high-capacity electrode materials. At this stage, nanotechnology has been 
applied to the development of materials for lead-acid batteries. Through the 
innovative development of high-capacity and high-power nanoscale lead-acid 
battery materials and process technology, it is likely that the current technical 
bottlenecks of lead-acid batteries will be tackled. For that reason, as long as the 
primary technologies for lead-acid batteries, including improving battery energy 
density, reducing weight as well as smart power management, are achieved, 
lead-acid batteries will enter vast blue ocean market of the high tech industry.

More manufacturers with low labor costs from China and Southeast Asia have 
joined in the competition. Their stability of quality and product diversification 
still cannot compete with Taiwan. At Kung Long, we continue to develop high-
performance and low-pollution products. We are committed to enhancing 
product capability and improving quality while making use of a “global market 
strategy” to achieve the objectives of cost reduction, product life cycle extension 
and risk diversification. In doing this, we are able to successfully overcome 
challenges under this competitive environment.
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(III)An overview of the company’s technologies:
1. R&D expenses invested in 2022

Unit: NT$ thousand
Item 2022 2023 up to the first quarter

Amount 44,348 10,859

2. Technologies or products successfully developed in 2022:
(1) “Long Life Ultra-high Power Batteries” - in response to the rise of the

home office and delivery markets driven by COVID-19, the demand for 
IDC (Internet Data Center) redundancy has increase drastically. Based on 
this, the development for this year’s battery technology focused on “ultra-
high power”, “long float life”, and “new assembly process”. The 
development of WXL series products was completed this year for 
customers.

(2) The research and development this year focused on the “development of 
lead-carbon batteries for deep recycling green energy applications”, 
“research on long cycle life lead-carbon electrode batteries”, “development 
of backup power for cloud data centers”, and the “development of high 
temperature batteries for outdoor base stations”. The development focused 
on the optimization of the material and process formula for high-
temperature batteries which has been applied to an outdoor base station in 
New Taipei City for four years, which is still properly operated.

(3) Continue with the development of the “long-life motorcycle stop start 
batteries” by expanding the product specification line. Validation work in 
other plants overseas is also underway.

(IV) Long- and short-term business development plans:
1. Short-term plan:

(1) Develop new long-term and stable customers - We adjust the selling price
according to the fluctuation for lead prices and establish fair trade 
approaches. Our pricing strategy is adjusted in a timely manner according 
to different markets so as to maintain our international competitiveness.

(2) Promote and strengthen the sales for large sealed batteries and long-life 
UPS batteries for telecommunications and batteries for energy storage.

(3) Capture the firefighting and emergency lighting markets with light weight 
and high-performance batteries.

(4) Continue to enhance the market share of our own brand of motorcycles, 
automobiles, and electric vehicles in Vietnam.
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2. Long-term plan:
(1) We are dedicated to technological improvement in order to develop 

products that can be charged quickly, have more cycles and are suitable for 
renewable energy and energy storage including solar photovoltaic systems 
and wind power.

(2) Launch large sealed batteries and high cost performance batteries in line 
with the development of customized batteries.

(3) Continue to increase the specifications of stop start batteries for 
motorcycles and improve the revenue base.

(4) Launch large and long-life batteries for the UPS repair market and 
industrial, 4G and cloud base stations.

(5) Continue to promote our own brands to establish segmentation of our 
products to drive the sales of after-sales service market.

(6) Take advantage of preferential tariff for ASEAN market and proactively 
develop new markets with long-life and large capacity batteries.

(7) Continue to diversify regions and specifications as well as taking into 
account the risk of customer concentration, we work hard to expand new 
customers and markets to expand our global market share, with emphasis 
on the Middle East, Eastern Europe, Central and South America, Africa, 
and the ASEAN market in Asia. 
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II. Market as well as the production and marketing situation
(I) Market analysis:

1. Sales areas of the Company’s main products:
Unit: NT$ thousand

Product Region 2022 2021

Batteries

Americas 1,330,585 18% 1,181,714 20%
Europe 1,934,866 27% 1,479,983 26%

Asia 3,316,031 45% 2,440,331 42%
Domestic 

sales
410,951 6% 408,193 7%

Other 303,636 4% 199,247 3%
Other 22,659 - 88,280 2%

Total operating income 7,318,728 100% 5,797,748 100%

2. Market share:
2022 Lead-acid Batteries Export Statistics in Taiwan

Unit: Quantity / Thousand units Value / NT$ Thousand

Year Item Quantity of export 
sales Amount of export sales

2022
Lead-acid batteries 17,133 7,709,017
Kung Long sales - 90,389

market share - 1.17%
Source: Customs Administration, Ministry of Finance/Bureau of Foreign Trade

3. Demand and supply conditions for the market in the future and the market’s
growth potential:
(1) In terms of demand:

A. Stable demand in medical and healthcare equipment market:
The aging of the global popular and the increase in health awareness 
of consumers have contributed to the rise of medical devices. The top 
export device in the wellbeing medical equipment industry is 
motorized patient vehicles (powered wheelchairs). In 2019, the elderly 
population over 65 years old in Europe accounted for approximately 
19% of the total population, reaching more than 100 million people, 
which is expected to be increased to 23% after 2030. This means that 
more than one quarter of the population in Europe will be over 65 
years old and the wellbeing medical device industry continue to have a 
promising future. Currently, the sales of electric scooters in Europe 
continue to grow year by year and there is a trend of them replacing 
wheelchairs with demand continuing to increase.
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B. Increased demand for electric vehicles:
In recent years, the gradual depletion of oil sources that caused roaring 
oil prices, the rising awareness of energy conservation around the 
world and the agreement on waste emission in the United Nations 
Climate Change conference have put the development of electric 
vehicles (electric cars, electric bicycles, electric motorcycles) in the 
spotlight. According to the Global EV Outlook 2019 report of the 
International Energy Agency (IEA), the electric two/three-wheeler 
sales in 2018 reached around 260 million in 2018 and are expect to 
grow to 46 million by 2030. Among all the markets, countries in Asia-
Pacific will be the most important. By far, the global inventory in 
countries in Asia-Pacific, including China, India, and ASEAN, is 
around 800 million electric two/three-wheelers. Among these 
countries, the main consumer country is China, where 90% of the 
electric two-wheelers use lead-acid batteries. This shows significant 
demand.

C. Steady growth in demand for uninterruptible power supplies (UPS)
As the trend of cloud and virtualization is expected, the market scale 
of data centers for small, medium and large enterprises continue to 
grow. As a result of this, ISP and ASP servers need to be supported by 
stable power supplies and 4G base stations are widely installed across 
China. Due to the greenhouse effect, the frequency of snowstorms in 
Europe and the U.S. has increased, further driving the continuous 
growth of UPS in the market. According to QYResearch, the UPS 
market is estimated to reach USD14 billion by 2025. Give that lead-
acid batteries have advantages of low cost, stable quality, high voltage 
and high instantaneous discharge rate, they are widely used in UPS 
products. This is the reason why lead-acid batteries have considerable 
potential and momentum in the future market.

D. Endless potential of renewable energy storage market
With the trend of energy conservation and environmental protection, 
wind power and solar power have become the technology commonly 
used. However, since solar and wind power generation are affected by 
natural conditions, the power generated is unstable and needs to be 
integrated with the grid after voltage is stabilized by the energy storage 
system. This creates business opportunities for energy storage batteries 
and the commonly used batteries for energy storage is high power lead-
acid batteries. According to the New Energy Outlook 2018 report 
released by BNEF, the global investment in energy storage will reach 
USD548 billion by 2050, with two-third of the investment going in 

92



grid-level storage systems. This shows that the market for renewable 
energy has vast potential.

(2) In terms of supply:
Nowadays, all countries around the world take energy as their economic 
orientation and mobile energy - batteries- is one of the key industries of 
each country. That being the case, battery manufacturers in Europe, the 
U.S., China, and Japan, such as Varta, Saft, Delphi, Exide, Sonnenschein, 
Enersys, Tianneng Power, and Chaowei Power have all invested in battery 
development. At present, the 4 top battery manufacturers in Taiwan are 
YUASA, SG, Showa Denko (formally Hitachi), and Kung Long, covering 
nearly all domestic exports. The sales targets of Showa Denko are similar - 
UPS manufacturers and distributors, while YUASA and GS focus on 
automobile and motorcycle manufacturers and distributors. This is mainly 
due to Japanese battery manufacturers maintaining long-term cooperative 
relationships with automobile manufacturers, making it difficult for 
Taiwanese companies to enter the market. As there are fewer Japanese 
manufacturers in UPS and electric automobile manufactures, we have taken 
the initiative to target the after-sales service market with quality and cost 
advantages.
Due to the fact that the lead-acid battery industry is mature and stable, 
there have only been a handful of competitors over the years. With major 
manufacturers taking over the market share, there is a clear trend that the 
industry is getting larger. Constrained to quality stability and longevity 
problems, smaller battery manufacturers can only compete in the remaining 
domestic market with low prices. In terms of production, commissioned 
processing, and import, 4% excise tax was imposed on lead-acid batteries 
on January 1, 2016. This has caused a considerable cost burden to Chinese 
lead-acid manufacturers. Considering that the size of the lead-acid battery 
industry in Taiwan is small and lacks overall growth, with the global 
demand for lead-acid batteries continuing to thrive, we have shifted our 
main production base to Vietnam in order to deliver more results.

(3)Growth:
Lead-acid batteries can be used in a variety of products, such as wellbeing
medical equipment, electric bicycles, mobility scooters that have become 
popular in Europe and the U.S., boosting the growth demand for lead-acid 
batteries. In particular, with UPS batteries and batteries for starting 
automobiles and motorcycles driving the demand in Vietnam, in 
conjunction with the mass production of the Company’s “long-life sealed 
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batteries for communications”, we have established our R&D capabilities in 
the market, bringing growth momentum to the Company.

4. Competitive niche:
(1)As the largest Lead-acid battery manufacturer in Taiwan, we have our own

core technology research and development:
A.We master advanced battery self-manufacturing capabilities, R&D 

capabilities and production technologies and have experience in process 
critical technology and mass production management.

B. With a flat organization, we save operation time and shorten product 
delivery times.

(2) We have passed various certifications and our products are highly 
recognized:
At Kung Long, our self-developed lead-acid battery is our star product, that 
has attained six patents in Taiwan and one in Vietnam. A total of our 1,532 
products have been certified in the U.S. and 68 in Germany, totaling 1,600 
certificates, including VdS, by which we are the first company in Asia to 
have been certified, and UL certification. At the same time, we have passed 
ISO 9001 international standard quality management system certification 
and TL 9000 telecommunications/communications electronics industry 
quality system. In terms of the operating environment and safety and health, 
we have attained ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certifications. Thanks to our 
experience in responding to rapid changes in the industry, we have the upper 
hand to securing orders from major international manufacturers, further 
developing products needed in the market more effectively and quickly.

(3) Wide range of product applications:
At Kung Long, we strive for the development and research of electrical 
energy technology, with most of our products certified by the VdS and UL. 
We have a complete range of product specifications to meet the 
requirements of different customers.

(4) Professional international labor division:
To make full use of international labor division, our subsidiary Le Long 
Vietnam Co., Ltd. researches and develops products. With its advantages of 
economic scale and tax incentives, we are able to produce mass market 
specifications to expand greater profitability.

5. Positive and negative factors for future development and the company’s
response to such factors:
(1)Positive factors -
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A. We have an excellent management team and staff as well as robust 
management and production organizational systems:
At Kung Long, we have an excellent management team and professional 
and knowledgeable employees, as well as a robust management system 
and smooth production line management organizational system. These 
have become the Company’s best tools for its sustainability and in the 
face of rapidly changing market challenges.

B. Advanced R&D capabilities and production technologies:
With our strong capabilities on the development of products of new 
specifications, we are able to respond to quick market changes and 
quickly develop products needed in the market.

C. Harmonious cooperative relationship with third party suppliers:
Over the years, we have built good long-term cooperative relationships 
with our upstream raw material suppliers. This way, we are able to 
ensure the supply, quality and delivery of raw materials are maintained 
at a stable level to meet the Company’s needs for growth.

D. Excellent and stable quality:
 We have obtained ISO 9001 international standard quality management 
certification and various technology patents and product safety 
certificates. We received a Gold Customer Satisfaction Award in 1997 
and 1998 and 29th Taiwan Excellence Award by the Ministry of 
Economic Affairs in 2020. In recent years, we have been developing 
product tailored to meet the needs of individual customers, enabling the 
product quality and brand reputation of the Company more trusted and 
recognized.

E. Product capability expansion in Vietnam plants:
In response to the demand of orders, at Kung Long we are constantly 
expanding the production capabilities and production scale in our plants 
in Vietnam. By doing so, not only can we meet customers’ diverse 
needs, we are also able to meet their delivery schedules.

F. Automation equipment:
In order to increase productive and expand revenue, we take a proactive 
approach to introduce comprehensive automated equipment while 
continuing to maintain our manufacturing advantage of high cost 
performance with quality and efficiency.

(2)Negative factors -
A. Exchange rate changes increase exchange rate risks:

The Company’s products are manufactured mainly for export. Because 
of this, the risk arising from changes in exchange rates has a 
considerable impact on the Company’s profitability.

95



Countermeasures:
1. The Finance Department keeps a close eye on exchange rate changes

at all times while also collecting the views of various professional
institutions on exchange rates. In doing this, the Finance Department
is able to strengthen its ability to analyze and judge exchange rate
trends so that the Company can make timely adjustments to selling
prices and appropriate foreign exchange hedges.

2. Foreign currencies of imports and exports are naturally hedged to
reduce the risk of loss arising from foreign exchange.

B. Environmental standards increasingly stringent:
Lead is a heavy metal raw material. In view of the emphasis on 
environmental protection issues around the world, government agencies 
are imposing stringent regulations on wastewater, waste gas and waste. 
With high cost of battery recycling, the expenses and costs to invest in 
pollution control are bound to increase.
Countermeasures:
1. Allocate full-time qualified personnel to handle environmental

matters and engage a government-approved institution for regular
monitoring.

2. We enter into a contract with a qualified vendor for the removal of
lead waste and comply with the spirit of ISO 14001 to meet
environmental requirements.

3. In terms of safety and hygiene of production, we follow the spirit of
ISO 45001, so that the overall production environment better meets
the environmental regulatory requirements.

C. Rising raw material costs:
With the rise in international lead prices that increase the cost of goods 
purchased, production costs also increase
Countermeasures:
1. Our business quotation adopts a floating price adjustment

mechanism in order to reasonably pass on and reflect on raw
material price fluctuation.

2. Timely adjustment of lead material inventory.
D. Competition of low-priced products in China and Southeast Asia:

 As countries around the world have been impacted by economic 
turmoil, consumption is conservative. Although possessing advantages 
of sufficient labor with low wages as well as looser enforcement of 
environmental regulations, China and South Asia are dumping low-
quality products at low prices in international markets. However, the 
quality stability and product specifications are not as diverse as those of 
Taiwan’s products.
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Countermeasures:
1. Continue to strengthen the R&D capabilities of subsidiary Le Long

Vietnam Co., Ltd. to develop new high quality and high power
batteries to form market differentiation.

2. Position our electronic sealed batteries as higher technology with
strict quality stability requirements in order to avoid price
competition with small manufactures. This way, we are able to
maintain a higher gross margin.

3. By taking an international labor division approach and to be in line
with the development trends in the industry, we have shifted our
products with popular specifications to be manufactured in Vietnam.
Moreover, we will also expand production capability by economy of
scale to improve production efficiency, production management
efficiency and quality to expand profitability.

(II) Important usage and manufacturing processes for the company’s main products:
1. Important usage for the company’s main products:

Our products are mainly used in power supplies for technology products such
as: uninterruptible power supplies (UPS), anti-theft devices, security and
emergency lighting, communications equipment, ignition for automobiles and
motorcycles, jet skis, bobsleigh, electric scooters, wellbeing medical devices
with high product value, mobility scooters for old people, electric wheelchairs,
electric bicycles, electric motorcycles, electric vehicles, and renewable energy.

97



2. Manufacturing process of major products:
(1) Manufacturing process of lead-acid batteries - sealed batteries (cast-on-strap 

(C.O.S):
Acid added > Charging > Ultrasonic 

riveting > Automatic checker > Finished product

Dispensing of 
terminal glue < Terminal 

soldering < Oil seal < Spot sealing < Short circuit 
checking

Metal box > Cast welding > Battery chute > Cross-link

Cladding < Slitting < Anode plate 
drying < Cathodic plate 

drying < Chemical 
conversion coating

Lattice body 
casting > Lead powder > Kneading > Plate coating > Cell maturity

 (2) Lead-acid battery manufacturing process - car batteries:
Finished
product < Branding date < Airtight 

inspection < Heat seal < Short circuit 
checking

Metal box > Molding > Group welding > Battery chute > Spot welding

Cladding < Slitting < Anode plate 
drying < Cathodic plate 

drying < Chemical 
conversion coating

Lattice body 
casting > Lead powder > Kneading > Plate coating > Cell maturity
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(III)Supply situation for the company’s major raw materials:
The main raw materials for the Company’s products are: lead ingots, sulfuric 
acid, isolation plates, battery cells. We have many suppliers and there is no over-
concentration of supply sources. In addition, the Company has been able to 
maintain a sound and long-term cooperative relationships with suppliers. 
However, to ensure the stability of supply sources, we also maintain contact with 
other suppliers who have good supply status. There has been no shortage or 
interruption of supply. 

(IV) A list of any suppliers and customers accounting for 10 percent or more of the 
company’s total procurement (sales) amount in either of the last two years, the 
amounts bought from (sold to) each, and the percentage of total procurement 
(sales) each:
1. List of major sales customers:

 Unit: NT$ thousand
2021 2022 2023 up to the first quarter

Name Net sales

As a ratio 
to annual 
net sales 

(%)

Relations
hip with 

the issuer
Name Net sales

As a ratio 
to annual 
net sales 

(%)

Relations
hip with 

the issuer
Name Net sales

As a ratio to 
net sales for 

the year up to 
the first 

quarter (%)

Relations
hip with 

the issuer

Company
A 298,562 5.15% Customers Company

A 514,891 7.04% Customers Company
A 146,266 10.24% Customers

Other 5,499,186 94.85% Customers Other 6,803,837 92.96% Customers Other 1,282,489 89.76% Customers
Net 

sales 5,797,748 100.00% Net 
sales 7,318,728 100.00% Net 

sales 1,428,755 100.00%

(1) Benefiting from the stable supply quality of the Company, our amount and 
proportion to Company A increased in 2022 compared to those in the 
previous year.

(2) The Company’s products are not affected by a single economic cycle as 
they have a wide range of applications.. In summary, the Company’s 
customers, market and product applications are diversified, and are 
unlikely to be affected by any one factor; hence the operational risk is 
relatively low.

2. List of major import suppliers:
Unit: NT$ thousand

2021 2022 2023 up to the first quarter

Name Net 
procurement

As a 
percentage 

to annual net 
procurement 

(%)

Relationsh
ip with the 

issuer
Name Net 

procurement

As a 
percentage 

to annual net 
procurement 

(%)

Relationship 
with the issuer Name Net 

procurement

As a 
percentage to 

net 
procurement 
for the year 

up to the 
previous 

quarter (%)

Relationship 
with the 
issuer

Company B 1,189,469 27.32% Suppliers Company B 1,515,351 30.59% Suppliers Company B 187,079 24.80% Suppliers
Company D 788,604 18.11% Suppliers Company E 547,533 11.05% Suppliers Company D 164,449 21.80% Suppliers

Other 2,376,406 54.57% Suppliers Other 2,891,660 58.36% Suppliers Other 402,726 53.40% Suppliers
Net 

procurement 4,354,479 100.00% Net 
procurement 4,954,544 100.00% Net 

procurement 754,254 100.00%

The main raw materials for the Company’s products are: lead ingots, sulfuric 
acid, isolation plates, battery cells. In the last two years, there was not much 
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change in suppliers and all raw materials were procured based on the principle 
of appropriate diversification and risk. We maintain a good and long-term 
cooperative relationships with suppliers so that the supply, quality and delivery 
schedules are maintained at a stable level.

(V) Production volume for the last two years: 
Unit: Quantity / Thousand units, Value / NT$ Thousand

Major products:
2021 2022

Production 
capability

Production 
volume

Production 
value

Production 
capability

Production 
volume

Production 
value

Electronic 
sealed batteries

21,494 14,866 3,892,226 23,003 18,403 5,533,474

Motorcycle 
batteries

4,549 4,172 680,838 4,547 4,319 806,631 

Car batteries 164 131 174,710 191 153 231,456 
Other
Total 26,207 19,169 4,747,774 27,741 22,875 6,571,561

(VI) An indication of the volume/value of units sold for the past two years: 
Unit: Quantity / Thousand units, Value / NT$ Thousand

Major products:
2021 2022

Domestic sales Overseas sales Domestic sales Overseas sales
Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value

Electronic 
sealed batteries

575 398,865 14,056 4,220,612 624 402,453 15,803 5,655,751

Motorcycle 
batteries

4 1,322 3,904 900,270 6 2,036 3,941 1,010,056

Car batteries 3 8,006 132 180,393 2 6,462 141 219,311
Other 88,280 22,659
Total 582 408,193 18,092 5,389,555 632 410,951 19,885 6,907,777
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III. Information on employees
The number of employees employed in the group in the past two years, and 
during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report:

Year 2021 2022 2023
(up to March 31)

Number of 
employees

Cadre and technical staff 388 402 406
Operators 2,747 2,962 3,007
Manage business and other 323 345 341

Total 3,458 3,709 3,754
Average age 34.89 34.77 34.72

Average length of service 5.75 5.76 5.72

Education 
distribution 

ratio

Ph.D. 0 0 0
Master 12 12 12
University 154 154 134
College 196 208 206
Senior high school and below 3,096 3,335 3,402

Note: The above information is based on the payroll for December 31, 2021 and 2022 and March 31, 2023.

IV. Disbursements for environmental protection
(I) Describing any losses suffered by the company in 2022 and up to the

publication date of the annual report due to environmental pollution 
incidents (including any compensation paid), and an estimate of possible 
expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures 
being or to be taken: None.

(II) In response to RoHS:
According to European Commission’s Frequently asked Questions on 
directive 2002/95/EC on the ROHS and WEEE, the WEEE and RoHS 
directives do not apply to batteries. Nevertheless, as the Company 
manufactures lead-acid batteries, Directive 2006/66/EC on “batteries and 
accumulators and waste batteries and waste accumulators” and the 
2013/56/EU amendment are complied with.

(III) Greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory:
GHG emission inventory can be divided into Scope 1 and Scope 2:
Scope 1: Direct emissions from the plant, including fugitive emissions that 

use fuel such as gasoline and diesel from company cars, product 
transport vehicles, and forklifts.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions for purchased electricity.
Unit: Metric tons of Co2/year

Year Scope 1 Scope 2 Total
2021 4,684.15 51,375.48 56,059.63
2022 8,024.10 71,621.80 79,645.90
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(IV) Total water consumption and waste
Unit: Ton

Year Water 
consumption

Hazardous 
business waste

General 
business waste

2021 324,636 1,949 867
2022 374,928 2,491 1,089

(V)  Energy reduction measures:
In addition to continuing with the past effective control and reduction 
measures, we also make an effort to promote and implement the following 
energy reduction measures:
1. Electricity reduction:

(1) Reduce the amount of air conditioning used during the peak period
(2) Pay continued attention to and check and replace damaged capacitors

to improve the overall power factor in electricity consumption.
(3) High-efficiency equipment introduced to reduce electricity needs.
(4) Unnecessary lighting removed to switch to zoned lighting.
(5) A new-type insulation mechanism is used in some sections to reduce 

the power consumption of heating.
(6) Electrode plate and battery charging improvement and some battery 

specifications were changed to chemical conversion coating to reduce 
electric power.

(7) The outdoor lighting of the plant was replaced with LED lighting 
which is solar powered.

(8) Low wattage LED lamps used to replace T5 lamps to reduce 
electricity consumption.

2. Gas reduction:
(1) Gas heating is replaced with steam or electric heating.
(2) The gas heating equipment is added with a insulation material to

reduce the heat energy supplement of burning gas.
(3) Automated equipment continuingly introduced in the assembly line to 

reduce the amount of gas used for welding.
(4) Vendor asked to check gas leakage of each pipeline and to repair any 

leakage.
3. Fuel reduction:

(1) Registration and control of fuel consumption for individual vehicles
are required in a strict manner

(2) Forklifts or company cars (vans) with excessive fuel consumption 
replaced with new hire vehicles to reduce fuel consumption.

4. Water reduction:
(1) Unidentified and unused pipelines disconnected and the pressure of

the booster pump reduced to reduce water consumption and increase 
some water meters to control water consumption.

(2) Treated water bodies are centrally stored and reused by supplying 
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them to other equipment in order to improve the diverse use of water 
resources and emission reduction measures.

(VI) The Company's environmental maintenance and protection related 
expenses for 2022 were NT$4,583 thousand.
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V. Labor relations
(I) Employee welfare measures, further education, training:

At Kung Long, we uphold a pragmatic and sustainable management 
philosophy and value the welfare of employees highly. In 1991, we 
established an Employee Welfare Committee to coordinate various welfare 
measures of employees. 
1. Insurance:

(1) Our employees are covered with labor insurance and national health
insurance since the date of their employment.

(2) Employees on business overseas are covered with accident insurance 
at least NT$10 million.

(3) To protect our employees, we also take out group medical insurance 
for them.

2. Various emergency relief funds: Including the death and hospitalization of
the employee, and the death of an employee’s first degree relative.

3. Various subsidies: Including wedding and birthday money/gift, birth
money/gift for the employee or their spouse.

4. Regular company trips in Taiwan or overseas.
5. Annual physical examination.
6. Meal allowance and a bottle of fresh milk a day.
7. From time to time, we appoint external instructors to perform education

and training within the Company and select employees, according to their
expertise, to perform education and training outside the Company.

8. Money/Gifts on 3 festivals: Labor Day, Mid-Autumn Festival and Spring
Festival.

9. Year-end bonus and employee remuneration.
10. Multiple sports clubs have been established to encourage employees to

exercise.
11. Regular organize hiking activities and seminars on health.
12. Children of outstanding employees are selected to receive scholarships.
13. Year-end party and prize draws are held each year to reward employees.
14. Employee health management and psychological counseling channels are

provided.
(II) Retirement system and its implementation:

In July 1, 2005, we established a defined contribution pension plan in 
accordance with the “Labor Pension Act” applicable to Taiwanese employees. 
For employees who opted for the labor pension system under the “Labor 
Pension Act”, the Company makes monthly contribution of 6% of their wage 
to their personal account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The employees’ 
pension is paid to the employees’ personal pension account and the 
accumulated earnings are received in the form of monthly pension or lump-
sum; or the Company may choose to apply the employee retirement plan under 
the Labor Standards Act, which provides for monthly contributions to a special 
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account at the Bank of Taiwan, and the Pension Fund Supervision and 
Management Committee is responsible for the management of the pension

(III) Status of labor-management agreements and measures for preserving 
employees’ rights and interests:

As the Company values welfare matters of employees and attaches importance 
to the coordination of employee communication, labor relations are pleasant. 
However, the Company shall work on improving various welfare measures to 
make the labor relations more harmonious, further eliminating possible labor 
disputes.

(IV) Code of conduct and ethics for employees
The Company has adopted the “Ethical Corporate Management Policy”, the 
“Guidelines for the Adoption of Codes of Ethical Conduct” and applicable 
management rules for directors, company officers and employees. These are to 
prohibit any unethical conduct and avoid opportunities for self-interest, 
prohibit bribery and accepting bribes, while protecting and appropriately using 
company assets, complying with regulations, and encouraging the reporting of 
any unlawful acts or breaches of regulations.

(V) Workplace and employee safety protection measures:
Given the importance of the protection measures of the workplace and 
employees, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 environmental and occupational safety 
and health management systems have been adopted to control major 
environmental considerations and occupational safety and health risks. This 
way, we are able to ensure the safety and health of the workplace.

(II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up 
to the annual report publication date due to labor disputes, and disclosing an 
estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future 
and measures being or to be taken: None.

VI. Cyber security management
(I) Cyber security policy formulation: 

As a means to ensure the security and stability of information, we prevent 
unauthorized access, use, control, leakage, destruction, tampering, destruction, 
or other infringement of information or information systems. To meet the 
regulations of the Cyber Security Management Act and its bylaws, we ensure 
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information in order to 
smoothly facilitate the Company’s various businesses. We have adopted a 
cyber security policy used as the top guidelines for cyber security 
management. 
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(II) Cyber security risk management framework: 

In order to strengthen the information security of the Company, improve the 
information security management system, and ensure the effective operation 
of the information security management system, the Company established the 
Information Security Management Committee, and an Information Security 
Group (as shown in the organizational structure diagram above) is established 
under the Information Security Committee. The Group is responsible for 
reviewing the Company's information security policies and supervising the 
operation of information security management, in order to build a 
comprehensive information security defense capability and good information 
security awareness among the staff. If a security incident occurs, it is 
necessary to report it to the emergency response team, and take appropriate 
response measures according to the infocomm security incident level, and 
respond in the shortest possible time to ensure the normal operation of the 
Company. 

(III) Cyber security risk management framework: 
The Company’s cyber security policy applies to its employees, vendors and 
third parties who have access to the Company’s business or provide services 
to the Company. 

(IV) Cyber security risk objectives: 
1. Quantitative objectives:

(1) Ensure that the availability of the server room for transport services 
reach 98% of the annual working hours throughout the year. 

(2) Ensure that the availability of each critical business system reaches 
98% of the annual working hours throughout the year. 

(3) Cyber security incident of data leakage on cyber security system ( 2
times/year).

(4) Unauthorized incident of account authority management ( 1/year).
(5) Information security and social engineering education and training (2 

times/year). 
(6) Continued business continuity planning (1 time/year). 
(7) The Company’s internal audit on information security (1 time/year).

Information 

Maintenance 
Team

Emergency 
Handling Team
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2. Value-oriented objectives:
(1) Timely respond to regulatory and technological changes to adjust 

cyber security maintenance contents. By doing so, we are able to 
prevent unauthorized access, use, control, leakage, destruction, 
tampering, destruction, or other infringement of information or 
information systems. 

(2) Achieve the requirements of cyber security responsibility level 
classification to reduce the threat of exposure to information security 
risks. 

(3) Improve information security protection awareness among personnel 
to effectively detect and prevent external attacks. 

(4) Ensure that all information security accidents and incidents or 
suspected security weaknesses are reported upwards according to the 
appropriate notification mechanism and are properly investigated and 
handled. 

(V) Specific management measures for cyber security risks: 
1. Multi-layer information security protection:

(1) Network security: 
In terms of network security defense measures, we have adopted a 
multi-layer network security defense system. At the front end of 
network, firewalls and anti-virus system have been installed as the 
foundation of information security protection. Anti-virus software has 
also been deployed in internal hosts and endpoints by the central 
console to update virus codes at any time and instantly identify 
malicious behaviors to block viruses and Trojan horse and worms, 
ransomware, and malwares in documents, effectively reducing the 
risk of damage caused by hackers. In terms of business continuity 
planning, we have built an uninterruptible power supply in the server 
room which provides continuous power supply for 5-6 hours in the 
event of an emergency continuous power outage. We also have a 
complete backup mechanism and perform regular business continuity 
drills each year to ensure that the Company’s operations are 
uninterrupted. 

(2) Device security 
We have built an inbound scanning mechanism for cyber and 
communication equipment to prevent machines containing malware 
from entering the Company. We also establish endpoint anti-virus 
measures according to the type of computers, strengthening malware 
behavior detection. 

(3) Supply chain information security 
We have established a supplier information security self-inspection 
mechanism to regular convey the Company’s latest information 
security regulations and precautions. 
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(4) Reinforcement of information security protection technology 
Documents and information are encrypted to effectively track 
outgoing mail of important information by adopting multi-backup 
approaches. 

2. Strengthening information security awareness:
(1) Training and promotion 

To enhance information security awareness among employees, we 
strengthen the alertness of employees with respect to social 
engineering attacks in emails and implement phishing email defense 
detection. Furthermore, we also announce news of recent major 
information security attacks and regularly perform information 
security promotion. 

(VI) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up 
to the annual report publication date due to significant cyber security incidents, 
the possible impacts therefrom, and measures being or to be taken: None. 

VII. Important contracts
Current effective important contracts and important contracts expired in the most 
recent year:
Nature of contract Parties Start and end dates of 

the contract Main contents Restrictive 
clause

Contract for 
buying and selling 
raw materials

30TWN018

2022.01.01-2022.12.31 Contract for buying and selling raw
materials signed None

29TWN021

29SGP002

30KOR001

26VNM008

33VNM001

Contract for 
buying and selling 
finished products

ARE0006 2021.02.28-2022.12.31

Basic purchase contract for volume of 
annual finished products signed None

USA0035 2021.10.17-2025.10.16

ITA0008 2022.01.01-2022.12.31

ARE0006 2022.01.01-2022.12.31

ARE0019 2022.01.01-2022.12.31

ARE0023 2022.01.01-2022.12.31

ESP0005 2022.01.03-2024.01.02

TWN0840 2022.09.01-2023.08.31
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Six. An Overview of the Company’s Financial Status

I. Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income

(I) Condensed Financial Statements for the Past 5 Fiscal Years (Consolidated) - 
Under IFRS

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year
Item

Financial Information for the Past 5 Fiscal Years Financial 
information for 
the year up to 

March 31, 2023 
(Note 1)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Current assets 4,547,732 4,182,709 4,270,945 4,125,125 4,778,661 4,755,871
Property, plant and
equipment (Note 2) 1,059,402 1,044,753 881,918 751,296 742,867 720,350

Intangible assets 
(Note 2) 3,768 2,357 1,141 613 2,442 2,267

Other assets (Note 2) 202,182 211,871 291,594 377,844 321,671 372,871
Total assets 5,813,084 5,441,690 5,445,598 5,254,878 5,845,641 5,851,359

Current 
liabilities

Before 
distribution 1,534,340 989,703 1,039,199 1,057,958 1,083,764 961,482

After 
distribution 2,352,194 1,807,557 1,857,555 1,631,159 1,083,764

(Note 3)
961,482
(Note 3)

Non-current liabilities 362,120 392,266 416,295 410,055 417,061 432,664

Total 
liabilities

Before 
distribution 1,896,460 1,381,969 1,455,494 1,468,013 1,500,825 1,394,146

After 
distribution 2,714,314 2,199,523 2,273,850 2,041,214 1,500,825

(Note 3)
1,394,146

(Note 3)
Equity attributable to 
owners of the parent 

company
3,916,624 4,059,721 3,990,104 3,786,865 4,344,816 4,457,213

Share capital 817,854 817,854 820,684 820,664 820,664 820,664
Capital surplus 665,000 665,000 702,215 701,951 701,951 701,951

Retained 
earnings

Before 
distribution 2,398,270 2,591,637 2,652,004 2,459,385 2,773,056 2,894,610

After 
distribution 1,580,416 1,773,783 1,833,648 1,886,184 2,773,056

(Note 3)
2,894,610

(Note 3)
Other equity 35,500 (14,770) (184,799) (195,135) 49,145 39,988

Treasury stocks - - - - - -
Non-controlling 

interests - - - - - -

Total 
equity

Before 
distribution 3,916,624 4,059,721 3,990,104 3,786,865 4,344,816 4,457,213

After 
distribution 3,098,770 3,251,867 3,171,748 3,213,664 4,344,816

(Note 3)
4,457,213

(Note 3)
Note 1: Financial information up to 2023Q1 reviewed by the CPAs under the IFRS.
Note 2: No revaluation of assets conducted in each year.
Note 3: Up to the publication date, the motion for the 2022 earnings distribution was approved by the Board meeting 

on March 24, 2023, but has not yet been approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
Note 4: The Company was not notified of correction or restatement by the competent authority.
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(II) Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Past 5 Fiscal Years 
(Consolidated) - Under IFRS:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year
Item

Financial Information for the Past 5 Fiscal Years Financial 
information for 
the year up to 

March 31, 2023 
(Note 1)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating income 8,489,866 7,933,589 7,119,214 5,797,748 7,318,728 1,428,755
Gross profit 1,831,069 1,854,822 1,655,136 1,220,582 1,525,720 269,896
Operating profit and 
loss 1,242,791 1,312,999 1,199,446 794,617 941,519 155,579
Non-operating 
income and expenses 89,074 31,121 (13,819) 22,920 235,818 8,654
Profit before tax 1,331,865 1,344,120 1,185,627 817,537 1,177,337 164,233
Profit from 
continuing operations 
for the period

982,996 1,007,068 879,196 620,038 881,575 121,554

Discontinuing 
operation losses - - - - - -
Net income (loss) for 
the period 982,996 1,007,068 879,196 620,038 881,575 121,554
Other comprehensive 
income for the period 
(net after tax)

79,016 (51,121) (135,353) (13,601) 240,886 (11,330)

Total comprehensive 
income for the period 1,062,012 955,947 743,843 606,437 1,122,461 110,224
Net income 
attributable to owners 
of the parent 
company

982,996 1,007,068 879,196 620,038 881,575 121,554

Net income 
attributable to non-
controlling interests

- - - - - -

Total comprehensive 
income attributable 
to owners of the 
parent company

1,062,012 955,947 743,843 606,437 1,122,461 110,224

Total comprehensive 
income attributable 
to non-controlling 
interests

- - - - - -

Earnings per share 
(NT$) 12.03 12.32 10.75 7.58 10.77 1.48
Note 1: Financial information up to 2023Q1 reviewed by the CPAs under the IFRS.
Note 2: The Company was not notified of correction or restatement by the competent authority.
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(III)Condensed Financial Statements for the Past 5 Fiscal Years (Parent Company 
Only) - Under IFRS

Unit: NT$ thousand
Year

Item
Financial Information for the Past 5 Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Current assets 2,247,116 2,218,517 2,438,079 1,675,795 2,244,786

Property, plant and 
equipment (Note 1) 142,536 137,082 131,028 124,943 120,486

Intangible assets 
(Note 1) - - - - -

Other assets (Note 1) 2,901,776 3,015,143 3,069,960 3,043,040 3,350,436
Total assets 5,291,428 5,370,742 5,639,067 4,843,778 5,715,708

Current 
liabilities

Before 
distribution 1,014,049 923,560 1,233,932 646,976 953,962

After 
distribution 1,831,903 1,741,414 2,052,288 1,220,177 953,962

(Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 360,755 387,461 415,031 409,937 416,930

Total 
liabilities

Before 
distribution 1,374,804 1,311,021 1,648,963 1,056,913 1,370,892

After 
distribution 2,192,658 2,128,875 2,467,319 1,630,114 1,370,892

(Note 2)
Share capital 817,854 817,854 820,684 820,664 820,664

Capital surplus 665,000 665,000 702,215 701,951 701,951

Retained 
earnings

Before 
distribution 2,398,270 2,591,637 2,652,004 2,459,385 2,773,056

After 
distribution 1,580,416 1,773,783 1,833,648 1,886,184 2,773,056

(Note 2)
Other equity 35,500 (14,770) (184,799) (195,135) 49,145

Treasury stocks - - - - -

Total 
equity

Before 
distribution 3,916,624 4,059,721 3,990,104 3,786,865 4,344,816

After 
distribution 3,098,770 3,241,867 3,171,148 3,213,664 4,344,816

(Note 2)
Note 1: No revaluation of assets conducted in each year.
Note 2: Up to the publication date, the motion for the 2022 earnings distribution was approved by the Board meeting 

on March 24, 2023, but has not yet been approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
Note 3: The Company was not notified of correction or restatement by the competent authority. 
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(IV) Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Past 5 Fiscal Years 
(Parent Company Only) - Under IFRS:

Unit: NT$ thousand
Year

Item
Financial Information for the Past 5 Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating income 6,742,627 6,290,090 5,584,637 4,428,931 5,574,513
Gross profit 1,054,897 1,128,309 990,756 781,070 914,940
Operating profit and 
loss 723,659 823,330 765,211 557,437 581,482
Non-operating income
and expenditure 510,024 439,110 337,770 218,820 514,819
Profit before tax 1,233,683 1,262,440 1,102,981 776,257 1,096,301
Profit from continuing 
operations for the 
period
Net income for the 
period

982,996 1,007,068 879,196 620,038 881,575

Discontinuing operation 
losses - - - - -
Net income for the 
period 982,996 1,007,068 879,196 620,038 881,575
Other comprehensive 
income for the period 
(net after tax)

79,016 (51,121) (135,353) (13,601) 240,886

Total comprehensive 
income for the period 1,062,012 955,947 743,843 606,437 1,122,461
Earnings per share 
(NT$) 12.03 12.32 10.75 7.58 10.77

Note: The Company was not notified of correction or restatement by the competent authority.

(V) The names and opinions of the attesting CPA for the most recent 5 fiscal years:

Year CPA Names of Certified 
Public Accountants

Audit Opinion Remark

2018 PwC Taiwan Yang Ming-Ching, 
Hsu Chien-Yeh

Unqualified opinion
No other matter 
paragraph

None

2019 PwC Taiwan Yang Ming-Ching, 
Hsu Chien-Yeh

Unqualified opinion
No other matter 
paragraph

None

2020 PwC Taiwan Hsu Chien-Yeh, Wu 
Sung-Yuan

Unqualified opinion
No other matter 
paragraph

None

2021 PwC Taiwan Hsu Chien-Yeh, Wu 
Sung-Yuan

Unqualified opinion
No other matter 
paragraph

None

2022 PwC Taiwan Hsu Chien-Yeh, Wu 
Sung-Yuan

Unqualified opinion
No other matter 
paragraph

None
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II. Financial analysi
(I) Financial Information Analysis for the Past 5 Fiscal Years (Consolidated) -

Under IFRS
Year

Item

Financial Analyses for the Past Five Fiscal Years Financial analysis 
for the year up to 
March 31, 2023 
(Note 1)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Financial 
structure

Ratio of liabilities to assets (%) 32.62 25.40 24.11 27.94 25.67 23.83
Ratio of long-term funds to real
estate, plant, and equipment (%) 403.88 426.13 499.64 558.62 641.01 678.82

Solvency
Current ratio (%) 296.40 422.62 410.98 389.91 440.93 494.64
Quick ratio (%) 171.27 277.70 267.58 211.22 242.12 285.36
Times interest earned 254.30 317.49 1,217.03 1,108.77 5,187.51 3,820.37

Operating 
capabilities

Accounts receivable turnover 
ratio (times) 6.68 6.46 6.73 6.90 9.94 7.55

Average collection days 54.64 56.50 54.23 52.90 36.72 48.34
Inventory turnover (times) 3.67 3.58 3.67 2.67 2.83 2.21
Accounts payable turnover ratio 
(times) 15.64 16.14 17.43 13.63 19.18 16.87

Average sales days 99.46 101.96 99.46 136.70 128.98 165.16
Property, plant and equipment 
turnover (times) 8.03 7.54 7.39 7.10 9.80 7.81

Total asset turnover ratio (times) 1.53 1.41 1.31 1.08 1.32 0.98

Profitability

Return on assets (%) 17.84 17.96 16.17 11.60 15.89 2.08
Return on assets (%) 26.06 25.25 21.84 15.95 21.68 2.76
Ratio of net income before tax 
to paid-in capital (%) 162.85 164.35 144.47 99.62 143.46 20.01

Profit margin (%) 11.58 12.69 12.35 10.69 12.05 8.51
Earnings per share (NT$) 12.03 12.32 10.75 7.58 10.77 1.48

Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%) 75.82 168.39 122.68 55.77 78.84 23.66
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 104.73 119.14 124.96 125.82 116.31 131.95
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 6.83 14.43 7.64 - 4.12 3.26

Leverage Operating leverage 1.41 1.41 1.29 1.51 1.53 1.71
Financial leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Please explain the reason for ratio changes in financial information in the most recent 2 fiscal years: 
(increase or decrease change of 20% or more in two periods)
1. Times Interest Earned: This year's operating income increased by NT$1,520,980 thousand, resulting in an

increase of NT$359,800 thousand in pre tax net profit and a 368% increase in times interest earned.
2. Accounts Receivable Turnover Rate and Average Cash Collection Days: Due to an increase of NT$1,520,980 in 

operating revenue this year, the accounts receivable turnover rate and average cash collection days increased by 
44% and decreased by 31%, respectively.

3. Payable Turnover Rate: This year, due to an increase in operating costs of NT$1,215,842 thousand, the payable 
turnover rate increased by 41%.

4. Property, Plants, and Equipment Turnover Rate and Total Asset Turnover Rate: This year, due to an increase of 
NT$1,520,980 in operating revenue, the property, plants, and equipment turnover rate increased by 38%, and the
total asset turnover rate increased by 22%.

5. Return on Assets, Return on Equity, Ratio of Pre-tax Net Profit to Paid-in Capital, and Earnings per Share: This 
year, due to an increase in operating income of NT$1,520,980 thousand, the pre-tax net profit increased by 
NT$359,800 thousand and the post-tax net profit increased by NT$261,537 thousand, resulting in an increase of 
37% in return on assets, 36% in return on equity, 44% in pre-tax net profit to paid-in capital, and 42% in earnings 
per share.

6. Cash Flow Ratio: Due to an increase of NT$264,396 thousand in net cash inflow from operating activities
compared with that in the previous year, the available cash increased, resulting in a 41% increase in cash flow 
ratio.

7. Cash Reinvestment Ratio: Due to an increase of NT$264,396 thousand in net cash inflow from operating 
activities compared with that in the previous year, the available cash increased, resulting in a increase in cash
reinvestment ratio.

Note 1: Financial information up to 2023Q1 reviewed by the CPAs under the IFRS.
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Note 2: Financial ratios are calculated as follows:
1. Financial structure:

(1) Ratio of liabilities to assets = Total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Ratio of long-term funds to property, plant, and equipment = (Total equity + non-current liabilities) /

net property, plant and equipment.
2. Solvency:

(1) Current ratio = Current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - inventory - prepayment) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = Net profit before income tax and interest expenses / interest expenses for the

period.
3. Operating capabilities:

(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from operation) turnover ratio = Net
sales / average of accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from 
operation) balance.

(2) Average collection days = 365 / accounts receivable turnover ratio.
(3) Inventory turnover = Cost of sales / average inventory.
(4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable from operation) turnover ratio = Cost of 

sales / average of accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable from operation) 
balance.

(5) Average sales days = 365 / inventory turnover.
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover ratio = Net sales / average net property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total assets turnover ratio = Net sales / average total assets.

4. Profitability:
(1) Return on assets = [Profit and loss after tax + interest expense × (1 - tax rate)] / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = Profit and loss after tax / average total equity.
(3) Net profit margin = Profit and loss after tax / net sales.
(4) EPS = Profit and loss attributable to owners of parent company - dividends from preferred shares) /

weighted average number of outstanding shares.
(Note: For the transfer of undistributed earnings to capital increase, the calculation of the weighted 
average number of outstanding shares was based on a retrospective adjustment approach)

5. Cash flow:
(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities in the most recent five years /

(capital expenditure + increase in inventory + cash dividends) for the past 5 fiscal years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - cash dividends) / (gross of 

property, plant and equipment +
long-term investment + other non-current assets + operating funds).

6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - variable operating costs and expenses of operations) /

operating profit.
(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit/ (operating profit - interest expenses).
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(II) Financial Information Analysis for the Past 5 Fiscal Years (Parent Company 
Only) - Under IFRS

Year
Item

Financial Information for the Past 5 Fiscal Years
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Financial 
structure

Ratio of liabilities to assets (%) 25.98 24.41 29.24 21.82 23.98
Ratio of long-term funds to real estate, 
plant, and equipment (%) 3,000.91 3,244.18 3,361.98 3,358.97 3,952.12

Solvency
Current ratio (%) 221.60 240.21 197.59 259.02 235.31
Quick ratio (%) 184.44 223.28 178.93 233.70 194.53
Times interest earned 370.15 809.22 2,039.78 1,614.84 5,510.05

Operating 
capabilities

Accounts receivable turnover ratio 
(times) 6.37 6.43 6.54 6.59 9.56

Average collection days 57.30 56.77 55.81 55.39 38.18
Inventory turnover (times) 17.89 19.42 24.10 18.70 16.88
Accounts payable turnover ratio (times) 29.62 15.70 8.65 10.00 29.55
Average sales days 20.40 18.80 15.15 19.52 21.62
Property, plant and equipment turnover 
(times) 49.66 44.99 41.66 34.61 45.43

Total asset turnover ratio (times) 1.33 1.18 1.01 0.85 1.06

Profitability

Return on assets (%) 19.48 18.91 15.98 11.84 16.70
Return on assets (%) 26.06 25.25 21.84 15.95 21.68
Ratio of net income before tax to paid-
in capital (%) 150.84 154.36 134.40 94.59 133.59

Profit margin (%) 14.58 16.01 15.74 14.00 15.81
Earnings per share (NT$) 12.03 12.32 10.75 7.58 10.77

Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%) 85.31 110.76 85.42 2.04 79.95
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 71.49 83.34 88.08 78.57 93.90
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 2.05 4.59 5.36 - 3.93

Leverage Operating leverage 1.05 1.04 1.03 1.06 1.06
Financial leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Please explain the reason for ratio changes in financial information in the most recent 2 fiscal years: 
(increase or decrease change of 20% or more in two periods)
1. Times Interest Earned: This year's operating income increased by NT$1,145,582 thousand, resulting in 

an increase of NT$320,044 thousand in pre tax net profit and a 241% increase in times interest earned.
2. Accounts Receivable Turnover Rate and Average Cash Collection Days: Due to an increase of 

NT$1,145,582 in operating revenue this year, the accounts receivable turnover rate and average cash 
collection days increased by 45% and decreased by 31%, respectively.

3. Payable Turnover Rate: This year, due to an increase in operating costs of NT$1,013,141 thousand, the 
payable turnover rate increased by 196%.

4. Property, Plants, and Equipment Turnover Rate and Total Asset Turnover Rate: This year, due to an 
increase of NT$1,145,582 in operating revenue, the property, plants, and equipment turnover rate 
increased by 31%, and the total asset turnover rate increased by 25%.

5. Return on Assets, Return on Equity, Ratio of Pre-tax Net Profit to Paid-in Capital, and Earnings per 
Share: This year, due to an increase in operating income of NT$1,145,582 thousand, the pre-tax net 
profit increased by NT$320,044 thousand and the post-tax net profit increased by NT$261,537 
thousand, resulting in an increase of 41% in return on assets, 36% in return on equity, 41% in pre-tax 
net profit to paid-in capital, and 42% in earnings per share.

6. Cash Flow Ratio: Due to an increase of NT$800,925 thousand in net cash inflow from operating 
activities compared with that in the previous year, the available cash increased, resulting in a 3,819% 
increase in cash flow ratio.

7. Cash Reinvestment Ratio: Due to an increase of NT$800,925 thousand in net cash inflow from 
operating activities compared with that in the previous year, the available cash increased, resulting in a 
increase in cash reinvestment ratio.

115



Note 1: Financial ratios are calculated as follows:
1. Financial structure:

(1) Ratio of liabilities to assets = Total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Ratio of long-term funds to property, plant, and equipment = (Total equity + non-current liabilities) / 

net property, plant and equipment.
2. Solvency:

(1) Current ratio = Current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - inventory - prepayment) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = Net profit before income tax and interest expenses / interest expenses for the 

period.
3. Operating capabilities:

(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from operation) turnover ratio = Net 
sales / average of accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from 
operation) balance.

(2) Average collection days = 365 / accounts receivable turnover ratio.
(3) Inventory turnover = Cost of sales / average inventory.
(4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable from operation) turnover ratio = Cost of 

sales / average of accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable from operation) 
balance.

(5) Average sales days = 365 / inventory turnover.
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover ratio = Net sales / average net property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total assets turnover ratio = Net sales / average total assets.

4. Profitability:
(1) Return on assets = [Profit and loss after tax + interest expense × (1 - tax rate)] / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = Profit and loss after tax / average total equity.
(3) Net profit margin = Profit and loss after tax / net sales.
(4) EPS = Profit and loss attributable to owners of parent company - dividends from preferred shares) / 

weighted average number of outstanding shares.
(Note: For the transfer of undistributed earnings to capital increase, the calculation of the weighted 
average number of outstanding shares was based on a retrospective adjustment approach)

5. Cash flow:
(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities in the most recent five years / 

(capital expenditure + increase in inventory + cash dividends) for the past 5 fiscal years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - cash dividends) / (gross of 

property, plant and equipment + long-term investment + other non-current assets + operating funds).
6. Leverage:

(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - variable operating costs and expenses of operations) / 
operating profit.

(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit/ (operating profit - interest expenses).
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III. Review report of the Audit Committee for the latest annual financial
statement

Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors prepared the Company’s 2022 business report and annual 
financial statements (including parent company only financial report and consolidated 
financial report). Among them, the annual financial report was audited by CPAs Hsu 
Chien-Yeh and Wu Sung-Yuan of PwC Taiwan as commissioned by the Board of 
Directors. The reports were considered adequate to present the financial results and 
cash flow of the Company, and issue an audit report with unqualified opinions and 
other paragraphs. The business report, annual financial reports, and earnings 
distribution proposal stated above have been audited by the Audit Committee with no 
discrepancy found; we therefore present the recognition report based on the provisions 
of Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company 
Act.

To

2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., 
Ltd.

Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd.

Convener of the Audit Committee: Wang Cho-Chun

March 24, 2023
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IV. Consolidated Financial Report for the Most Recent Fiscal Year
Certified by CPAs:
Please refer to Appendix 1

V. A parent company only financial report for the most recent fiscal year:
Please refer to Appendix 2 

VI. If the company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties in
the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the
date of publication of the annual report, the annual report shall explain
how said difficulties will affect the company’s financial situation:
None.
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Seven. Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Financial 
Performance, and Risk Items

I. Financial Position
Unit: NT$ thousand

Year
Item 2022 2021

Difference
Amount Ratio of 

change (%)
Current assets 4,778,661 4,125,125 653,536 15.84
Property, plant and 
equipment 742,867 751,296 (8,429) (1.12)

Other assets 324,113 378,457 (54,344) (14.36)
Total assets 5,845,641 5,254,878 590,763 11.24

Current liabilities 1,083,764 1,057,958 25,806 2.44
Non-current 
liabilities 417,061 410,055 7,006 1.71

Total liabilities 1,500,825 1,468,013 32,812 2.24
Share capital 820,664 820,664 - -
Capital surplus 701,951 701,951 - -
Retained earnings 2,773,056 2,459,385 313,671 12.75
Other equity 49,145 (195,135) 244,280 125.19

Total equity 
attributable to owners 
of the parent company

4,344,816 3,786,865 557,951 14.73

Non-controlling 
interests

- - - -

Total equity of 
shareholders 4,344,816 3,786,865 557,951 14.73
Analysis of ratio changes: (reaching 20 percent and amounting to NT$10 million or more in 2 periods)
1.Other Equity: Mainly due to the exchange differences on translation 

foreign financial statements this year.
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II. Financial Performance
(I) Analysis of financial performance comparison

Unit: NT$ thousand
Year

Item 2022 2021
Difference

Amount Ratio of change 
(%)

Operating income 7,318,728 5,797,748 1,520,980 26.23
Operating costs (5,793,008) (4,577,166) 1,215,842 26.56
Gross profit 1,525,720 1,220,582 305,138 25.00
Operating expenses (584,201) (425,965) 158,236 37.15
Operating income 941,519 794,617 146,902 18.49
Subtotal of non-operating income and 
expenses 235,818 22,920 212,898 928.87

Profit before tax 1,177,337 817,537 359,800 44.01
Income tax expense (295,762) (197,499) 98,263 49.75
Net income for the period 881,575 620,038 261,537 42.18
Analysis of ratio changes reaching 20 percent and amounting to NT$10 million or more in 2 periods:
1. Operating Income, Operating costs, Gross Profit From Operations, Operating

Expenses, Net Operating Income, Net Profit Before Tax, Income Tax Expenses, and
Net Profit After Tax: Due to the shutdown of the Vietnam plant for two months as a

result of the impact of the pandemic in the previous period but 
not in this period, the operating income increased, resulting in
an increase in gross profit from operations, related expenses, 
and net profit.

2. Non-operating Income and Expenses: Mainly due to the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations, resulting in an increase in exchange gains.

(II) Reason for change in the Company’s major business content: The 
Company did not change its major business content.

(III) Projected sales volume in the coming year and its basis, and the main 
factors affecting the Company’s projected continuous growth in sales 
volume:
1. The Company’s project sales volume in the coming year is 21,916

thousand.
2. Main factors affecting the Company’s projected continuous growth

in sales volume:
(1) In response to the trend of cloud and virtualization, the market

size of small, medium and large enterprises will continue to 
grow, further prompting the continuous growth of the demand 
for UPS.

(2) Thanks to the growing economy and the expansion of the 
market for automobiles, motorcycles and electric vehicles in 
Vietnam, the demand for the Company’s lead-acid batteries in 
the assembly plant and repair market channels remains thriving. 
In response to motorcycle stop start batteries developed by a 
large Japanese motorcycle manufacturer, we continue to 
increase the approved specifications to increase our shipment 
volume. In addition, we have been engaging ourselves in the 
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local telecommunications base station in Vietnam. The local 
sales of our subsidiary, Le Long Vietnam, are expected to grow 
with a steady pace. The demand for quality of electricity, 
renewable energy and green energy storage in emerging 
markets is constantly increasing, in particular large long-life 
batteries. By investing in domestic and foreign as well as local 
large tenders in Vietnam, the market penetration rate and share 
of the Company’s products will be largely increased. As other 
markets and existing customers have considerable purchase 
power, we take a proactive approach to develop new markets 
and customers. With costs and expenses reasonably controlled, 
we make an effort to secure our core competencies. Moreover, 
we continue to improve our operational performance with a 
pragmatic management strategy.

III. Cash Flow
(I) Analysis of cash flow changes in 2022:

 Unit: NT$ thousand

Opening cash 
balance

Net cash 
flow from 
operating 

activities for 
the year

Net cash 
outflow from 
investing and 

financing 
activities for 

the year

Effects of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 

rates

Residual 
cash 

amount

Remedies for 
cash shortfalls

Invest
ment
plan

Financi
al plan

1,329,030 854,399 (706,423) 242,846 1,719,852 - -
Compared with that in 2021, the Company’s net cash decreased by 
NT$390,822 thousand in 2022. The changes in cash flows from operating 
activities are as follows:
1. The net inflow from operating activities was NT$854,399 thousand, mainly

due to the stable growth of the Company's profits in the current year,
resulting in an increase in cash inflows.

2. The net outflow from investment activities was NT$96,234 thousand,
mainly due to the purchase of financial assets and equipment in the current
year.

3. The net outflow from financing activities was NT$610,189 thousand,
mainly due to the payment of cash dividends.
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(II)Remedies for cash shortfalls and liquidity analysis:
1. Financial plan: Not applicable.
2. Liquidity analysis:

Year
Item 2022 2021

Increase 
(decrease) 

amount (%)
Cash flow ratio (%) 78.84 55.77 41.37
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 116.31 125.82 (7.56)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 4.12 - -
Analysis of ratio changes: (reaching 20 percent in 2 periods)
1. Cash Flow Ratio: Due to an increase of NT$264,396 thousand in net cash 

inflow from operating activities compared with that in the previous year, 
the available cash increased, resulting in a 41% increase in cash flow 
ratio.

2. Cash Reinvestment Ratio: Due to an increase of NT$264,396 thousand in 
net cash inflow from operating activities compared with that in the 
previous year, the available cash increased, resulting in a increase in cash 
reinvestment ratio.

(III) Liquidity analysis for the coming year:
Unit: NT$ thousand

Opening cash 
balance

(1)

Estimated 
full-year net 
cash inflow 

from 
operating 
activities

(2)

Net cash 
outflow from 
investing and 

financing 
activities for 

the year
(3)

Estimated 
residual cash 

amount
(1)+(2)-(3)

Remedies for estimated 
cash shortfalls

Investment 
plan

Financial 
plan

1,719,852 939,000 (897,000) 1,761,852 - -
1.Analysis of changes in cash flow:

(1) Operating activities: The estimated cash inflow from operating 
activities was mainly due to the continuous 
growth of operating revenue, increasing 
profitability.

(2) Investing activities: The estimated cash inflow from investing 
activities was mainly due to the purchase of 
equipment.

(3) Financing activities: The estimated cash outflow from financing 
activities was mainly due to the payment of cash 
dividends.

2. Remedies for estimated cash shortfalls to maintain a comparable cash
balance: None.
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IV. Effect of any major capital expenditure on financial operations in the most
recent year:
None.
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V. Reinvestment policy for the most recent fiscal year, the main reasons 
for the profits/losses generated thereby, the plan for improving re-
investment profitability, and investment plans for the coming year
(I) 2022 Investment policy: 

Investment analysis table
Description

Item Amount Policy Main reasons for gain or loss Improvement 
plan

Le Long Vietnam 
Co., Ltd.

USD32,000 
thousand

Improve production 
capacity, reduce 
production costs, and 
develop markets 
internationally in order 
to enhance international 
competitiveness.

This year, the production capability of Li 
Long Vietnam grew steadily, and the 
domestic sales market continued to 
expand; in addition, due to the 
development of new markets, the 
production capability is fully used to 
reduce costs, the profit growth.

-

Kung Long 
International Ltd.

USD2,170 
thousand General investment Good investment benefits. -

(II) Investment plan for the coming year: None. 

VI. Analysis and assessment of risks in the most recent fiscal year or during the
current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report
(I) Impact upon the company’s profit and loss from inflation and changes in

interest and exchange rates, and the future measures the company plans to 
adopt in response: 
1. Impact of interest rate changes on the Company and the future

measures the Company’s plans to adopt in response:
The risk arising from interest rate changes mainly come from long-term
and short-term liabilities. According to Taiwan’s current economic
development trend, there is no significant change in the low interest
rate policy. Therefore, interest rate fluctuations should not pose a
significant impact on the Company.

2. Impact of exchange rates on the Company’s profit and loss and the
future measures the Company’s plans to adopt in response:
Given the fact that the Company’s sales are mainly to other countries,
exchange rate changes pose a considerable impact on the Company's
profit and loss. The future measures the Company’s plans to adopt in
response:
(1) The finance personnel keep close contact with the bank and

collect exchange rate-related information while fully keeping 
abreast of exchange rate trends in order to respond to the risk 
arising from exchange rate changes. 

(2) We engage in hedging on a timely manner for pre-sale forward 
contracts in order to hedge the risk arising from exchange rate 
fluctuations. 
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(3) Depending on the actual capital needs and exchange rate 
fluctuations, customers may settle foreign currency payments in 
advance in order to reduce the impact of exchange rate 
fluctuations. 

(4) Some purchases are paid in foreign currencies and foreign 
currencies of imports and exports are naturally hedged to reduce 
the risk of loss arising from foreign exchange. 

3. Impact of inflations on the Company’s profit and loss and the future
measures the Company’s plans to adopt in response:
Inflation is the rate of increase in prices over a given period of time, a
general economic phenomenon that affects a wide ranges of areas. The
Company works hard to control and reduce costs to minimize the
impact of inflation, and is committed to implementing future measures
that reduce costs.

(II) High-risk investments, highly leveraged investments, loans to other parties, 
endorsements, guarantees, and derivatives transactions; the main reasons for 
the profits/losses generated thereby; and response measures to be taken in 
the future: 
1. The Company did not engage in transactions involving high-risk or

highly leveraged investments, nor did the Company lend fund to others
or make gurantees/endorsements.

2. The Company’s derivative transactions are mainly establishing forward
exchange contracts in order to hedge the impact of exchange rate
changes arising from exchange debts. Derivative transactions are
handled in accordance with the Company’s “Regulations for Derivative
Transactions”.

(III) Future research and development projects, and expenditures expected in 
connection therewith: 
(1) “Long life ultra high power batteries” - in response to the rise of home 

office and delivery markets driven by COVID-19, the demand for IDC 
(Internet Data Center) redundancy has increase drastically. Based on 
this, the development for this year’s battery technology focused on 
“ultra-high power”, “long float life”, and “new assembly process”. The 
development of WXL series products was completed this year for 
customers. 
The development of “high-temperature batteries” and “lead-carbon 
batteries” has been completed and certified. During this period, we are 
in the development of the mass production process technology while 
improving the yield of the product process. In conjunction with large 
disc type welding process, single machine and new introduction of 
automatic production line for large density through-wall welding, we 
are able to improve the life in high temperature environment while 
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reducing the difference between batteries in applications, enabling 
LONG’s products to be used in outdoor or backup systems without air 
conditioning, ensuring they are adopted by domestic large UPS and 
communication system tenders of large institutions and public 
construction projects. Long’s products are used by Taiwan telecom 
system providers and certified by VNPT and Mobifone in Vietnam and 
passed by EVN. 
Alongside the development trend of carbon reduction issues around the 
world, there are more and more applications for electric mobility tools 
and renewable energy. Based on this, the research and development 
this year focused on the “development of lead-carbon batteries for deep 
recycling green energy applications”, “research on long cycle life lead-
carbon electrode batteries”. The initial research results show that the 
lead-carbon composite electrode has significantly improved the cycle 
life, which will be gradually developed in 2023. 
With the introduction of 5G systems around the world, we will develop 
backup power batteries for 5G devices. 
Develop highly reliable and high-performance " yacht batteries" for 
yacht applications in response to the new market demand. 
From 2020 to 2022, the R&D expenses accounted for 0.54%, 0.60% 
and 0.61% of the revenue, respectively. In the future, we will continue 
to invest in R&D resources according to the product development plans. 
In 2023, the R&D expenses is expected to account for 1% of revenue 
for the year. 

(IV) The impact of important policies and legal developments at home and 
abroad on the company’s financial operations, and countermeasures:
We continued to keep a close eye on domestic and international policy and 
regulatory changes. By far, there has been no significant impact. 

(V) Effect on the company's financial operations of developments in science and 
technology (including cyber security risks) as well as industrial change, and 
measures to be taken in response: 
At present, the demand for batteries has increased due to the development of 
technology, posing positive effect on the Company’s products. In addition to 
being committed to innovation in R&D, we also take a proactive approach to 
improve the quality of products and strictly control costs to enhance 
competitiveness in the market, reducing the impact of product price changes 
on the Company’s profit and loss. We will continue to maintain our high 
sensitivity to technological changes in the industry to quickly respond to 
meet customer needs. 
In response to increasing information security risks, we have established a 
cyber security policy. We adopt a corresponding risk prevention mechanism 
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according to the specific management measures of the cyber security policy. 
In the event of a risk, the Information Security Team collects information 
and conduct a risk assessment and perform appropriate response measures 
according to the level of security incidents. The Information Security Team 
also notifies each department to perform relevant handling and protection in 
order to reduce the impact on the Company’s finance.

(VI) Effect of changes in the company’s corporate image on the company’s crisis 
management, and countermeasures: 
Upholding a philosophy of sustainable management, we strictly control costs 
to achieve the objective of profitability. We fulfill the responsibility to our 
shareholders in order to create profits and benefit our employees. We have a 
sound corporate image and there has been no corporate crisis management 
due to corporate image changes. 

(VII) Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion, 
and mitigation measures being or to be taken: 
None. 

(VIII)Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion, 
and mitigation measures being or to be taken: 
The Company continues to expand its plants and production in Vietnam. 
The production capability is expected to increase, driving the growth of the 
Company's revenue. 

(IX) Risks associated with any consolidation of sales or purchasing operations, 
and mitigation measures being or to be taken: 
The major raw material for the Company’s products is lead. In addition to 
maintaining a certain percentage of procurement by long-term cooperation 
with domestic listed companies, we also import lead from foreign suppliers 
with whom we maintain a stable procurement relationship, reducing the risk 
of concentration of imports. 
In addition to mature markets in North America and Europe in which we 
have continued to make an effort to increase sales, we also proactively 
develop and expand in emerging markets for global deployment. By doing 
so, we will reduce the impact of changes in economic conditions or demand 
in a single region. 

(X) Effect upon and risk to the company in the event a major quantity of shares 
belonging to a director, or shareholder holding greater than a 10 percent stake 
in the company has been transferred or has otherwise changed hands, and 
mitigation measures being or to be taken: 
None. 
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(XI) Effect upon and risk to company associated with any change in governance 
personnel, and mitigation measures being or to be taken: 
None. 

(XII) Litigious and non-litigious matters: List major litigious, non-litigious or 
administrative disputes that: (1) involve the company and/or any company 
director, the general manager, any person with actual responsibility for the 
firm, any major shareholder holding a stake of greater than 10 percent, 
and/or any company or companies controlled by the company; and (2) have 
been concluded by means of a final and unappealable judgment, or are still 
under litigation. Where such a dispute could materially affect shareholders’ 
equity or the prices of the company’s securities:
None. 

(XIII) Other important risks and measures to be adopted in response: 
None. 

VII. Other important matters: None
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Eight. Special Items to Be Included

I. Profile of Affiliates
(I) Profile of Affiliates:

1. Organizational chart of domestic and foreign affiliates:

 100%    100%

  100%  

  100%

Kung Tay Vietnam Co., Ltd.
Capital: USD 6,600,000

Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd.

Kung Long International 
Ltd. 
Capital: USD 2,170,000

Kung Tay Plastic  Co., 
Ltd.
Capital: USD 3,600,000

Le Long Vietnam Co., Ltd.
Capital: USD 32,000,000
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Name of 
investment 
company

Name of subsidiary Nature of business
Percentage equity 

shareholding
December 31, 

2022
December 31, 
2021 and 2021

The Company Le Long Vietnam 
Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and 
sales of batteries 
for household and 
industrial use

100% 100%

The Company Kung Long 
International Ltd. General investment 100% 100%

Kung Long 
International Ltd.

Kung Tay Plastic 
Co.,Ltd. General investment 100% 100%

Kung Tay Plastic 
Co.,Ltd. Kung Tay Vietnam 

Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and 
sales of plastic 
products

100% 100%

2. For companies presumed to have a relationship of control and
subordination under Article 369-3 of the Company Act: None.

3. The company has a direct or indirect control over the
management of the personnel, financial or business operation
of another company, and the said another company is
considered the subordinate company under subparagraph 2 of
Article 369-2 of the Company Act: None.

(II) Basic information on each affiliate:

Name of 
company

Date of 
establishment Address Paid-in capital Main business or 

production

Le Long 
Vietnam
Co., Ltd.

1996.09.19
SO 40,BA CHANH THAU,KHU 
PHO 2,THI TRAN BEN 
LUC,HUYEN BEN LUC,TINH 
LONG AN.

USD 32,000 
thousand

Manufacturing and 
sales of batteries for 

household and 
industrial use

Kung Long
International 
Ltd.

2008.01.08
Intershore Chambers,P.O  Box 
4342,Road Town,
Tortola,British Virgin Islands

USD 2,170 
thousand General investment

Kung Tay 
Plastic
Co.,Ltd.

2008.01.02
Unit 25 2 Floor,Nia Mall,Salefui 
Street,
Apia,Somoa

USD 3,600 
thousand General investment

Guang Tai 
Vietnam
Co., Ltd.

2008.03.27
DUC MY INDUSTRIAL,DUC 
HOA DONG COMMUNE,DUC 
HOA DISTRICT,LONG AN 
PROVINCE

USD 6,600 
thousand

Production, 
manufacturing, 

and sales of plastic 
products
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(III) For companies presumed to have a relationship of control and 
subordination: None.

(IV) The industries covered by the business operated by the affiliates 
overall:
The Company and its affiliates operate in: Production and 
manufacturing of batteries, plastic products and general 
investment.

(V) Information on the directors and presidents of each affiliate:
Unit: Thousand shares; December 31, 2022

Name of 
company Title Name or representative

Shareholding
Number of 

shares
Shareholding 

ratio

Le Long 
Vietnam
Co., Ltd.

Director

Kung Long Batteries 
Industrial Co., Ltd.

32,000 100%Representatives: 
Lee Yao-Min, Lee Jui-Chun
Chairman and president –
Lee Jui-Chun

Kung Long 
International 
Ltd.

Director
Kung Long Batteries 
Industrial Co., Ltd. 2,170 100%
Representative: Lee Jui-Chun

Kung Tay 
Plastic
Co.,Ltd.

Director

Kung Long International Ltd.

3,600 100%Representatives: 
Lee Yao-Min, Lee Jui-Chun, 
Lee Jui-Ting

Guang Tai 
Vietnam
Co., Ltd.

Director
Kung Tay Plastic Co.,Ltd.

6,600 100%Chairman and president –
Lee Jui-Chun
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(VI) Operating profile of affiliates:
Unit: NT$ thousand December 31, 2022

Name of 
company

Amount of 
capital

Total asset 
value

Total 
liabilities Net value Operating 

income

Operating 
income 
(loss)

Net
income 

(loss) for 
the 

period

Earnings 
per share 

(NT$)

Le Long 
Vietnam Co., 
Ltd.

1,029,090 3,780,944 1,269,247 2,511,697 6,677,116 350,181 310,697 10.22

Kung Long 
International 
Ltd.

70,464 667,946 - 667,946 - (62) 53,556 24.43

Kung Tay 
Plastic Co., Ltd. 136,590 547,897 3,290 544,607 - (8,705) 52,611 14.46

Guang Tai 
Vietnam
Co., Ltd.

207,883 424,129 15,010 409,119 342,901 58,577 53,556 8.11

Note 1: The asset and liability accounts were translated at the exchange rates at the end of the year 
and the profit and loss accounts were translated at average exchange rates throughout the year.

※Consolidated financial statements of affiliates: Considering that the 
companies to be included into the consolidated financial statements of 
affiliates were the same as those to be included in the consolidated financial 
statements of the parent and subsidiaries under International Accounting 
Standards 10, and the related information to be disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements of affiliates has already disclosed in said 
consolidated financial statements of the parent and subsidiaries, no 
consolidated financial statements of affiliates were prepared separately.

Report of affiliates: Not applicable.

II. Private placement of securities in the most recent fiscal year or during
the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report:
None.

III. Holding or disposal of shares in the company by the company’s
subsidiaries in the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal
year up to the date of publication of the annual report:
None.

IV. Other matters that require additional description: None.

Nine. Any of the situations listed in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of 
the Securities and Exchange Act, which may materially affect 
shareholders’ equity or the price of the company’s securities in the most 
recent year and up to the date of publication of the Annual Report: None.
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Appendix 1: A consolidated financial report for the most recent fiscal year
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd. 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., 
Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.  

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to the Other matter 
section), the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated 
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities 
for the audit of the parent company only financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the 
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. Based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors, we believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
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audit of the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the the Group financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

The Group’s key audit matters of consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2022 
are as follows: 

Revenue recognition timing 

Description 

Refer to Note 4(28) for accounting policies on sales revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2022, 
the Group’s consolidated operating revenue was NT$ 7,318,728 thousand. 

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of lead-acid batteries. The sales channels 
of products are located globally and sales to customers involve different kinds of transaction terms, 
which are based on the transaction terms agreed upon by individual customers. Depending on the 
different transaction terms, control of the goods is transferred only when the goods have been shipped 
or delivered, and the shipment date or delivery date is used as revenue recognition timing in accordance 
with the transaction terms. Certain processes of revenue recognition often involves a high degree of 
manual judgment and operations, which may result in revenue recognition not being properly recorded 
in the correct period. We consider revenue recognition timing as a key audit matter. 

How our audit addressed the matter 

We performed the following key audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter: 
1. Obtained an understanding and assessed the process and internal controls of sales transactions and

tested the effectiveness of the controls.
2. Verified the Group’s sales transactions around balance sheet date to check whether revenues are

recorded in the correct period. We also tested whether changes in inventory were recorded in the
proper period in order to assess the appropriateness of revenue recognition timing.

3. Performed confirmation procedures and substantive test on the ending balance of accounts
receivable, and checked whether accounts receivable and sales revenue have been recorded in the
proper period and the timing met the criteria of revenue recognition.
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Assessment of allowance for inventory valuation losses 

Description 

Refer to Note 4(14) for accounting policies on inventory valuation, Note 5(2) for the uncertainty of 
accounting estimates and assumptions related to inventory valuation, and Note 6(6) for detailed 
information on inventory. As of December 31, 2022, the total amount of inventory and allowance for 
inventory valuation losses were NT$ 2,171,787 thousand and NT$ 65,405 thousand, respectively. 

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of lead-acid batteries. Inventories aged 
over a certain period of time and separately recognised as obsolete inventories are measured at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value and provided allowance for inventory valuation losses based on 
individually identified reasonable net realizable value and usable condition of obsolete or slow-moving 
inventories. Considering the inventory and allowance for inventory valuation losses were material to the 
financial statements and the determination of net realisable value as at the balance sheet date for 
inventory valuation involved judgments and estimates, thus, we considered assessment of allowance for 
inventory valuation loss as a key audit matter.  

How our audit addressed the matter 

We performed the following key audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter: 
1. Obtained an understanding of the Group’s operation and the consistency of the related accounting

policies. Assessed the reasonableness of accounting policies and procedures on allowance for
inventory valuation losses.

2. Obtained an understanding of the Group’s warehousing control procedures, reviewed the annual
physical inventory stocktaking plan and observed the process of stocktaking, in order to assess the
classification of obsolete inventory and effectiveness of obsolete inventory internal control.

3. Verified the accuracy of inventory aging reports which was used in valuation, recalculated and
assessed the reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation losses, in order to ensure that the
information on the report was consistent with its policy.

4. Obtained evaluation data of the inventory costs and net realisable value which was compiled by
management, randomly checked separate inventory against sales certificates and records, and
checked the calculation accuracy of the report, in order to assess the basis and reasonableness of
net realisable value.
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Other matter – Reference to the audits of other auditors 
We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary, Kung Tay Viet Nam Co., Ltd. which was audited 
by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included 
in respect of these subsidiaries and the information disclosed in Note 13, is based solely on the reports 
of the other auditors. Total assets of the subsidiary amounted to NT$430,603 thousand and NT$379,761 
thousand, constituting 7.37% and 7.23% of the consolidated total assets as at December 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively, and the operating revenue amounted to NT$342,901 thousand and NT$276,267 
thousand, constituting 4.69% and 4.77% of the consolidated total operating revenue for the years then 
ended, respectively. 
Other matter – Parent company only financial reports 
We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial statements 
of Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
consolidated financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting 
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the 
Financial Supervisory Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
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report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
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business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Hsu, Chien-Yeh 

Wu, Sung-Yuan 

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan 
March 24, 2023 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of 
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other 
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such 
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. 
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use 
by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of 
China, and their applications in practice. 
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for 
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.  
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1)

1110 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss - current

6(2)

1136 Current financial assets at amortised 

cost

6(4)

1150 Notes receivable, net 6(5)

1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(5)

130X Inventories 6(6)

1410 Prepayments

1470 Other current assets

11XX

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive 

income

6(3)

1535 Non-current financial assets at 

amortised cost

6(4)

1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(7)

1755 Right-of-use assets 6(8)

1760 Investment property - net 6(9)

1780 Intangible assets

1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(27)

1900 Other non-current assets 6(10)

15XX

1XXX 

(Continued)
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 

 

2100 Short-term borrowings 6(11)

2150 Notes payable

2170 Accounts payable

2200 Other payables 6(12)

2230 Current income tax liabilities

2250 Provisions for liabilities - current 6(14)

2300 Other current liabilities 6(20)

21XX

2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(27)

2600 Other non-current liabilities 6(13)

25XX

2XXX

Share capital 6(16)

3110 Share capital - common stock

Capital surplus 6(17)

3200 Capital surplus

Retained earnings 6(18)

3310 Legal reserve

3320 Special reserve

3350 Unappropriated retained earnings

Other equity interest 6(19)

3400 Other equity interest

31XX

3XXX

Significant contingent liabilities and 

unrecognized contract commitments

9

Significant events after the balance 

sheet date

11

3X2X 
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earning per share amounts) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Year ended December 31 
2022 2021 

Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 
4000 Sales revenue 6(20) 
5000 Operating costs 6(6) 
5900 Net operating margin 

Operating expenses 6(25)(26) 
6100 Selling expenses 
6200 General and administrative expenses 
6300 Research and development expenses 
6000 Total operating expenses 
6900 Operating profit 

Non-operating income and expenses 
7100 Interest income 6(21) 
7010 Other income 6(22) 
7020 Other gains and losses 6(23) 
7050 Finance costs 6(24) 
7000 Total non-operating income and 

expenses 
7900  
7950 Income tax expense 6(27) 
8200  

 

 
8311 Gains on remeasurements of defined 

benefit plans 
6(13) 

8316 Total expenses, by nature 6(3)(19) 
8349 Income tax related to components of 

other comprehensive income that will not 
be reclassified to profit or loss 

6(27) 

8310 Components of other comprehensive 
income that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 
8361 Financial statements translation 

differences of foreign operations 
6(19) 

8367 Unrealised gains (losses) from 
investments in debt instruments 
measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

6(3)(19) 

8399 Income tax relating to the components of 
other comprehensive income 

6(19)(27) 

8360 Components of other comprehensive 
income that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

8300 
 

8500  
Profit, attributable to: 

8610 Owners of the parent 
Comprehensive income attributable to: 

8710 Owners of the parent 

Basic earnings per share 6(28) 
9750 Total basic earnings per share 
9850 Total diluted earnings per share  
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Notes 
Year ended December 31 

2022 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments 

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) 
Depreciation expense  6(7)(8)(25) 
Amortisation charge  6(25) 
Gain on financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, 

 6(2)(23) 
   

Gains on disposals of investments  6(23)     
Gains on disposals of property, plant and 
equipment 

 6(23) 
   

Compensation cost of employee restricted 
shares 

 6(15)(19) 

Interest income  6(21)    
Dividend income  6(22)    
Finance costs  6(24) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Changes in operating assets 

Current financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss     
Notes receivable, net  
Accounts receivable, net  
Inventories    
Prepayments  
Other current assets     

Changes in operating liabilities 
Notes payable     
Accounts payable    
Other payables     
Provisions    
Other current liabilities    
Other non-current liabilities    

Cash inflow generated from operations 
Interest received 
Interest paid    
Income taxes paid    
Dividends received 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

(Continued)
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Notes 
Year ended December 31 

2022 2021 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost  6(4)     

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  6(29)    

Proceeds from sales of property and equipment  

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 

 6(3) 

    

Increase in guarantee deposits paid 

Increase in other non-current assets    

Net cash flows used in investing activities    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Changes in short-term borrowings  6(30)  

(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received  6(30)     

Cash dividends paid  6(18)(30)    

Retirement of employees’ restricted stock  6(15)     

Net cash flows used in financing activities    

Effect of exchange rate changes     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Kung Long Batteries Industrial Co., Ltd. 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Kung Long Batteries 
Industrial Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related parent company 
only statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to the Other matter 
section), the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the parent company only financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
and its parent company only financial performance and its parent company only cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities 
for the audit of the parent company only financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of 
the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. Based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors, we believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Company’s 2022 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole and, in forming 

Appendix 2: A parent company only financial report for the most recent fiscal year
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our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Revenue recognition timing 

Description 

Refer to Note 4(25) for accounting policies on revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the 
Company’s operating revenue was NT$ 5,574,513 thousand. 

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of lead-acid batteries. The sales 
channels of products are located globally and sales to customers involve different kinds of transaction 
terms, which are based on the transaction terms agreed upon by individual customers. Depending on the 
different transaction terms, control of the goods is transferred only when the goods have been shipped 
or delivered, and the shipment date or delivery date is used as revenue recognition timing in accordance 
with the transaction terms. Certain processes of revenue recognition often involves a high degree of 
manual judgment and operations, which may result in revenue recognition not being properly recorded 
in the correct period. As the aforementioned issues also applied to the subsidiaries held by the Company, 
which are accounted for under equity method, thus, we consider revenue recognition timing of the 
Company and subsidiaries as a key audit matter. 

How our audit addressed the matter 

We performed the following key audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter: 
1. Obtained an understanding and assessing on the process and internal controls of sales transactions

and tested the effectiveness of the controls.
2. Verified the Company’s sales transactions around the balance sheet date to check whether revenues

are recorded in the correct period. We also tested whether changes in inventory were recorded in
the proper period in order to assess the appropriateness of revenue recognition timing.

3. Performed confirmation procedures and substantive test on the ending balance of accounts
receivable, and checked whether accounts receivable and sales revenue have been recorded in the
proper period in order to assess the reasonableness of the sales revenue recognition timing.
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Assessment of allowance for inventory valuation losses 

Description 

Refer to Note 4(13) for accounting policies on inventory valuation, Note 5(2) for the uncertainty of 
accounting estimates and assumptions related to inventory valuation, and Note 6(6) for description of 
allowance for inventory raluation losses. As of December 31, 2022, the balances of inventory and 
allowance for inventory valuation losses were NT$ 388,449 thousand and NT$ 1,013 thousand, 
respectively. 

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of lead-acid batteries. Inventories aged 
over a certain period of time and individually identified as obsolete inventories are measured at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value and provided allowance for inventory valuation losses based on 
individually identified reasonable net realizable value and usable condition of obsolete or slow-moving 
inventories. As the aforementioned issues also applied to the subsidiaries held by the Company which 
are accounted for under equity method. Considering the inventory and allowance for inventory valuation 
losses were material to the consolidated financial statements and the determination of net realisable value 
as at the balance sheet date for inventory valuation involved judgments and estimates, thus, we 
considered assessment of allowance for inventory valuation loss of the Company and subsidiaries as a 
key audit matter.  

How our audit addressed the matter 

We performed the following key audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter: 
1. Obtained an understanding of the Company’s operation and the consistency of the related

accounting policies. Assessed the reasonableness of accounting policies and procedures on
allowance for inventory valuation losses.

2. Obtained an understanding of the Company’s warehousing control procedures, reviewed the annual
physical inventory stocktaking plan and observed the process of stocktaking, in order to assess the
classification of obsolete inventory and effectiveness of obsolete inventory internal control.

3. Verified the accuracy of inventory aging reports which was used in valuation, recalculated and
assessed the reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation losses, in order to ensure that the
information on the report was consistent with its policy.

4. Obtained evaluation data of the inventory costs and net realisable value which was compiled by
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management, randomly checked separate inventory against vouchers of purchases and sales and its 
records, and checked the calculation accuracy of the report, in order to assess the basis and 
reasonableness of net realisable value. 

Other matter – Reference to the audits of other auditors 
We did not audit the financial statements of the investee company, Kung Tay Viet Nam Co., Ltd. which 
are accounted for under the equity method. The balance of these investments accounted for under the 
equity method amounted to NT$409,119 thousand and NT$354,590 thousand, constituting 7.16% and 
7.33% of total assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and comprehensive income was 
NT$57,905 thousand and NT$38,256 thousand, constituting 5.16% and 6.32% of total comprehensive 
income for the years then ended, respectively. The financial statements of these investees were audited 
by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, 
insofar as it relates to the amounts and the information disclosed in Note 13 included in the financial 
statements relative to the investee company is based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the parent 
company only financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial 
statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
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auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Hsu, Chien-Yeh 

Wu, Sung-Yuan 

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan 
March 24, 2023 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of 
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other 
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such 
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. 
Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended 
for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic 
of China, and their applications in practice. 
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for 
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.  
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1)

1110 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss - current

6(2)

1150 Notes receivable, net 6(5)

1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(5)

1180 Accounts receivable - related parties  7(2)

1200 Other receivables

130X Inventories 6(6)

1470 Other current assets

11XX

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive 

income

6(3)

1535 Non-current financial assets at 

amortised cost

6(4)

1550 Investments accounted for under 

equity method

6(7)

1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8)

1760 Investment property - net 6(9)

1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(25)

1900 Other non-current assets

15XX

1XXX 

(Continued)
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 

 

2100 Short-term borrowings 6(10)

2150 Notes payable

2170 Accounts payable

2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7(2)

2200 Other payables 6(11)

2230 Current income tax liabilities

2300 Other current liabilities 6(18)

21XX

2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(25)

2600 Other non-current liabilities 6(12)

25XX

2XXX

Share capital 6(14)

3110 Share capital - common stock

Capital surplus 6(15)

3200 Capital surplus

Retained earnings 6(16)

3310 Legal reserve

3320 Special reserve

3350 Unappropriated retained earnings

Other equity interest 6(17)

3400 Other equity interest

3XXX

Significant events after the balance 

sheet date

11

3X2X 
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share amounts) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 

Year ended December 31 
2022 2021 

Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 
4000 Sales revenue 6(18) 
5000 Operating costs 6(6) 
5900 Net operating margin 
5910 Unrealized profit from sales 7(2) 
5950 Net operating margin 

Operating expenses 6(23)(24) 
6100 Selling expenses 
6200 General and administrative expenses 
6300 Research and development expenses 
6000 Total operating expenses 
6900 Operating profit 

Non-operating income and expenses 
7100 Interest income 6(19) 
7010 Other income 6(20) 
7020 Other gains and losses 6(21) 
7050 Finance costs 6(22) 
7070 Share of profit of associates and joint 

ventures accounted for using equity 
method, net 

6(7) 

7000 Total non-operating income and 
expenses 

7900  
7950 Income tax expense 6(25) 
8200  

 

 
8311 Other comprehensive income, before tax, 

actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit 
plans 

 6(12) 

8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from 
investments in equity instruments 
measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

6(3)(17) 

8349 Income tax related to components of 
other comprehensive income that will not 
be reclassified to profit or loss 

6(25) 

8310 Components of other comprehensive 
income that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 
8361 Other comprehensive income, before tax, 

exchange differences on translation 
 6(17) 

8367 Unrealised gains (losses) from 
investments in debt instruments 
measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

6(17) 

8399 Income tax relating to the components of 
other comprehensive income 

 6(17)(25) 

8360 Components of other comprehensive 
income (loss) that will be reclassified 
to profit or loss 

8300 
 

8500  

Basic earnings per share 6(26) 
9750 Basic earnings per share 
9850 Diluted earnings per share  
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KUNG LONG BATTERIES INDUSTRIAL CO.,LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Notes 
Year ended December 31 

2022 2021 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments 

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) 
Depreciation expense  6(8)(9)(23) 
Amortisation charge  6(23)   
Gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 
mandatorily measured at fair value 

 6(2)(21) 
    

Gains on disposals of investments  6(21)  
Compensation cost of employee restricted shares  6(13)(19) 
Interest income  6(19)     
Dividend income  6(20)     
Finance costs  6(22) 
Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries accounted for under 
equity method 

 6(7) 
    

Unrealised (gain) loss on inter-affiliate accounts  7(2) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Changes in operating assets 
Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 
mandatorily measured at fair value  
Notes receivable, net   
Accounts receivable, net  
Accounts receivable - related parties  
Inventories   
Other receivables  
Other current assets  

Changes in operating liabilities 
Notes payable  
Accounts payable     
Accounts payable to related parties   
Other payables  
Other current liabilities     
Other non-current liabilities     

Cash inflow generated from operations 
Interest received 
Interest paid     
Income taxes paid     
Dividends received 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  6(8)     
Increase in other non-current assets     
Acquisition of cash dividends from investments accounted for 
using equity method 

Net cash flows from investing activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Changes in short-term borrowings  6(27)  
(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received 
Cash dividends paid  6(16)(27)     
Retirement of employees’ restricted stock  6(14)  

Net cash flows used in financing activities     
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  
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Kung Long Batteries Industrial 
Co., Ltd.

Chairman: Lee Yao-Min






